Due to the termination of the
statewide COVID-19 State of
Emergency by the Governor of
California, effective March 1, 2023,
all meetings of the Oakland Police
& Fire Retirement System Board
and its Committees will be
conducted in person.

Meetings are held in wheelchair
accessible facilities.

The Board may take action on
items not on the agenda only if
findings pursuant to the Sunshine
Ordinance and Brown Act are
made that the matter is urgent or
an emergency.

For additional information, contact
the Retirement Unit by calling (510)

city f oF
OAKLAND

Retirement Unit
150 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza
Oakland, California 94612

AGENDA

RETIREMENT BOARD MEMBERS

Walter L. Johnson, Sr.
President

Jaime T. Godfrey
Vice President

Martin J. Melia
Member

Robert W. Nichelini
Member

John C. Speakman
Member

R. Steven Wilkinson
Member

Erin Roseman
Member

238-7295. or send an email to
jlloyd2@oaklandca.gov

MEETING of the BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

of the OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (“PFRS”)

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 26, 2025
11:30 AM
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, HEARING ROOM 2
OAKLAND, CA 94612

OBSERVE

= To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on this link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82880493983 at the noticed meeting time.

= To listen to the meeting by phone, please call the numbers below at the noticed meeting time:
Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

= iPhone one-tap: US: +16699006833, 82880493983# or +13462487799, 82880493983#

= US: +1669 900 6833 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626
6799 or +1 929 205 6099

= International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kctrX35uax

= Webinar ID: 828 8049 3983.

= |f asked for a participant ID or code, press #.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There are two ways to submit public comments.

= Speaker Card: All persons wishing to address the Board must complete a speaker’s card, stating
their name and the agenda item they wish to address, including “Open Forum”.

= e-Comment: To send your comment directly to staff BEFORE the meeting starts, please email
lloyd2@oaklandca.gov with “PFRS Board Meeting Public Comment” in the subject line for the
corresponding meeting. Please note that e-Comment submission closes two (2) hours before
the posted meeting time.

If you have any questions, please email Jessica Lloyd, Administrative Analyst |, at
lloyd2@oaklandca.gov

Page 1 of 4


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82880493983
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kctrX35uax
mailto:jlloyd2@oaklandca.gov
mailto:jlloyd2@oaklandca.gov
mailto:jlloyd2@oaklandca.gov

OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION MEETING AGENDA
MARCH 26, 2025

ORDER OF BUSINESS

C1.

C2.

C3.

Subject:

From:

POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (“PFRS”) BOARD OF
ADMINISTRATION MEETING MINUTES

Staff of the PFRS Board

Recommendation:

Subject:

From:
Recommendation:

APPROVE the February 26, 2025, PFRS Board of Administration Meeting
Minutes

RESOLUTION No. 8127

Staff of the PFRS Board
APPROVE Resolution No. 8127 - Resolution of appreciation for Maxine

Visaya, in recognition of her dedication and loyal service as Administrative
Assistant Il to the Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System Board.

AUDIT & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE AGENDA - MARCH 26, 2025

Subject:
From:

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES REPORT
Staff of the PFRS Board

Recommendation:

Subject:

From:

ACCEPT the informational report regarding PFRS administrative expenses as
of January 31, 2025

PROPOSED TWO-YEAR PFRS ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET
FISCAL YEARS 2025/2026 and 2026/2027
Staff of the PFRS Board

Recommendation:

Subject:
From:

Recommendation:

APPROVE PFRS proposed two-year Administrative Budget Fiscal Years
2025/2026 and 2026/2027

RESOLUTION No. 8126

TRAVEL REQUEST: JAIME T. GODFREY

Staff of the PFRS Board

APPROVE Resolution No. 8126

authorizing request of Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Board Member Jamie T. Godfrey to travel and attend the Institutional Investors
Public Funds Forum in Los Angeles, CA, from April 27, 2025, through April 30,
2025, and authorizing the reimbursement of registration fees and travel-related
expenses in an amount not to exceed one-thousand seven hundred dollars
($1,700.00).

Page 2 of 4



OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION MEETING AGENDA

MARCH 26, 2025

D. INVESTMENT & FINANCIAL MATTERS COMMITTEE AGENDA - MARCH 26, 2025

D1. Subject:

From:

INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE UPDATE:

VERSOR INVESTMENTS, LLC

Versor Investments, LLC*

*Versor Investments, LLC will present in-person and via Zoom. The presentation
will be broadcast live in the hearing room, allowing the Board and all other in-
person attendees to hear the presentation.

Recommendation:

D2. Subject:

From:

ACCEPT an informational report regarding the overview and managerial
assessment of the firm, including its diversity and inclusion policy and practices,
as well as the investment strategy and portfolio performance of PFRS’
Systematic Trend Following Investment Strategy Manager, Versor Investments,
LLC.

INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
VERSOR MANAGEMENT
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

D3. Subject:

From:

ACCEPT Meketa Investment Group’s review and evaluation of the firm
overview, managerial assessment, diversity and inclusion policy and practices,
as well as the investment strategy and portfolio performance of PFRS’
Systematic Trend Following Investment Strategy Manager, Versor Investments,
LLC.

ECONOMIC AND INVESTMENT MARKET OVERVIEW
AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2025
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

D4. Subject:

From:

ACCEPT the informational report regarding the Global Investment Markets as
of February 28, 2025

PFRS PRELIMINARY INVESTMENT FUND PERFORMANCE UPDATE
AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2025
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

D5. Subject:

From:

ACCEPT an informational report on the preliminary performance of the PFRS
Investment Fund as of FEBRUARY 28, 2025.

PFRS INVESTMENT POLICY UPDATE:
ASSET ALLOCATION IMPLEMENTATION: FIXED INCOME
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

RECEIVE an update regarding the status of the implementation of the new
target asset allocation of the PFRS Investment Portfolio.

Page 3 of 4



OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION MEETING AGENDA
MARCH 26, 2025

D6.

D7.

D8.

DO.

T O mm

Subject:

From:

$13.2 MILLION DRAWDOWN FOR PFRS MEMBER RETIREMENT
ALLOWANCES FROM APRIL 1, 2025, THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

Subject:
From:

ACCEPT the informational report and RECOMMEND BOARD APPROVAL of
Meketa Investment Group's proposed drawdown of $13.2 million. This amount
includes an $8.7 million contribution from the City of Oakland and a $4.5 million
contribution from the PFRS Investment Fund. The funds will be used to pay
PFRS Member Retirement Allowances from April 1, 2025, through June 30,
2025.

CAPITAL MARKETS EXPECTATIONS
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

Subject:
From:

ACCEPT an informational report regarding Meketa Investment Group’s 2025
Capital Markets Expectations.

PFRS LONG-TERM INVESTMENT RETURN EXPECTATIONS
Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

Subject:

From:

ACCEPT an informational report regarding PFRS Fund Long-Term Investment
Return Expectations.

PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT
WITH PFRS INVESTMENT COUNCIL REGARDING FEE INCREASE

Meketa Investment Group

Recommendation:

PENDING ITEMS
NEW BUSINESS
OPEN FORUM

APPROVE the proposal to amend the professional service agreement with
Meketa Investment Group for the provision of Investment Council for the City
of Oakland Police and Fire Retirement Systems for a fee increase.

FUTURE SCHEDULING

ADJOURNMENT

Page 4 of 4



PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 1 OF 7

A MEETING OF THE OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (“PFRS”) BOARD OF
ADMINISTRATION was held Wednesday, February 26, 2025, at One Frank Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room
2, Oakland, California.

Board Members:

Walter L. Johnson  President
= Jaime T. Godfrey Vice President

= Martin J. Melia Member (Joined at 10:51 AM)
= Robert W. Nichelini  Member
= Erin Roseman Member

= John C. Speakman  Member (EXCUSED)
= R. Steven Wilkinson Member (Joined at 10:51 AM)
Additional Attendees: = David F. Jones PFRS Plan Administrator & Secretary

= Téir Jenkins PFRS Investment & Operations Manager
= Maxine Visaya PFRS Staff Member

= Jessica Lloyd PFRS Staff Member

= Selia Warren PFRS Legal Counsel

= David Sancewich Meketa Investment Group

= Paola Nealon Meketa Investment Group

The meeting was called to order at 10:30 a.m. Pacific

A. APPROVAL OF THE PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION MEETING MINUTES
Member Nichelini made a motion to APPROVE the minutes of the PFRS Board of Administration
Meeting, held on January 29, 2025, as submitted; seconded by Vice President Godrey. Motion Passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: EXCUSED / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: EXCUSED]
(AYES: 4/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 3)

B. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES REPORT: DECEMBER 31, 2024
PFRS Investment and Operations Manager Jenkins presented an informational report on the
administrative expenditures of PFRS as of December 31, 2024. PFRS has an approved annual budget
of $4.1 million and has expensed approximately $1.3 million and has approximately $2.8 million of that
budget remaining (approximately 68%). PFRS membership currently includes 613 retired members and
beneficiaries, comprising 384 from the Police department and 231 from the Fire department.

MOTION: Member Nichelini made a motion to ACCEPT the PFRS Administrative Expenses Report as

of December 31, 2024; seconded by Member Rosman. Motion Passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: EXCUSED / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: EXCUSED]
(AYES: 4/NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 03)



C1.

C2.

PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 2 OF 7

INVESTMENT & FINANCIAL MATTERS COMMITTEE AGENDA - FEBRUARY 25, 2025*
*The PFRS Investment & Financial Matters Committee convened Tuesday, February 25, 2025
SELECTION OF INVESTMENT STRATEGY MANAGERS:
CORE FIXED INCOME
Vice President Godfrey provided a summary of the presentations from the following perspective Core
Fixed Income Investment Strategy Manager finalists:
a) Loomis, Sayles & Company
b) Loop Capital Asset Management
c) Ramirez Asset Management

Each firm presented information regarding a firm overview, strategy, Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
(DEI) policies, portfolio performance, and more. The committee proposed recommending Loop Capital
Asset Management and to retain the existing services of Ramirez Asset Management, to serve as
PFRS’s Core Fixed Income Investment Managers.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to APPROVE Meketa’s recommendation to hire Loop
Capital Asset Management and Ramirez Asset Management to serve as PFRS’s Core Fixed Income
Investment Strategy Managers; seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6 / NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 1)

SELECTION OF INVESTMENT STRATEGY MANAGERS:
CORE PLUS FIXED INCOME
Vice President Godfrey provided a summary of the presentations from the following perspective Core
Plus Fixed Income Investment Strategy Manager finalists.

a) Income Research + Management (IR+M)

b) Reams Asset Management

c) Wellington Management Company

Each firm presented information regarding a firm overview, strategy, Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
(DEI) policies, portfolio performance, and more. The committee proposed to retain the existing services
of Wellington Management Company, however, a consensus could not be reached regarding the two-
remaining finalist at that time. David Sancewich of the Meketa Investment Group returned to the Board
and provided additional analytical information regarding the two remaining finalists and advocated for a
Reams Asset Management and Wellington Management Company combination.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT Meketa’s recommendation to retain the
existing services of Wellington Management Company and Reams Asset Management as PFRS’s Core
Plus Fixed Income Investment Strategy Managers; seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 01)



C3.

C4.

C5.

PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 3 OF 7

ECONOMIC AND INVESTMENT MARKET OVERVIEW

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2025

Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented an informational report regarding the economic
and investment market overview as of January 31, 2025, highlighted index returns and noted current
factors impacting outcomes.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT the informational report provided by
Meketa regarding the Economic and Investment Market Overview as of January 31, 2025; seconded by
Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: EXCUSED / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: EXCUSED]
(AYES: 4/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 03)

PFRS PRELIMINARY INVESTMENT FUND PERFORMANCE UPDATE

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2025

Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented an informational report regarding a preliminary
investment performance update of the PFRS Fund, as of January 31, 2025, and highlighted PFRS Total
Plan Performance and noting current factors impacting outcomes.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT the informational report provided by
Meketa regarding the Preliminary Investment Fund Performance Update, as of January 31, 2025;
seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 01)

PFRS INVESTMENT FUND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE UPDATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented an informational report regarding PFRS
Investment Fund Quarterly Performance Update, as of December 31, 2024, and highlighted the total
portfolio review. PFRS Plan Administrator & Secretary Jones noted that the Investment Fund Quarterly
Performance Update as well as the Actuary Report would be presented to the City Council Finance and
Management Committee meeting on March 26, 2025.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to APPROVE the informational report provided by
Meketa regarding the PFRS Investment Fund Quarterly Performance Update, as of December 31, 2024;
seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y/ MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6 /NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0 / EXCUSED: 1)



Cé.

C7.

PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 4 OF 7

PFRS INVESTMENT POLICY UPDATE
ASSET ALLOCATION IMPLEMENTATION (VERBAL REPORT)

Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented a verbal informational report and advised that
they would be moving towards a new Asset Allocation that aims to diversify the PFRS portfolio.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT the verbal informational report provided
by Meketa regarding Asset Allocation Implementation; seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 1)

MANAGER SEARCH UPDATE & FINALIST RECOMMENDATIONS:
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY INVESTMENT STATEGY
Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented an informational report regarding the results
of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the International Equity Investment Manager strategy search,
advising that the RFP had 43 respondents, and recommended the following firms be invited to interview
before the Investment Committee in April or May:

a) Acadian Asset Management

b) C Worldwide

c) Strategic Global Advisors (SGA)

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT the informational report provided by
Meketa regarding the results of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the International Equity Investment
Manager strategy search; seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 1)

c8. INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

RICE HALL JAMES & ASSOCIATES, LLC

Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented an informational report that included an
overview of Rice Hall James (RHJ), a managerial assessment, peer rankings, and details about their
investment portfolio performance. She confirmed that Meketa had no concerns regarding RHJ as a
manager for the PFRS Domestic Equity Small-Cap Core Investment Strategy.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT the informational report provided by
Meketa regarding the Investment Manager Performance Review of Rice Hall James, LLC; seconded by
Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: 0 / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6 /NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0 / EXCUSED: 1)



Co.

c10.

c11.

PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 5 OF 7

RESOLUTION NO. 8122
A resolution to authorize a one-year extension of the professional services agreement with Rice Hall

James & Associates, LLC for Domestic Equity Small-Cap Growth Investment Strategy Manager Services
for the OPFRS.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to APPROVE Resolution No. 8122, authorizing a one-
year extension of the professional services agreement with Rice Hall James & Associates, LLC for
Domestic Equity Small-Cap Growth Investment Strategy Manager Services for the PFRS; seconded by
Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 1)

INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
EARNEST PARTNERS, LLC
Paola Nealon of the Meketa Investment Group presented an informational report that included an
overview of Earnest Partners, LLC, a managerial assessment, peer rankings, and details about their
investment portfolio. She confirmed that Meketa had no concerns regarding Earnest Partners as a
manager for the PFRS Mid-Cap Core Investment Strategy manager.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to ACCEPT the informational report provided by
Meketa regarding the Investment Manager Performance Review of Earnest Partners, LLC for Mid-Cap
Core Investment Strategy Manger Services for the PFRS; seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion
passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: 0/ NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0 / EXCUSED: 1)

RESOLUTION NO. 8123
A resolution to authorize a one-year extension of the professional services agreement with Earnest
Partners, LLC for Mid-Cap Growth Investment Strategy Manager Services for the OPFRS.

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to APPROVE Resolution No. 8123, authorizing a one-
year extension of the professional services agreement with Earnest Partners, LLC for Mid-Cap Growth
Investment Strategy Manager Services for the PFRS; seconded by Member Nichelini. Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y/ MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0 / EXCUSED: 1)



D1.

D2.

PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 6 OF 7

MEMBER RESOLUTION NOS. 8124 - 8125
RESOLUTION NO. 8124

Resolution fixing the monthly allowance of the surviving spouse of the following retired member of the
Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System in the amount indicated:

Deceased Member Surviving Spouse Monthly Allowance
_ Anthony V. Jovino Kristen Schuettge-  $4,396.61
Jovino

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to approve Resolution No. 8124, seconded by
Member Nichelini. Motion Passed.

[JOHNSON: Y / GODFREY: Y / MELIA: EXCUSED / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: EXCUSED]
(AYES: 4/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0/ EXCUSED: 3)
RESOLUTION NO. 8125

Resolution approving the death benefit payment and directing a warrant thereunder in the total sum of
$1,000.00 payable to the beneficiary of the following deceased members of the Oakland Police and Fire
Retirement System:

= Keneth W. Bachman

= William J. Enger

= James A. West

MOTION: Vice President Godfrey made a motion to approve Resolution No. 8124, seconded by
Member Nichelini. Motion Passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y / MELIA: EXCUSED / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: EXCUSED]
(AYES: 4/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0 / EXCUSED: 3)

PENDING ITEMS - PFRS Plan Administrator Jones reported the Ad Hoc Committee met on February
24, 2025, and the focus of the discussion was related to proposed charter changes, composition of the

Board, and Manner of Meetings, in an effort to bring the matter before the Board. No updates related to
the PTO.

NEW BUSINESS - None

OPEN FORUM - None

FUTURE SCHEDULING - The next Regular Board Meeting will be held in-person and is tentatively
scheduled to occur Wednesday, March 26, 2025, at One Frank Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 2, Oakland,
CA.



PFRS BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2025

PAGE 7 OF 7

ADJOURNMENT - Vice President Godfrey made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Member Nichelini.
Motion passed.

[JOHNSON: Y/ GODFREY: Y/ MELIA: Y / NICHELINI: Y / ROSEMAN: Y / SPEAKMAN: EXCUSED / WILKINSON: Y]
(AYES: 6/ NOES: 0/ ABSENT: 0/ ABSTAIN: 0 / EXCUSED: 1)

The meeting adjourned at 11:39 AM.

DAVID F. JONES DATE
PLAN ADMINISTRATOR & SECRETARY



Approved to Form

and Legality
OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT BOARD Selia Warren

CITY OF OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA Selia Warren (Mar 20, 2025 16:43 CDT)
RESOLUTION NO. 8127

ON MOTION OF MEMBER SECONDED BY MEMBER

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR MAXINE VISAYA, IN
RECOGNITION OF HER DEDICATION AND LOYAL SERVICE AS
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II TO THE OAKLAND POLICE AND
FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD.

WHEREAS, Maxine Visaya served as Administrative Assistant II to the Oakland
Police and Fire Retirement System (“PFRS”) Board from July 11, 2020 to November 8,
2024 and was promoted to Administrative Analyst I from November 9, 2024 to
March 14, 2025 pursuant to section 2601(b) and 2601 (e) of the Oakland City Charter;
and

WHEREAS, Maxine Visaya has provided critical administrative support to the
PFRS Board with continuous professionalism, including perfect attendance at all
Committee and Board meetings; and

WHEREAS, during her time as Administrative Assistant II of the PFRS Board,
Maxine Visaya proved to be an invaluable asset. During her tenure, she wrote and
published the Board meeting agendas, composed minutes, maintained Board records
and recordings in accordance with the Oakland City Charter, the Ralph M. Brown Act,
California Public Records Act and the Oakland Sunshine Ordinance. In addition, she
assisted in the compilation of the PFRS Annual Report, the member verification
project and assisted with the research and composition of Board policies as well as
the processing of Board travel; and instrumental in transitioning from in-person
meeting to virtual meeting during the pandemic; and

WHEREAS, Maxine Visaya’s professionalism, judgment, dedication, and
discretion were commendable; and

WHEREAS, as of March 15, 2025, Maxine Visaya completed her service to the
PFRS Board in order to start new duties with the City of Oakland Planning and
Building Department; therefore be it;

RESOLVED: that the PFRS Board hereby recognizes Maxine Visaya for her four
years of service and administrative support to the Oakland Police and Fire
Retirement Board and expresses its sincere appreciation for her dedication and
valuable contributions in that role; and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the members of the Oakland Police and Fire
Retirement System Board express their sincere best wishes to Maxine Visaya for a
healthy and successful future in public service.

IN BOARD MEETING, CiTY HALL, OAKLAND, CA MARCH 26, 2025

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:

AYES: MELIA, NICHELINI, ROSEMAN, SPEAKMAN, WILKINSON, GODFREY & PRESIDENT JOHNSON
NOES

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST:

PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

SECRETARY



Internal Administrative Costs
PERS Staff Salaries
Board Travel Expenditures
Staff Training
Staff Training - Tuition Reimbursement
Board Hospitality
Payroll Processing Fees
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Internal Service Fees (ISF)
Contract Services Contingency

Internal Administrative Costs Subtotal :

Actuary and Accounting Services
Audit
Actuary
Actuary and Accounting Subtotal:

Legal Services
City Attorney Salaries
Legal Contingency
Legal Services Subtotal:

Investment Services
Money Manager Fees
Custodial Fee
Investment Consultant
Investment Subtotal:

Total Operating Budget

Table 1

OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Administrative Budget Spent to Date (Preliminary)

As of January 31, 2025
Approved
Budget January 2025 | FYTD Remaining | Percent Remaining

$ 1,745,000 $ 105,353 $ 805,341 939,659 53.8%
52,500 - - 52,500 100.0%
20,000 - - 20,000 100.0%
7,500 - - 7,500 100.0%

7,200 - 1,948 5,252 72.9%
40,000 - - 40,000 100.0%

45,000 2,510 10,612 34,388 76.4%

88,000 - 89,728 (1,728) -2.0%

50,000 - 1,500 48,500 97.0%

$ 2,055,200 $ 107,863 909,130 1,146,070 55.8%

$ 54,400 $ 27,818 52,700 1,700 3.1%
50,900 - 3,233 47,668 93.6%

$ 105,300 $ 27,818 55,933 49,368 46.9%
$ 220,700 $ 17,732 121,249 99,451 45.1%
150,000 - - 150,000 100.0%

$ 370,700 $ 17,732 121,249 249,451 67.3%
$ 1,353,000 $ - 325,927 1,027,073 75.9%
124,500 - 31,125 93,375 75.0%

100,000 - 50,000 50,000 50.0%

$ 1,577,500 $ - 407,052 1,170,448 74.2%

$ 4,108,700 $ 153,413 1,493,364 2,615,336 63.65%




Table 2

OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Cash in Treasury (Fund 7100) - Preliminary
As of January 31, 2025

Beginning Cash as of 1/1/2025

Additions:
City Pension Contribution - January
Investment Draw
Misc. Receipts

Total Additions:

Deductions:
Pension Payment (December Pension Paid on 1/1/2025)
Expenditures Paid

Total Deductions

Ending Cash Balance as of 1/31/2025*

January 2025

9,932,222

2,903,750
1,500,000
800

4,404,550

(4,120,752)
(223,242)

(4,343,994)

9,992,778

* On 2/1/2025, January pension payment of appx $4,089,000 will be made leaving a cash balance of $5,904,000.



Table 3
CITY OF OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Census
As of January 31, 2025

COMPOSITION POLICE FIRE TOTAL
Retired Member:
Retiree 256 140 396
Beneficiary 120 91 211
Total Retired Members 376 231 607
Total Membership: 376 231 607
COMPOSITION POLICE FIRE TOTAL
Retired Member:
Service Retirement 250 105 355
Disability Retirement 118 115 233
Death Allowance 8 11 19
Total Retired Members: 376 231 607
Total Membership as of January 31, 2025: 376 231 607
Total Membership as of June 30, 2024 389 237 626

Annual Difference: -13 -6 -19




Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System
Pension Plan Membership Count
As of January 31, 2025 (FY 2015 - FY 2025)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 FYTD
==@==Police 558 545 516 492 475 460 439 422 404 389 376
=@ [ire 403 384 370 345 828 308 284 264 250 237 231

Total 961 929 886 837 798 768 723 686 654 626 607




[ = AGENDA REPORT

CITY OF OAKLAND

TO: Oakland Police and Fire Retirement FROM: David Jones
System Board

SUBJECT: Proposed 2-year PFRS DATE: March 26, 2025
Administrative Budget for FY
2025/2026 and FY 2026/2027

RECOMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board of the Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System (“PFRS
Board”) approve the new two-year PFRS administrative budget for FY 2025/2026 and FY
2026/2027 as shown in Table 1.

SUMMARY

In order to be consistent with the City of Oakland budget process, PFRS staff is presenting a two-
year administrative budget that reflects proposed PFRS expenditures for FY 2025/2026 and FY
2026/2027. Staff will work to incorporate the PFRS Board approved budget into the City of
Oakland overall budget.

The overall PFRS budget is projected to be $4,295,700 in FY 2025/2026 and $4,299,000 in FY
2026/2027. The proposed budget changes reflect expected costs within the specified line items.
The total proposed annual budget is approximately 0.945% of the Plan's current investment
portfolio. The total PFRS Operating Budget is projected to increase 4.48% in FY 2025/2026 and
0.08% in in FY 2026/2027.

KEY CHANGES
Internal Administrative Costs

Staff costs are projected to increase by $115,000 in FY 2025/2026 and no additional increase in
in FY 2026/2027. These increases are mostly due to fully funding an Administrative Analyst |
position that was recently removed from the Retirement Budget. Internal Service Fees (“ISF”)
are required costs for all City of Oakland funds. These costs are associated with city-wide
services such as special setup, facilities general support, city accounting services, city contract
services, phone and IT support and printing.

Overall, Internal Administrative costs are projected to increase $122,000 in FY 2025/2026 and
no additional projected increase in FY 2026/2027.

Agenda Item C2
PFRS Board Meeting
March 26, 2025



OAKLAND POLICE & FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

AGENDA REPORT - Proposed 2-year PFRS Administrative Staff Budget for FY 2025/2026 and FY
2026/2027

March 26, 2025 PAGE 2

Actuary and Accounting Services

Actuary and Auditing services are both scheduled to increase by 3% based on projected annual
increases. The expenses for Audit Services are expected to increase $1,600 in FY 2025/2026 and
$1,700 in FY 2026/2027. The expenses for Actuary Services are expected to increase $1,500 in
FY 2025/2026 and an additional $1,600 in FY 2026/2027

Investment Services

The Money Manager budget is based on the fees charged by each PFRS money manager and the
amount of funds they manage on behalf of the PFRS’s investment portfolio. The Custodial Fee
budget is a fixed annual amount based on the current contract. The Investment Consultant’s fees
are projected to increase by $65,000 pending approval of the PFRS Board.

Respectfully submitted,
Lo/

David Jones, Plan Administrator

Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Attachments (1):

e Table 1: Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System — Two-year Proposed Administrative
Budgets

Agenda Item C2
PFRS Board Meeting
March 26, 2025



Internal Administrative Costs
PFRS Staff Salaries
Board Travel Expenditures
Staff Training
Staff Training - Tuition Reimbursement
Board Hospitality
Payroll Processing Fees
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Internal Service Fees (ISF)

Contract Services Contingency

Internal Administrative Costs Subtotal :

Actuary and Accounting Services
Audit
Actuary
Actuary and Accounting Subtotal:

Legal Services
City Attorney Salaries
Legal Contingency
Legal Services Subtotal:

Investment Services
Money Manager Fees
Custodial Fee
Investment Consultant
Investment Subtotal:

Total Operating Budget

OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Table 1

Two Year Proposed Administrative Budgets
FY 2025-2026 and FY 2026-2027

FY 2024-2025 Proposed Budget Budget Changes
Approved Budget FY 2025-2026 | FY 2026-2027 FY 2025-2026 | FY 2026-2027

$ 1,745,000 $ 1,860,000 $ 1,860,000 $ 115,000 $ -

52,500 52,500 52,500 - -

20,000 20,000 20,000 - -

7,500 7,500 7,500 - -

7,200 7,200 7,200 - -

40,000 40,000 40,000 - -

45,000 45,000 45,000 - -

88,000 95,000 95,000 7,000 -

50,000 50,000 50,000 - -

$ 2,055,200 $ 2,177,200 $ 2,177,200 $ 122,000 $ -
$ 54,400 $ 56,000 $ 57,700 $ 1,600 $ 1,700
50,900 52,400 54,000 1,500 1,600
$ 105,300 $ 108,400 $ 111,700 $ 3,100 $ 3,300

$ 220,700 $ 217,600 $ 217,600 $ (3,100) $ -

150,000 150,000 150,000 - -

$ 370,700 $ 367,600 $ 367,600 $ (3,100) $ -

$ 1,353,000 $ 1,353,000 $ 1,353,000 $ - $ -

124,500 124,500 124,500 - -

100,000 165,000 165,000 65,000 -

$ 1,577,500 $ 1,642,500 $ 1,642,500 $ 65,000 $ -
$ 4,108,700 $ 4,295,700 $ 4,299,000 $ 187,000 $ 3,300
4.55% 0.08%




AGENDA REPORT

CITY OF OAKLAND

TO: Oakland Police & Fire Retirement ~ FROM: David F. Jones
System (PFRS) PFRS Plan Administrator &
Board of Administration Secretary

SUBJECT: Authorization and Reimbursement ~ DATE: March 26, 2025
of Board Member Godfrey’s Travel
& Education Expenses

Jaime T. Godfrey, Board Member of the Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System Board,
requests authorization for reimbursement of travel and/or board education-related funds for the event
detailed below.

PFRS staff has verified that budgeted funds are available for this Board Member to be reimbursed
and recommends the reimbursement of travel/education funds for the event below be approved by
board motion.

Travel/Education Event: Institutional Investors Public Funds Forum
Event Location: The Beverly Hilton in Los Angeles, CA
Event Date: April 28, 2025 - April 30, 2025

Estimated Event Expense: $1,700.00

Notes:

* If enrollment, registration, or admission expenses are required, the fund will process a check in advance and pay vendor
directly; all other board-approved reimbursements will be made upon delivery of receipts to staff by the travelling party.
Cancellation of event attendance requires return of all reimbursed funds paid to attendee to the fund.

For questions regarding this report, please contact Jessica Lloyd, Administrative Analyst I, at (510)
238-7608.

Respectfully submitted,
L2/
David F. Jones

Plan Administrator & Secretary
Oakland Police & Fire Retirement System

Attachments: PFRS Board of Administration
(1) Resolution 8126 March 26, 2025
(2) Conference Agenda Agenda ltem: C3



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 8126



Approved to
OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT BOARD Form

CITY OF OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA and Legality |
Sebbie Ulsrrer
RESOLUTION NoO. 8126 Selia Warren (Mar 20, 2025 16:42 CDT)

ON MOTION OF MEMBER SECONDED BY MEMBER

RESOLUTION APPROVING REQUEST OF OAKLAND POLICE AND FIRE
RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD MEMBER JAIME T. GODFREY TO TRAVEL
AND ATTEND THE INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS PUNLIC FUNDS FORUM
IN LOS ANGELES, CA, FROM APRIL 27, 2025, THROUGH APRIL 30,
2025AND AUTHORIZING THE REIMBURSEMENT OF FEES AND TRAVEL-
RELATED EXPENSES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED ONE-THOUSAND
SEVEN HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,700.00)

WHEREAS, the Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) Education and Travel
Policy (“Travel Policy”) requires that PFRS Board members and staff obtain prior Board
approval of all education and travel-related expenses that will be reimbursed by PFRS;
and;

WHEREAS, PFRS Board Member Godfrey would like to attend the Institutional Investors
Public Funds Forum in Los Angeles, CA, from April 27, 2025, through April 30, 2025;
and

WHEREAS, in compliance with Section IV (13)(c) of the Travel Policy, Member Godfrey
has submitted documentation showing the estimated travel-related expenses to attend
the Conference will be approximately One Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($1,700.00);
now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED: That PFRS Board Member Jaime T. Godfrey’s request to attend the
Institutional Investors Public Funds Forum in Los Angeles, CA, from April 27, 2025,
through April 30, 2025, at an estimated cost of One Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars
($1,700.00) is approved; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the PFRS Board authorizes member reimbursement of the
travel-related expenses in an amount not to exceed One Thousand Seven Hundred
Dollars ($1,700.00) for Member Godfrey’s attendance at the Institutional Investors Public
Funds Forum.

IN BOARD MEETING, CiTY HALL, OAKLAND, CA MARCH 26, 2025
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:

AYES: MELIA, NICHELINI, ROSEMAN, SPEAKMAN, WILKINSON, & PRESIDENT JOHNSON
NOES:

ABSTAIN: GODFREY

ABSENT:

ATTEST:

PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

SECRETARY



ATTACHMENT 2

Institutional Investors Public Funds Forum 2025



INSTITUTIONAL @
INVESTOR

Public Funds Roundtable

April 28-30, 2025
The Beverly Hilton
Los Angeles, CA

Alternative Investor Institute

Institutional Investor Institute



Institutional Investor

Institutional Investor would
like to thank the esteemed
advisory members for their
invaluable support and
guidance in shaping

our 2025 Public Funds
Roundtable program.

Page 2

Public Funds Roundtable

Alternative Investor Institute / Institutional Investor Institute

Marcus Frampton, Chief Investment Officer, Alaska
Permanent Fund Corporation

Mark Steed, Chief Investment Officer, Arizona Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System

Mario Therrien, Head of Investment Funds and External
Management, Caisse de depot et placement du
Quebec (CDPQ)

David Kushner, Chief Investment Officer, City of Austin
Employees' Retirement System

Ryan Wagner, Chief Investment Officer, Dallas Police &
Fire Pension System

Katherine Molnar, Chief Investment Officer, Fairfax
County Police Officers Retirement System

Lamar Taylor, Chief Investment Officer, State Board of
Administration of Florida

Ajit Singh, Chief Investment Officer, Houston
Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement Fund

Scott Davis, Chief Investment Officer, Indiana Public
Retirement System

Bryan Fujita, Chief Investment Officer, Los Angeles Fire
and Police Pensions (LAFPP)

Andrew Palmer, Chief Investment Officer, Maryland
State Retirement and Pension System

Michael G. Trotsky, Executive Director & Chief Investment
Officer, Massachusetts Pension Reserves Investment
Management Board (Mass PRIM)

JillE. Schurtz, Executive Director and Chief Investment
Officer, Minesota State Board of Investment

Jeb Burns, Chief Investment Officer, Municipal
Employees' Retirement System of Michigan

Ellen Hung, Chief Investment Officer, Nebraska
Investment Council

Bob Jacksha, Chief Investment Officer, New Mexico
Educational Retirement Board

Robert “Vince” Smith, Deputy State Investment Officer
and Chief Investment Officer, New Mexico State
Investment Council

Farouki Majeed, Chief Investment Officer, Ohio
School Employees Retirement System

James Davis, Chief Investment Officer, OPTrust

Molly Murphy, Chief Investment Officer, Orange
County Employees Retirement System

Steve Swanson, Executive Director, Park
Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Chicago

Richelle Sugiyama, Chief Investment Officer,
Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho

Steve Edmundson, Chief Investment Officer,
Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada
(NVPERS)

Steve Davis, Chief Investment Officer, Sacramento
County Employees' Retirement System

Donald Pierce, Chief Investment Officer, San
Bernardino County Employees' Retirement
Association (SBCERA)

Alison Romano, Chief Executive Officer & Chief
Investment Officer, San Francisco Employees'
Retirement System

Leola Ross, Deputy Chief Investment Officer and
Head of ESG, Seattle City Employees Retirement
System

Edwin Denson, Chief Investment Officer, State of
Wisconsin Investment Board (SWIB)

Ghiané Jones, Deputy Chief Investment Officer,
Teachers' Retirement System of the State of
IWinois

John D. Skjervem, Chief Investment Officer, Utah
Retirement Systems

Jon Spinney, Chief Investment Officer & VP of
Quantitative Investing, Vestcor

Andrew Junkin, Chief Investment Officer, Virginia
Retirement System

Sam Masoudi, Chief Investment Officer, Wyoming
Retirement System

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Page 3

Public Funds Roundtable

Alternative Investor Institute / Institutional Investor Institute

Ted Noon, Senior Vice President, Director,
Americas Client Group, Acadian Asset
Management LLC

Bret Young, Head of North American
Institutional Sales, American Century
Investments

Ria Nova, Partner, Client and Product
Solutions, Apollo Global Management

Brad Thomas, Head of Liquid and Private Credit
Investor Relations, Bain Capital Credit

Dane Fraser, Managing Director, Balyasny
Asset Management

Chantal Manseau, Head of Institutional
Business Development, Capital Group

Frank Jordan, Partner, Head of Client
Partnership Group, Crestline Investors Inc

Tyler Poniatowski, Co-Head of Sales and
Relationship Management, The D. E. Shaw
Group

Casey Condron, Head of Institutional Client
Group, Fidelity Investments

Michael Foley, Head of U.S. institutional
Services, Franklin Templeton

Stephanie vy Sanford, Co-Head of Americas
Institutional Client Business,
Goldman Sachs Asset Management

Erinn King, Chief Strategy Officer & Co-Head of
Client Team, Income Research + Management

T.F. Meagher, Head of North America
Institutional Distribution, Janus Henderson
Investors

Jason Filiberti, Senior Managing Director, Head
of Institutional Business Development, Kayne
Anderson Capital Advisors, L.P.

Jennifer Ryan, Managing Director - Head of
North American Distribution, Lazard Asset
Management

Jennifer Lundmark Global Head of Distribution,
Private Markets, Manulife Investment
Management

Chris Crevier, Managing Director - Institutional
Client Group, Neuberger Berman

Dimitrios N. Stathopoulos. Senior Managing
Director, Head of Americas Institutional
Advisory Services, Nuveen

Seema Dala, Partner and Co-Head of U.S.
Institutional Client Services, Orbis Investment
Management

Michael Niosi, Principal, Institutional Client
Advisory - North America, PGIM Fixed Income

Michael Chandra, Managing Director, Head of
U.S. Public Client Practice, PIMCO

Amanda Wilson, Managing Director, Head of US
& Canada Institutional and Global Consultant
Relations, Principal Asset Management

Maggie Gresio, Managing Director and Head of
the Client Partner Group, Sculptor Capital
Management

Brett Hickey, Founder & CEO, Star Mountain
Capital LLC

Joseph Carieri, Group Managing Director - Head
of Marketing, The TCW Group

Russ Andrews, Partner, Waterfall Asset
Management

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Early Registration

Private Conversations for Asset Allocators Only

Closed Door A: CIOs Only

The Job of Being a Public Fund Chief Investment Officer: Approaches to Today’s Reality

The CIO of a public fund operates at the intersection of investment strategy, organizational
leadership and political acumen. This closed-door session examines how the role is transforming in
a changing world that demands new skills, from managing generational shifts within teams to
fostering effective communication with boards, legislators and other stakeholders. We explore
practical approaches for team development, educating and aligning the board, and navigating the
unique challenges of balancing investment goals with organizational and political realities.

Session Leaders:
Lamar Taylor, Chief Investment Officer, State Board of Administration of Florida

Anne-Marie Fink, Chief Investment Officer, Private Markets and Funds Alpha, State of Wisconsin
Investment Board

Closed Door B: Non-ClOs

A Practical Look at the Role of the Investment Team in Supporting the CIO in the Success of the
Investment Program: Approaches & Insights

The success of a public fund’s investment program hinges on more than just the leadership of the
CIO. The investment team is the backbone of the fund and plays a pivotal role in supporting CIOs in
ensuring the success of the investment program. This session explores practical approaches to how
team members can enhance their effectiveness — from aligning strategic priorities with CIO
objectives to fostering a culture of innovation, accountability, and effective risk management. This is
intended to be an interactive discussion — come ready to participate!

Discussion Leader:
James Ko, Deputy Chief Investment Officer, Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System
Anton Orlich, Managing Investment Director, Private Equity, CalPERS

Welcome Reception for Allocator Attendees and Ill Members

Page 4

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Registration Check-in Opens

Private Breakfasts
Allocators Only - Chair’s Closed-Door Breakfast Discussions

These closed-door sessions offer a unique opportunity to connect and discuss the issues that
matter most with your colleagues. These peer-driven conversations provide a trusted space to share
candid insights on challenges, exchange ideas, explore solutions and build valuable connections
with your industry colleagues facing similar complexities.

A) Closed Door A: State Funds

Breakfast Leaders:
Scott Davis, Chief Investment Officer, Indiana Public Retirement System
Michael Brakebill, Chief Investment Officer, Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System

B) Closed Door B: County Funds

Breakfast Leaders:

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer, Contra Costa, County Employees’' Retirement
Association

Donald Pierce, Chief Investment Officer, San Bernardino County Employees' Retirement
Association (SBCERA)

Stephen Sexauer, Chief Investment Officer, San Diego County Employees Retirement
Association

C) ClosedDoor C: City Funds

Breakfast Leaders:

Alison Romano, CEO & CIO, San Francisco Employees’ Retirement System

Leola Ross, Deputy Chief Investment Officer and Head of ESG, Seattle City Employees’ Retirement
System

Consultants and Members Networking Breakfast
Kick off the day by reconnecting with familiar faces, and making new acquaintances as we welcome

our Consultant and Member constituents to a relaxed and informal networking opportunity over
breakfast

Transition

Page 5

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Welcome and Introductory Remarks

Catherine Martin, Senior Director of Product and Content, All/lll, Institutional Investor

Chair's Welcome

Christopher Ailman, Founder & CEO, Ailman Advisers

The Washington View: The First 100 Days & Policy Outlook Under the Trump Administration

A Practical Take on the 2025 Macro-Economic Global Growth Outlook

Tabletop Discussions: Non-Partisan Perspectives on Investment Opportunities &
Challenges Under the Trump Administration

Building on the content delivered in the previous two sessions, attendees will spend the next 25
minutes sharing their non-partisan perspectives and insights in small groups at their tables. How
do you and your peers view the investment outlook and the related opportunities and challenges
under the Trump Administration? What investment opportunities will come to the fore and which
will recede? Where do opinions diverge vs. converge?

Coffee & Networking Break

TraCkS Concurrent Tracks: Roundtable attendees have their choice of sessions in the following four tracks.

TRACKS 1, 2 & 3: PRACTICAL INSIGHTS & SOLUTIONS: ‘HOW ARE YOU APPROACHING...?’

Interacting with your peers on different approaches to common conundrums in the current
investment environment is a highlight and value add of attendance. The sessions within the first three
tracks offer an opportunity to directly seek solutions to such challenges through a moderated open
question and answer format.

Come ready with questions and be willing to engage and offer your insights as solutions for your
peers in the room.

The sessions in tracks 1, 2 & 3 are open to all, and all are encouraged to actively participate.
TRACK 4: ALLOCATOR MASTER CLASS (ALLOCATORS ONLY)

The allocator Master Class is a small group session. The number of attendees is limited to 25. Pre-
registration is required on a first come, first served basis and is limited to allocator attendees only.

PUBLIC EQUITIES & INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS

Page 6 April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Facilitated by session leaders with differing perspectives, suggestions for topics are offered below
but participants will ultimately drive the discussion based upon their own questions and need for
insights within the broader areas of ‘public equities’ and ‘international investments’.

...Your Public Equities Portfolio?

Suggested topics for discussion:

e  Opportunities vs. constraints — decomposing indexes in the new world

e  Active vs. passive

e Managing concentration risk

e U.S.vs.non-U.S.: Should you still have an international exposure considering how well the
U.S. has done? How to weight it — by global market cap or by GDP ranking?

Session Facilitators:

Rose Dean, Partner, NEPC, LLC

Shanta Chary, Director of Investments, Orange County Employees Retirement System
Alex Torrens, Head of North America, Walter Scott & Partners Limited

...Investing in the International Markets in the Current Reality?
...Finding the Investable Markets? Is the US Really the Best Opportunity Going Forward?

Suggested topics for discussion:

. How are allocators approaching international markets in the current environment?

e  Whatis your outlook internationally with anticipated policy? Is the U.S. really the best opportunity
going forward?

e What has been the true impact of geopolitics on returns?

e  How will deglobalization further impact markets/investment opportunities?

e  How to classify emerging markets vs. developed markets

e Where are the opportunities/no-go areas - headwinds/tailwinds?

e China?India? Japan? Europe?

Session Facilitators:

Edward Bozaan, Senior Portfolio Manager — Public Equities, Arizona Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS)

Ryan Wagner, Chief Investment Officer, Dallas Police & Fire Pension System

Page 7

FIXED INCOME & POLICY BENCHMARKS

Facilitated by session leaders with differing perspectives, suggestions for topics are offered below
but participants will ultimately drive the discussion based upon their own questions and need for
insights within the broader areas of ‘investment policy benchmarks’ and ‘fixed income’.

...Recalibrating Fixed Income Investment Policy Benchmarks for Today’s Markets?

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

In today’s investment reality, marked by fluctuating interest rates and the evolving balance between
public and private markets, traditional investment benchmarks may fall short. Not too long ago, fixed
income had 2-3 benchmarks, but today we only have one. Why? Should we revisit having more? This
session explores perspectives on refocusing policy benchmarks to align with modern market
dynamics, manage risk effectively and achieve long-term objectives in an ever-changing environment.

Session Facilitators:

Kevin Kearns, Portfolio Manager and Head, Alpha Strategies, Loomis, Sayles & Company
Bryan Fujita, Chief Investment Officer, Los Angeles Fire & Police Pensions

Ned McGuire, Managing Director, Wilshire

...Your Fixed Income Portfolio in an Uncertain Rate Environment?

Suggested topics for discussion:

e  Where does fixed income fit in your portfolio in today’s rate environment?

e  Should private fixed income be part of your main fixed income allocation and not within your
alts portfolio?

e Asreturns on cash drop, what public fixed income instruments are benefiting from new
inflows?

. How are you viewing public vs. private fixed income?

. How will spread volatility affect you in the future?

Session Facilitators:

Scott Richardson, SVP, Director, Systematic Credit, Acadian Asset Management

Laura Wirick, Managing Principal, Consultant, Meketa Investment Group

Todd Ludgate, Senior Investment Officer — Fixed Income, State Board of Administration of Florida

Page 8

‘TABOO’ INVESTMENTS

Facilitated by session leaders with differing perspectives, suggestions for topics are offered below
but participants will ultimately drive the discussion based upon their own questions and need for
insights within the broader area of ‘”taboo” investments’.

...Investing in Defense? What is Acceptable?

lan Bremmer recently stated that we are in the third most dangerous geopolitical time since World War
Two. As global tensions rise, defense investments are increasingly scrutinized through ethical,
geopolitical, and fiduciary lenses. When do defense investments become acceptable in portfolios?
And what type of defense investments are “acceptable”? This session examines the challenges that
public fund investment offices face in evaluating defense-related opportunities, addressing questions
of acceptability, stakeholder expectations, and alignment with investment mandates.

Session Facilitators:
Poorvi R. Parekh, Director, Canterbury Consulting
Sarah Bernstein, Head of Sustainability & Managing Principal, Meketa Investment Group

... The Practicalities of Finding the Middle Ground: Investing Across Different LP Views

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Public pensions have a sacred obligation to maximize returns at a prudent level of risk. While U. S. -
based public pensions generally have the same fiduciary duty, different investment beliefs have
become clearer, which has created a noticeable divide between pro and anti ESG LPs. Moreover,
geopolitical turbulence, push back in some areas, and litigation has affected capital raising and
product development. We will discuss how asset owners have reacted to the new investment
landscape and explore how to recalibrate through challenges and successes.

Session Facilitators:

Andy Siwo, Head of Sustainable Investments and Climate Solutions, New York State Common
Retirement Fund

Steve Swanson, Executive Director, Park Employees' Annuity & Benefit Fund of Chicago

ALLOCATOR MASTER CLASS

To optimize interactivity and provide the best overall learning experience, the number of attendees
for this session will be limited to 25. Pre-registration is required on a first come, first served basis
and is limited to allocator attendees only.

The Art of Effective Communication for Senior Investment Officers

Effective communication is a critical skill for Chief Investment Officers (ClO) and is typically learned
‘on the job’ meaning that many investment officers gain little to no experience over the course of
their careers until they land the CIO role. From communicating with investment committees and
boards, to external stakeholders such as managers and consultants, the capability for effective,
clear, and at times, politically sensitive communication, is a must for public fund ClIOs and those
aspiring to the role. This Master Class will equip attendees with the tools to:

e  Foster stakeholder trust
e Translate complex financial insights into clear, actionable messages
. Navigate challenging conversations with confidence and clarity

Session Facilitator:
Christopher Ailman, Founder & CEO, Ailman Advisers

Seated Lunch

Transition

Page 9

Allocator Head-to-Head: Public vs. Private Markets in the Current Investment Environment

In this fast-paced head-to-head our session participants explore the merits and drawbacks of public
vs. private market investments in the current environment. With one taking a primarily pro-public
market stance and the other offering a more pro-private market view, our participants make their
cases over the course of the next 20 minutes.

Session Facilitator:

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Trevor A. Jackson, Jr., Managing Director, Portfolio Advisory, Aksia, LLC

Session Participants:

Daniel Garant, Executive Vice President, BCI
Farouki Majeed, Chief Investment Officer, School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS)

Re-Risk or Derisk? Differing Perspectives in the Current Rate Environment Amid Evolving
Demographics

Today’s higher rate environment and shifting demographics present pivotal questions for public
funds. Following on from the head-to-head discussion, this session examines whether public funds
should derisk with fixed income or pursue riskier strategies to meet long term obligations. In
addressing this question, our participants also explore aligning investment policy benchmarks with
demographic realities and managing reinvestment risk.

Session Moderator:
Mikhail Kuznetsov, Investment Strategist, New Mexico State Investment Council

Session Panelists:

Susie Ardeshir, Executive Director / Chief Investment Officer, Arlington County Employees’
Retirement System (ACERS)

Stephen Mullin, Managing Director, Head of High-Grade Portfolio Management, Public Fixed Income
MetLife Investment Management (MIM)

Bob Jacksha, Chief Investment Officer, New Mexico Educational Retirement Board

Tabletop Discussions: What Does the Current Macro Environment Look Like for Risk-Taking &
How Are You Approaching?

In small discussion groups, attendees will spend the next 20 minutes building on the content shared
in the previous sessions, sharing their thoughts — and approaches - on risk-taking in the current
investment environment.

Networking & Coffee Break: Donation Station Assembling Relief Kits to be Donated to Charity

Page 10

Part One - ClO Perspective: Building Resilient Portfolios Under a New Administration,
Shifting Policy & an Evolving Macro Environment

Following on from yesterday’s “Manager Perspective” discussion on building resilient portfolios and

building on content delivered yesterday morning on the policy and macro-economic outlook, we now
hear from Chief Investment Officers (ClOs) on what they are watching most closely and their
approaches to portfolio resiliency in the current environment.

Session Moderator:
Eileen Neill, Managing Director and Senior Consultant, Verus Investments

Session Panelists:
Timothy Reese, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer, Pennsylvania Municipal

Retirement System
Alison Romano, CEO & CIO, San Francisco Employees’ Retirement System

A Conversation with Ken Kroner

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Institutional Investor Institute

Closing Keynote Speaker

Depart for Reception & Dinner
Convene in the hotel lobby to depart by coach.

Page 11

Cocktail Reception & Dinner: Sony Tour and Dinner

Step back into Hollywood history on the lot of Sony Studios. A perfect blend of Hollywood's past and
present, this evening will dazzle guests as they experience sets, soundstages and the entertainment
community at large. Originally started in 1915 as Ince/Triangle Studios, the studio property quickly
changed hands to MGM. It's MGM that took the studio through a large expansion during the Golden Age
of Hollywood with films such as The Wizard of Oz and Singin' In the Rain. Sony purchased the lot in 1990
and has continued the legacy of the arts along with growing their diverse business of music, editing,
gaming and more. Studio guides will lead guests through current production facilities that may include
one of the two "acoustically perfect"” recording studios in the world. a favorite of composer John
Williams, or the set of long-time hit game show Jeopardy.

Following the tours and cocktail reception, dinner will take place in the Dining Room overlooking the
Columbia Pictures Capra Park. A quiet and elegant space in the heart of Screenland will be a great way to
enjoy the company of others. Catered by the team of renowned chef, Wolfgang Puck, dinner will delight with
seasonal California flavors.

=N A
o) ?r”
Bl
I

gy~

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

Registration Check-in and Networking over Breakfast

Closed-Door Breakfast Discussions Among Peers

A) Canadian Allocators Only Breakfast: A Closed-Door Discussion Among Peers

Canadian allocators are invited to an exclusive closed-door working breakfast. During this informal 45-
minute discussion, allocators will have the opportunity to gain insights and share best practices with
their peers, as well as inquiring about the challenges that are keeping you up at night.

Session Facilitator:
Zargaa Shaikh, Managing Director, Completion Portfolio Strategies, Total Portfolio Management,
OPTrust

B) U.S. Pension Plan ClOs and Deputy ClOs - Managing Up & Working with Consultants

These closed-door sessions offer a unique opportunity to connect and discuss the issues that matter
most with your colleagues. These peer-driven conversations provide a trusted space to share candid
insights on challenges, exchange ideas, explore solutions and build valuable connections with your
industry colleagues facing similar complexities.

Closed Door: Large Funds

Session Facilitators:
Christopher Ailman, Founder & CEO, Ailman Advisers
Ellen Hung, State Investment Officer, Nebraska Investment Council

Closed Door: Small Funds

Session Facilitator:
David Silber, Chief Investment Officer, City of Milwaukee Employees' Retirement System

C) Allocator Mid-Career: Transitioning to the Role of Chief Investment Officer

Building on Monday’s closed door that examined the role of the investment team in supporting the CIO
in the success of the investment program, we now explore what it takes to step into the role of the Chief
Investment Officer.

Senior investment officers often face the challenge of being siloed in specific asset classes, lacking
comprehensive portfolio and liquidity management experience and perspectives. This closed-door
session explores the leadership, strategic thinking, and cross-functional expertise needed to break out of
these silos and transition to the CIO role. We also explore how to navigate the most direct career path to
the role of CIO.



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

Session Facilitator:
Jonathan Grabel, Chief Investment Officer, Los Angeles County Employees Retirement Association
(LACERA)

D) Members Only Breakfast: A Conversation with Paul O’Brien, Former Deputy Chief Investment
Officer at the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA)

Join us as we welcome Institutional Investor’s newest Institution Chair and in-house advisor, Paul
O’Brien. Paul is the former Deputy Chief Investment Officer of the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority
(ADIA), a trusted advisor to several leading sovereign wealth funds, and the Chair of II’s Middle East
Investor Institute (MEII). In this session, Paul will share key insights and discuss what’s top of mind for
2025.

Networking Breakfast for All Other Attendees

Transition

Chair’s Welcome & Polling

Attendees will be polled on several high-interest topics using an anonymous, interactive electronic response
system in the opening session and subsequent sessions. The aggregated results of the poll will be displayed
instantaneously on-screen to help illuminate the discussions which follow. By doing this, we will provide all
attendees with valuable benchmarks and unique insights.

Cynthia Steer, Chair, Alternative Investor Institute & Institutional Investor Institute, Institutional Investor

Page 13

Part Two - Manager Perspective: Building Resilient Portfolios Under a New Administration, Shifting
Policy & an Evolving Macro Environment

Navigating evolving policy priorities, shifting global dynamics, and market volatility comes with the turf for
senior investment executives. Now, with a new administration in place, how are managers viewing the current
economic and geopolitical landscape and what this means for portfolio resiliency?

Session Moderator:
Thomas Kim, Senior Investment Officer, SBCERA

Session Panelists:
Ashwin Thapar, Senior Vice President & Head of Multi-Asset Class Investing, D.E. Shaw Investment
Management

Fireside Chat: Michael Rees, Co-President, Blue Owl Capital Inc.

Michael Rees will be interviewed by Trevor A. Jackson, Jr., Managing Director, Portfolio Advisory, Aksia,
LLC

Tabletop Discussions: Managing the Complexity of Private Market Portfolios in a High Pay Out
Environment

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

Coffee & Experiential Networking Break: Donation Station
Assembling tools for schools and birthday boxes to be donated to charity

TI‘aCkS Concurrent Tracks

Roundtable attendees have their choice of sessions in the following four tracks.
The sessions in tracks 1, 2 & 3 are open to all, and all are encouraged to actively participate.

Track 4 is an ‘Allocator Master Class’ which is for allocators only. The number of attendees is limited to 25.
Pre-registration is required on a first come, first served basis.

TOTAL PORTFOLIO APPROACH

Total Portfolio Approach (TPA): What is it & Why is it Gaining Momentum?

What is the Total Portfolio Approach (TPA) and why is it gaining traction among public funds as a holistic
investment strategy? In this discussion we delve into the principles behind this framework, which
emphasizes unified decision-making across asset classes to enhance agility and optimize returns. We hear
from those who have adopted this model and the benefits they are realizing.

Session Moderator:

Joshua Emanuel, Chief Investment Officer, Wilshire

Session Panelists:

Paul O’Brien, former Deputy Chief Investment Officer, Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA); Chair of II’s
Middle East Investor Institute (MEII)

Lamar Taylor, Chief Investment Officer, State Board of Administration of Florida

Think Tank & Deeper Dive: Is A Total Portfolio Approach (TPA) Right for You?

TPA offers a unified framework for managing investments, but is it the best fit for your fund’s goals and
governance? This session explores the pros and cons of adopting this strategy, key considerations for
implementation, including how to change your governance to accommodate it, and how to evaluate its
alignment with your institution’s unique needs. Hear from those who have navigated the transition and gain
insights to make an informed decision.

Session Facilitators:

David Tien, Managing Director, Active Portfolio Design, CPP Investments
Edwin Denson CIO, State of Wisconsin Investment Board

Scott Whalen, Managing Director and Senior Consultant, Verus

PRIVATE CREDIT

Private & Structured Credit Shark Tank: Which is the Most Compelling Investment Opportunity?

Page 14 April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

In this interactive shark tank-styled session, leading private and structured credit managers pitch their
differentiated strategies to a panel of allocators. After an audience poll to capture initial views, each
manager will present their case followed by a round of Q&A with a panel of allocators to assess the
potential risks and rewards of each opportunity. We close with a second audience poll to assess whether
perspectives have shifted. Which is the most compelling investment opportunity?

Session Participants:
Himani Trivedi, Head of Structured Credit, Nuveen
Amy Mathews, Managing Director, Head of Venture Capital Coverage, Vista Credit Partners

Navigating Opportunities Within Asset-Backed Finance: The Next Frontier for Private Credit?

The diverse and expanding private credit market offers a wide array of opportunities for investors to
navigate. Following on from the shark tank, this session dives deeper into asset-backed finance (ABF).
Market analysts have indicated that there are over 80 different sub asset classes within ABF. What are they
and which are the most compelling and why?

Session Moderator:
Leandro A. Festino, Managing Principal, Meketa Investment Group

Session Panelists:

Richard Grimm, Managing Director, Pension Practice & Global Head of Credit, Cambridge Associates
Kevin Sterling Partner, Global Head of Asset Finance & Investment Grade Private Credit, Goldman Sachs
Asset Management

Page 15

PRIVATE EQUITY

Navigating Real Estate Valuations Amid Economic Uncertainty

As economic conditions remain volatile, understanding real estate valuations has never been more critical
for investors. This session examines how shifting interest rates, evolving market dynamics, and regional
disparities are influencing asset performance and investment strategies. The speakers will explore how to
mitigate risks and uncover opportunities in 2025’s complex real estate landscape. How can investors
position their portfolios to maximize returns while navigating uncertainty?

Session Moderator:
Chae Hong, Partner, Head of North America Real Estate, Aon Investments

Session Panelists:
Matthew Kaplan, Chairman, Group Head & Managing Director — Almanac Realty Investors, Neuberger
Berman

The Future of Digital Transformation: Investing in Companies that Drive Industry Change

As digital transformation continues to revolutionize industries with advancements in technologies like
artificial intelligence and cloud computing. These innovations are driving efficiency, enabling new revenue
streams, and redefining competitive landscapes. This panel will explore how forward-thinking companies
are leveraging these tools to stay ahead and create long-term value. From the rapid growth in software
investment to the increasing adoption of automation, discover where the most promising opportunities lie
for investors looking to support and benefit from this wave of transformation.

Session Moderator:
Christian De Leon, Senior Investment Consultant, Mercer

Session Panelist:
Anton Orlich, Managing Investment Director, Private Equity, CalPERS

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

Alex Bangash, Co-founder and Managing Director, Transpose Platform

ALLOCATOR MASTER CLASS

To optimize interactivity and provide the best overall learning experience, the number of attendees for this
session will be limited to 25. Pre-registration is required on a first come, first served basis and is limited to
allocator attendees only.

Mastering Manager Interviews: Best Practices for Public Fund Investment Officers

This interactive masterclass equips investment officers with strategies to conduct impactful manager
interviews, providing evaluation frameworks to enhance decision-making and maximize portfolio
outcomes. Learn how to ask the right questions, assess alignment with investment objectives, and identify
red flags. Through real-world examples and best practices, participants will leave with actionable insights
to enhance their manager selection process.

Session Facilitator:
Andy Siwo, Head of Sustainable Investments and Climate Solutions, New York State Common Retirement
Fund

Seated Lunch

Transition

Tracks

Concurrent Tracks
Roundtable attendees have their choice of sessions in the following three tracks

Page 16

DIGITAL CURRENCY

The Role of Digital Money in a Fiat Currency World & Implications for Institutional Investors

134 countries and currency unions, representing 98% of global GDP*, are exploring a CBDC (central bank
digital currency.) That number was just 35 five years ago. Central banks around the world are developing
CBDCs and the Trump administration has signaled its intentions to integrate cryptocurrency into the U.S.
government’s economic strategy and create a national bitcoin reserve. This session explores the latest
developments and the implications of digital fiat currency as it relates to the global markets and
institutional investment. Among the discussion points are:

e The institutionalization of digital currency under Trump policy: What does this mean in actuality? What
makes it institutional quality?

e  What are the implications of digital fiat currencies for the global markets/institutional investors?

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

° Is now the time?

*Source: Atlantic Council

A Candid Conversation Between Allocators: Assessing Digital Currency as an Investment for Public
Funds - Can they be Properly Custodied?

A growing number of states are exploring Bitcoin and other cryptocurrencies as investments for public
funds. In this frank conversation, our session participants discuss the “why’s” and “why nots” when it
comes to such investments. Among the discussion points are the shifts in fiscal policy, the necessary
due diligence, what would it take for the ‘non-believer’ to consider digital currency investments,
whether such investments can be properly custodied, and whether digital money should be used as a
hedging tool during economic uncertainty.

PRODUCTS, STRUCTURES & INNOVATION

What’s Coming Down the Pipeline? Product Innovation Amid the Rise of the Retail Market: The
Implications for Institutional Portfolios — the Manager Perspective

In the evolving private markets landscape, innovation in products and structures — particularly those
designed to tap into the burgeoning retail and High Net Worth (HNW) market — has the potential to unlock
opportunities and offer new portfolio solutions for institutional investors. Coupled with this, the impact of
disruptive technologies is expanding beyond optimizing operational efficiencies and is becoming a driver of
innovation in product offerings. How are managers approaching this evolving investment landscape, what
innovative products and structures are they prioritizing, and how are they viewing alignment with
institutional portfolios? How might strategies designed to attract retail and High Net Worth (HNW)
investors inspire new opportunities for institutional investors? And how will it affect 457s and other drop
plans?

Are They Additive to Portfolios? Assessing Different Fund Structures & Their Implementation
Considerations - the Allocator Perspective

Our panelists share their experiences and insights into the advantages, challenges, and
implementation best practices of different fund structures. Have they proven to be value-add from a
return point of view? Are they more liquid compared to traditional fund vehicles? Do the consultants
get it right? And, considering the significant resource allocation often required, are they ultimately
worth the time and effort? In this allocator-led session we discuss continuation vehicles;
(traditional) secondary funds; evergreen funds; co-investments; and Collective Investment Trusts
(CITs).

Session Panelists:
Sami Zahur, CEO, One Queen Capital Inc.
Steve Davis, Chief Investment Officer, Sacramento County Employees’ Retirement System

Page 17

PRIVATE EQUITY

Power Plays: Balancing Risks and Rewards in Energy Investments

The energy investment landscape is undergoing rapid transformation, driven by clean energy
advancements, and the growing demand for reliable power. While these trends offer significant
opportunities, investors must navigate challenges such as geopolitical tensions and regulatory

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor

Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

uncertainty. This session will explore how to balance the high rewards of emerging energy sectors with the
risks, while managing volatility. How can investors position themselves to thrive in this evolving energy
landscape?

Session Moderator:
Daniel E. Ingram, Partner, Head of Responsible Investing, Aon Investments

Session Panelists:

Ben Holthus, Investment Officer, Montgomery County Employee Retirement Plans

Donald Pierce, Chief Investment Officer, San Bernardino County Employees' Retirement Association
(SBCERA)

Digital Infrastructure: The New Frontier for Private Equity

With over $100 billion invested in data center projects in the past few years, the potential for growth in this
space is immense. This panel will explore the growing opportunities in data centers, fiber networks, and 5G
infrastructure, sectors that are driving significant returns for investors. Speakers will discuss how private
equity firms can strategically navigate this evolving landscape, balance risks, and identify high-return
opportunities. How can investors position themselves to capitalize on the next wave of digital
infrastructure growth?

Session Moderator:
Sheila Ryan, Partner, Pension Practice & Private Investment Portfolio Manager, Cambridge Associates

Panelists:
Ying Lin, Vice President, StepStone Group

Coffee & Networking Break

Collective Global: Allocator Collaboration to Realign the Venture Industry

Venture capital is a potentially high returning strategy, and venture-backed companies are key drivers of
global economic growth. Yet large allocators have historically faced barriers and misalighment in accessing
the asset class, with small allocations, high fees, and unpredictable distributions all impeding access at
scale. As Al, cloud computing, and other innovations fuel venture's growth, strong allocator partnerships,
and the flexible capital they can provide, are becoming key to the industry's institutionalization. This
session explores how allocators are collaborating to form strategic partnerships to gain better, more
aligned access to the industry.

Session Participants:
Molly Murphy, Chief Investment Officer, Orange County Employees’ Retirement System (OCERS)
will interview Daniel de Faro Adamson, Founder and co-CEO, Collective Global

Closing Keynote Speaker

Page 18

Reception & Dinner - Rooftop at The Beverly Hilton

April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Institutional Investor Public Funds Roundtable
Alternative Investor Institute

Page 19 April 28-30, 2025 | The Beverly Hilton, 9876 Wilshire Blvd, Beverly Hills, CA 90210



Quantitative Investment Firm Private and Confidential
Where Data, Innovation, and Market Expertise Drive Every Decision

Versor Trend Following

Oakland Police and Fire Retirement Systems

March 2025

Certain information in this presentation primarily consists of compilations of publicly available data. Versor Investments LP or any of its affiliates (collectively, “Versor Investments”) has obtained such data from what it believes to be reliable sources. However, Versor
Investments has no ability, and has not attempted independently, to verify any such information. Versor Investments’ analytics have been applied to such data to generate certain statistical conclusions and simulations. Such analytics necessarily involve applying Versor
Investments' models to historical data on a backtested basis and are subject, accordingly, to the material inherent limitations of backtested data. See disclosures at the end of this presentation.

V=RSOR



PRESENTERS

V=RSOR

Deepak Gurnani

Founder and Managing Partner

Deepak Gurnani is the Founder and Managing Partner of
Versor Investments. Deepak is the former CIO of
Investcorp’s Hedge Fund Group and was one of the
founding members in 1996. He was also a member of the
Management Committee there. Deepak retired from
Investcorp in March 2013. Prior to Investcorp, Deepak
Gurnani spent six years with Citicorp.

Deepak has conducted extensive research over the last
20+ years into various aspects of hedge fund investing —
analyzing risk and return of hedge funds, quantifying
alternative risk premia inherent in hedge fund returns,
using tactical asset allocation to enhance hedge fund
portfolio returns, integrating hedge funds into institutional
asset allocation and using separate accounts for risk
management. Deepak holds a BTech from the Indian
Institute of Technology, Delhi, and an MBA from the Indian
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.

DeWayne Louis

Founding Partner

DeWayne Louis joined Versor Investments as a Founding
Partner and is based in New York. DeWayne has over 20
years of experience in quantitative investment strategies,
investment banking, private equity and hedge funds. Prior
to Versor Investments, DeWayne joined Investcorp’s
Hedge Fund Group at the inception of the North America
and Europe branches. He remained there for nearly a
decade. Prior to Investcorp, DeWayne was an Associate
Director in UBS' Private Equity Secondary Group, focusing
on buying and selling private equity interests in the
secondary market. Earlier in his career, DeWayne was an
Associate in the Investment Banking Division of Credit
Suisse where he focused on mergers, acquisitions and
project finance transactions.

DeWayne serves on the board of the New York City
Economic Development Corporation (“NYCEDC"). NYCEDC
is the City's primary vehicle for promoting economic
growth in each of the five boroughs. DeWayne also serves
on the Board of the Brooklyn Public Library (“BPL"), one of
the nation’s largest public library systems. BPL is a
recognized leader in cultural offerings, literacy, out-of-
school-time services, workforce development programs,
and digital literacy. DeWayne holds a BS in Finance and
International Business with a French minor from
Georgetown University. There, he was a four-year varsity
letterman on the football team.



FIRM OVERVIEW

Versor Investments aims to
create diversified sources of
absolute returns across
multiple asset classes. Within a
scientific, hypothesis-driven
framework, Versor leverages
modern statistical methods and
vast datasets to drive every step
of the investment process.

- 1
AUM: $1.4 Billion
. 2
Employees: 52
1. As of December 31, 2024. AUM based on internal estimates. AUM as per SEC definition

for the purposes of Item 5.F on the Form ADV Part 1a.
2. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

V=RSOR

VERSOR EDGE

.

(]

O

Client Centered

100% employee ownership and substantial co-investment from partners

Innovative Culture
Challenge the status quo, embrace change, and explore new ideas
Collaborative team culture fosters innovation

Early adoption of machine learning, artificial intelligence, natural language
processing and alternative data sets

Experienced Team
25+ researchers with advanced degrees from a wide array of academic disciplines
Portfolio managers average 25+ years of experience

30+ published whitepapers

Novel Technology

Proprietary research platform to test new alpha models

State of the art technology infrastructure for risk management, portfolio
optimization, and trade execution

Pioneer (amongst hedge funds) in leveraging power of cloud computing

Strong D&l

80% of the Firm’'s ownership is held by ethnic and racial minority groups



1. As of December 31, 2024. AUM is
computed based on internal estimates.
AUM as per SEC definition for the
purposes of Item 5.F on the Form ADV
Part1a.

2. Net Asset Value as of December 31,
2024.

3. Net Asset Value as of December 31,
2024.

The AUM is allocated to the respective
strategy across Versor advised multi-
strategy accounts and AUM of a
separate fund.

Merger Arbitrage - AUM represents
Assets Under Management for the
Versor Merger Arbitrage strategy. AUM
for the strategy is estimated by
applying a notional capital allocation to
the AUM of the multi-strategy accounts
and represents the AUM of a separate
fund allocated to the strategy.

Quant Equity - AUM represents Assets
Under Management for the Versor
Stock Selection and Versor Equity
Prism strategy. The AUM for the
strategy is estimated by applying
notional capital allocation to the AUM
of the multi-strategy  accounts,
representing the AUM of a separate
fund and the GMV (Gross Market
Value) of fund of fund account
allocated to the strategy.

Futures and FX - AUM represents
Assets Under Management for Versor
Trend Following and Versor Global
Macro strategies.

Versor Trend Following - AUM
represents Assets Under Management
for the Versor Trend Following
Strategy. AUM for the strategy is
estimated by applying a notional
capital allocation to the AUM of the
multi-strategy accounts and represents
the AUM of a separate fund allocated
to the strategy.

Versor Global Macro - AUM represents
combined Assets Under Management
for the Versor Global Macro strategies
including its sub-strategies. The AUM
for the strategy is estimated by
applying notional capital allocation to
the AUM of the multi-strategy
accounts, representing the AUM of a
separate fund and the GMV (Gross
Market Value) of futures component of
a fund of fund account allocated to the
strategy.

V=RSOR

AUM DISTRIBUTION

As of December 31, 2024, Versor manages $1.4 billion' across a global group of institutional clients. Versor has co-
investment in all the product offerings across hedge funds and alternative risk premia

AUM? by Investor Category

Consultants

Public Pension Plans

Fund of Funds

Proprietary Capital

Registered Investment Advisors

AUM?3 by Strategy %

Hedge Funds

Merger Arbitrage

Quant Equity

Futures and FX

Alternative Risk Premia

GETT
Equity Prism
Merger Arbitrage

Equity Summit

Global Macro
Trend Following
Stock Selection

Alternative Return Capture



1. Data as of December 31, 2024.

2. References equity ownership of
Versor Investments LP.

V=RSOR

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION!

ESG and diversity & inclusion are core components of Versor's DNA

Key Pillars of Versor’s DEI Policy

Equal Opportunities: Fair hiring, compensation, and promotion
policies

Inclusive Workplace : Versor thrives on diverse perspectives and
independent thinking

* Respect & Dignity: Zero tolerance for discrimination or
harassment

Training & Education: D&l awareness programs and professional
development for underrepresented groups

Accountability: Robust reporting, compliance, and regular
assessments of DEI initiatives

Key Initiatives

Internship Program: Hired and trained diverse interns — some
converted to full-time roles

Inclusive Hiring Practices: Open job descriptions considering
broader education & professional backgrounds

Industry Engagement: Active involvement with organizations
promoting diversity

Founding Partner Diversity

Black

White

Asian



1. Data as of December 31, 2024.

V=RSOR

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION!

Diversity Representation Survey for Oakland Police and Fire

Data as of December 31, 2024

Firm Name

Versor Investments LP

Product Name

Versor Trend Following

Total Number of Employees

52

Perc.entage (%) of Bo.ard Percentage(%) of Firm Percentage (%) of Firm
of Directors / Managing (Entire Staff) (Invesi.:ment
Members Professionals)
Race and Ethnicity
African American/Black 20.00% 1.92% -
Asian/Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 40.00% 94.23% 95.12%
Latino/Hispanic - - -
White 40.00% 3.85% 4.88%
American Indian/Alaska Native - - -
Other - - -
Gender
Male 100% 90.38% 92.68%
Female - 9.62% 7.32%
Non-ldentified/Other - - -




ORGANIZATION'

Deepak Gurnani
Founder and Managing Partner

Ludger Hentschel Nirav Shah

DeWayne Louis Andrew Flynn
Founding Partner Founding Partner Founding Partner Founding Partner
Investments COO
| | | | |
Marketing Futures and FX Equities Operations and HR / Admin Accounting and
(3) (10) (22) Trading ) Compliance
Technology (2)
(9)

V=RSOR

Versor Investments is 100% owned by the Partners
Diversity and inclusion are core components of Versor's DNA

1. Data as of December 31, 2024.



STRATEGY OVERVIEW

Trend Following invests in over 100 contracts of futures and futures-related instruments across
four major asset classes: commodities, equity indices, bonds and currency markets globally. The
portfolio takes long or short positions in any of these instruments in markets exhibiting price

Universe

1. 100+ contracts across commodities,
equities, fixed income and currencies

2. Developed and emerging markets

3. Most liquid contracts globally

V=RSOR

trends (up or down).

Alpha Forecast Models

Multiple alpha forecast models: MA
cross-over, time-series momentum,
other trend models, futures curve

(e.g., carry)

. Multiple forecast horizons from 1

month to 1year

Differentiators

Proprietary alpha forecast models

. Dynamic allocations based on signal

strength

. Enhanced performance around trend

reversals

. Diversification across forecasts and

contracts

. Efficient electronic trading



The above chart shows a high-level
picture of portfolio construction
process. For illustrative purposes only.

V=RSOR

INVESTMENT PROCESS OVERVIEW

Security Alpha Forecasts

Commodities
Futures

Equity Indices
(Developed)
Futures

Equity Indices
(Emerging) Futures

Fixed Income
Futures

Currencies
(Developed)
Forwards

Currencies
(Emerging)
Forwards

Risk Model

-
O
—

O

-]

—
)

(%)

-

(0]
@)
Q
e
=

-

o
al

Liquidity &
Transaction
Costs

Versor Trend Following Portfolio

Custom
Trading
Algorithms

Order
Management

Electronic Trading

and Execution



RESEARCH ENHANCEMENTS

Research Enhancements Over the Years

+ Expanded alpha factors across all the asset classes and optimized rollover strategies to reduce
costs while maintaining trend exposure

 Broadened investible universe with esoteric commodities and mini contracts for enhanced
diversification and risk management

* Integrated short-term non-trend signals to improve convexity characteristics, particularly in
volatile market environments

Strategic Research Initiatives and Expected Benefits

« Our current research initiative is a comprehensive review of the entire strategy, from universe
selection to execution, aimed at enhancing robustness and maintaining our competitive edge

* Introduction of ten additional trend signals to enhance short-term performance stability and
improve risk-adjusted returns

« Dynamic asset allocation to mitigate concentration risks and capitalize on shifting market
conditions

* These enhancements aim to diversify the signal mix, optimize risk-adjusted returns, lower asset
class concentration risk, and improve adaptability to evolving market trends

We remain dedicated to advancing our methodologies through deep quantitative research,
empirical testing, and continuous learning.

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance results reflect the reinvestment of income. No assurance can be given that Versor Investments will successfully integrate this research into strategy.

V=RSOR

10



Past performance is not
indicative of future results.
Performance results reflect
the reinvestment of income.
Commodity interest trading
involves substantial risk of
loss.

Data received from Societe
Generale, MSCI, Bloomberg and
internally prepared by Versor
Investments. Beta estimates
based on monthly returns from
January 2000 to April 2021. All
returns in excess of TBill rates.

V=RSOR

RETURN CONVEXITY

Concept

Portfolio

Return

Make money in up markets and down markets
Requires a change from “long” to "short”

l

exposures
Down-market Up-market
. ve
Convexity \ » Market
’ Return
¥e
ve
ve
’
Results Down
Period Market Upé\/le?;ket Convexity
Managers in the SG Trend Index have lost convexity Beta
over time
Long-term -0.15 0.09 0.24
2000-2008 -0.37 0.15 0.52
2009-2021 0.15 0.04 -0.11




Past performance is not
indicative of future results.
Performance results reflect the
reinvestment of income.
Commodity interest  trading
involves substantial risk of loss.

"Equity Index" refers to the
returns of the MSCI ACWI. "SG
CTA Index" refers to the returns of
the SG CTA Index. "Trend" refers
to the live returns of the Versor
Trend Following strategy.
Correlation denotes the Pearson
correlation between the Versor
Trend Following with the MSCI
ACWI. Beta denotes the beta of
the Versor Trend Following w.r.t.
the MSCI ACWI. Correlation and
beta are estimated using
monthly returns and include
both  positive and negative
monthly returns to the MSCI
ACWI.

The analysis covers the period
May 04, 2017, to February 28,
2025, and includes 31 months
with negative returns to MSCI
ACWI. Data received by MSCI and
internally prepared by Versor
Investments.

V=RSOR

VERSOR TREND FOLLOWING PERFORMANCE IN THE MONTHS OF EQUITY DRAWDOWNS

15%

10%

5%

0%

-5%

-10%

||’|I|If”“|| SRS 1ARAREIAS LIARES

Mar Sep Jun Feb Apr Oct Dec May Jan Feb Sep Sep Dec Aug Apr Sep Oct Feb Aug Feb Oct Nov Dec Aug Oct Mar Jan May Feb Jun Jan
2020 2022 2022 2020 2022 2018 2018 2019 2022 2018 2023 2021 2022 2022 2024 2020 2023 2023 2023 2022 2020 2021 2024 2019 2024 2018 2020 2023 2025 2018 2021

Equity Index:
Correlation: -0.25 | Beta: -0.23

Equity Index:

Mean -4.11%

SG CTA Index:

Mean 0.34%

Versor Trend Following:
Mean 0.77%

SG CTA Index:
Correlation: 0.85 | Beta: 1.36



2024 PERFORMANCE UPDATE

* The Versor Trend Following strategy posted a -14.73% return for 2024,
primarily due to losses in commodities, followed by fixed income and
currencies. Positive contributions from equities helped offset some of
these losses

* Within commodities, energy and base metals drove the losses,
followed by precious metals. However, gains in grains, softs, and
livestock helped cushion some of the decline

* The underperformance in commodities was largely driven by sharp
trend reversals in challenging market conditions

e Fixed income recorded losses across bonds and rates

» Currencies contributed negatively across both developed and
emerging markets

* Equities helped mitigate overall losses by generating positive
returns across developed and emerging markets

+ At the signal level, long-term, medium-term, and short-term signals all
posted losses. However, the futures curve model delivered positive returns,
partially offsetting the overall decline

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance results reflect the reinvestment of income. Commmodity interest trading involves substantial risk of loss.

V=RSOR

13



Reported returns are unaudited
preliminary estimates, subject to revision
and net of management fees. Certain
investors may have higher management
fees depending on applicable share class.
Please note that the returns could be
materially different from those stated
here in case the strategy was managed in
a dedicated standalone fund. In fact, the
actual returns could be much lower than
those shown here. Please see important
disclosures at the end of the
presentation.

Live Performance

1. “Versor Oakland PFRS Trend Following
Portfolio” represents the returns of Versor
Trend Following Fund, launched on April
1, 2022. The return estimates presented
here are based on Versor Investments’
internal systems, have not been
reconciled with the Administrator and do
not reflect the official books and records
of the account. In the event of any
discrepancy between the information
contained herein and the information
contained in an investor's audited
account statements, the latter shall
govern.

Returns are net of all expenses including
0.25% annual data fees and 0.90% annual
management fees. Certain investors may
have higher management fees
depending on applicable share classes.
Versor Investments also manages other
accounts using the same investment
strategy. Returns for the other accounts
may differ from the returns shown here,
depending on differences in risk levels
and other investment restrictions, timing
of cash flows, and fee structures.

2. Versor Investments launched the
Versor Trend Following Fund on April 1,
2022. Prior to April 1, 2022, Versor
Investments did not manage capital in
the Versor Trend Following Fund as a
dedicated Fund for this strategy. Versor
Trend Following Strategy was part of a
sub strategy under ARP Alternative Risk
Premia 2x Fund, which is a multi-strategy
fund. Returns from May 4, 2017, to
December 22, 2020, for the Versor Trend
Following strategy are estimated by
applying a notional capital allocation (and
applicable expenses) to the P/L
associated with the portion of the ARP
Alternative Risk Premia 2x Fund Ltd
allocated to the strategy. When the
strategy is managed in a dedicated
standalone fund there will be excess cash
upon meeting margin requirement.
Hence the returns for the strategy have
been adjusted by adding the US T-Bill
return on the excess cash upon meeting
margin requirement. From December 23,
2020, to March 31, 2022, the reported
returns are for the dedicated Fund [‘the
Fund"] for the Versor Trend Following
strategy. The return estimates presented
here are based on Versor Investments’
internal systems, have not been
reconciled with the Administrator and do
not reflect the official books and records
of the account. In the event of any
discrepancy between the information

V=RSOR

contained herein and the information
contained in an investor's audited
account statements, the latter shall
govern.

Returns are net of all expenses including
0.25% annual data fees and 0.90% annual
management fees. Certain investors may
have higher management fees
depending on applicable share classes.
Versor Investments also manages other
accounts using the same investment
strategy. Returns for the other accounts
may differ from the returns shown here,
depending on differences in risk levels
and other investment restrictions, timing
of cash flows, and fee structures.

Benchmark Index

3. Returns shown here are of the SG CTA
Index. The SG CTA Index calculates the
net daily rate of return for a pool of CTAs
selected from the largest managers open
to new investment. It is equal-weighted
and reconstituted annually.  The
comparison of the performance of the
various strategies presented to these
indices may be inappropriate because
the various strategies are not as
diversified as the indices, may be more or
less volatile than the indices, and may
include securities which are substantially
different than the securities in the
indices.

4. The standard deviation is computed
using Newey-West estimator with 22 lags
to daily returns. The Newey-West
estimator is designed to handle
autocorrelation in returns.

5. The Sharpe ratio is a measure of the
excess return per unit of risk, where risk is
estimated using Newey-West estimator
with 22 lags to daily returns.

6. The standard deviation is computed
using monthly returns as daily returns for
the index are not available.

7. The Sharpe ratio is a measure of the
excess return per unit of risk, where risk is
estimated by computing standard
deviation using monthly returns as daily
returns for the index are not available.

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Returns Since Inception

Feb Std. | Sharpe
Strategy Start Date 5025 YTD 1Year 2024 2023 2022 2021 3VYear | 5Year | Return Dev4 | Ratios
Versor Oakland PFRS
Trend Following O1-Apr-2022 | -352% | -51% | -21.61% | -14.73% | -6.74% | 6.49% 723% | 14.01% | -0.81
Portfolio!
\F/glrlf)‘\’,\'/;gi”d 04-May-2017 | -352% | -511% | -21.61% | -14.73% | -6.74% | 20.99% | -9.39% | -4.60% | -2.62% | -2.33% | 13.71% | -0.34
SG CTA Index® 04-May-2017 | -1.75% | -114% | -459% | 2.26% | -3.49% | 2015% | 617% | 3.83% | 527% | 358% | 895%¢ | 0137

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance results reflect the reinvestment of income. Commodity interest trading involves

substantial risk of loss.




1. Versor Trend Following refers to
the live returns of the Versor
Trend Following strategy.

2. YTD refers to the returns for the
period January 01, 2025, to
February 28, 2025.

3. ITD refers to annualized returns
for the period April 01, 2022, to
February 28, 2025.

4. Net Reported returns are
cumulative returns (not
annualized) for the period,
unaudited preliminary estimates
and subject to revision. Refer to
“Strategy Disclosures” in
disclosures section, note 1 for
performance disclosures of
Versor Trend Following strategy.

5. Net Arithmetic Return may
slightly differ from Net Reported
Returns due to compounding.

6. Monthly fees and other
expenses, include 0.02% data
fees, 0.075% management fees
and administration, audit and
other expenses..

7. Long-term represents signals
with time horizon of 4-6 months,
Medium-term represents signals
with time horizon of 2-4 months
and Short-term represents
signals with time horizon of 0-2
months.

V=RSOR

PERFORMANCE ATTRIBUTION: VERSOR TREND FOLLOWING - OAKLAND PFRS PORTFOLIO!

Net Reported Return*
Net Arithmetic Return®
Fees and Other Expenses®
Gross Arithmetic Return
Attribution By Sector
Commodities
Energy
Base Metals
Precious Metals
Grains
Softs and Livestock
Equities
Developed
Emerging
Fixed Income
Rates
Bonds
Currencies
Developed
Emerging
Attribution by Signal Class’
Long-term
Medium-term
Short-term
Futures Curve

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance results reflect the reinvestment of income. Commmodity interest trading involves substantial risk of loss.

YTD?

-5.11%
-5.17%
-0.26%
-4.91%

-3.30%
1.76%
-0.95%
-0.43%
-0.27%
j0.11%
14%
Ea.zz%
-0.19%
1.42%
-0.68%
-0.74%
-0.33%
-0.20%
-0.13%

-1.08%
-0.81%
-0.79%
-2.24%

2024
-14.73%
-15.24%
-1.52%
-13.72%
-13.85%
-10.51%
-3.97%
-0.84%
-5.97%
-1.91%
-4.06%
-1.47%
-1.33%
-0.14%,
-8.81%
-6.57%
-1.56%

F3.22%

ITD3
-7.23%
-6.50%
-1.51%
-4.98%
-7.15%
-3.81%
-2.90%
-0.77%
-0.42%
-2.01%
2.21%
-0.79%

15



1. Ex-Ante risk is based on Versor
Investments’ internal risk
systems. Risk contribution s
calculated at 16% annualized
target volatility.

2. Long MV (Short MV) s
computed as market value of
futures contracts of Long (Short)
positions as a percentage of the
net asset value. Fixed income
Long MV (Short MV) is expressed
in US 10 years bond futures
equivalent Long MV (Short MV).

V=RSOR

VERSOR TREND FOLLOWING POSITIONS: MARCH 03, 2025

Positions (Total = 109)

41
40
30
25
20
10
0
Commodities Currencies

26

17

Equities

Fixed Income

Risk Exposures - Top Contributors (Ex - Ante Risk)'

EXF'ziASr;te Long MV2 |  Short MV2

Commodities 13.50% 41.20% -33.21%

Emissions ECX 2.19%

Mt Belv Prop 1.97%

TTF NAT GAS 1.96%
Fixed Income 10.75% 27.58% -90.17%

SOFR 3M 4.26%

US 2yr Bond 1.24%

US 10yr Bond 1.17%

16

Ex-Ante Risk Contribution (Total Risk = 8.64%)!

30%
24%
25%
20%
15% 14%
N%
10%
5%
0%
Commodities Currencies Equities Fixed Income
Ex-Ante 5 5
Risk Long MV Short MV
Equities 9.01% 46.86% -6.52%
SPI200 2.19%
OMXS30 1.48%
FTSE KLCI 1.26%
Currencies 24.36% 11.36% -64.73%
CHF 4.03%
Dollar Index 3.37%
EUR 3.33%

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance results reflect the reinvestment of income. Commodity interest trading involves substantial risk of loss.



CONCLUSION

+ Scientific, data-intensive investment process
« Differentiated investment process
* Deep and experienced team of 50+ specialists

+ 250+ human work years spent on developing superior
research and trading technology

* Versor Trend Following offers attractive diversification to portfolios
dominated by equity risk

* Uncertain macro economic environment presents attractive
investment opportunities

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance results reflect the reinvestment of income. Commmodity interest trading involves substantial risk of loss

V=RSOR

17



Disclosures

V=RSOR

18



STRATEGY DISCLOSURES

V=RSOR

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance
results reflect the reinvestment of income. Commodity interest
trading involves substantial risk of loss.

Reported returns are unaudited preliminary estimates, subject to
revision and net of management fees. Certain investors may have
higher management fees depending on applicable share class.
Please note that the returns could be materially different from
those stated here in case the strategy was managed in a dedicated
standalone fund. In fact, the actual returns could be much lower
than those shown here. Please see important disclosures at the
end of the presentation.

Live Performance

1. “Versor Oakland PFRS Trend Following Portfolio” represents the
returns of Versor Trend Following Fund, launched on April 1, 2022.
The return estimates presented here are based on Versor
Investments' internal systems, have not been reconciled with the
Administrator and do not reflect the official books and records of
the account. In the event of any discrepancy between the
information contained herein and the information contained in an
investor's audited account statements, the latter shall govern.
Returns are net of all expenses including 0.25% annual data fees
and 0.90% annual management fees. Certain investors may have
higher management fees depending on applicable share classes.
Versor Investments also manages other accounts using the same
investment strategy. Returns for the other accounts may differ
from the returns shown here, depending on differences in risk
levels and other investment restrictions, timing of cash flows, and
fee structures.

2. Versor Investments launched the Versor Trend Following Fund
on April 1, 2022. Prior to April 1, 2022, Versor Investments did not
manage capital in the Versor Trend Following Fund as a dedicated
Fund for this strategy. Versor Trend Following Strategy was part of
a sub strategy under ARP Alternative Risk Premia 2x Fund, which is
a multi-strategy fund. Returns from May 4, 2017, to December 22,
2020, for the Versor Trend Following strategy are estimated by
applying a notional capital allocation (and applicable expenses) to
the P/L associated with the portion of the ARP Alternative Risk
Premia 2x Fund Ltd allocated to the strategy. When the strategy is
managed in a dedicated standalone fund there will be excess cash
upon meeting margin requirement. Hence the returns for the
strategy have been adjusted by adding the US T-Bill return on the

excess cash upon meeting margin requirement. From December
23, 2020, to March 31, 2022, the reported returns are for the
dedicated Fund [“the Fund"] for the Versor Trend Following
strategy. The return estimates presented here are based on Versor
Investments'’ internal systems, have not been reconciled with the
Administrator and do not reflect the official books and records of
the account. In the event of any discrepancy between the
information contained herein and the information contained in an
investor's audited account statements, the latter shall govern.
Returns are net of all expenses including 0.25% annual data fees
and 0.90% annual management fees. Certain investors may have
higher management fees depending on applicable share classes.
Versor Investments also manages other accounts using the same
investment strategy. Returns for the other accounts may differ
from the returns shown here, depending on differences in risk
levels and other investment restrictions, timing of cash flows, and
fee structures.

19



BENCHMARK DISCLOSURES

The index returns are provided for purposes of comparison and include dividends
and/or interest income and, unlike the returns presented for the various strategies,
do not reflect fees or expenses. Unlike the various strategies presented which are
actively managed and periodically may maintain cash positions, an index is
unmanaged and fully invested. The comparison of the performance of the various
strategies presented to these indices may be inappropriate because the various
strategies are not as diversified as the indices, may be more or less volatile than the
indices, and may include securities which are substantially different than the
securities in the indices. Although information and analysis contained herein has
been obtained from sources the Adviser believes to be reliable, its accuracy and
completeness cannot be guaranteed. Investors cannot invest directly in indices. The
indices referenced herein have been selected because they are well known, easily
recognized by investors, and reflect those indices that the adviser believes, in part
based on industry practice, provide a suitable benchmark against which to evaluate
the investment or broader market described herein. The exclusion of "failed" or
closed hedge funds may mean that each hedge fund index overstates the
performance of hedge funds generally.

The HFRX Global Hedge Fund Index includes managers and is designed to be
representative of the overall composition of the hedge fund universe. It is
comprised of all eligible hedge fund strategies; including but not limited to
convertible arbitrage, distressed securities, equity hedge, equity market neutral,
event driven, macro, merger arbitrage, and relative value arbitrage. The strategies
are asset weighted based on the distribution of assets in the hedge fund industry.

The HFRX EH: Equity Market Neutral Index includes managers employing the
Equity Market Neutral strategies. Equity Market Neutral managers typically employ
sophisticated quantitative techniques of analyzing stock price and fundamental
data to ascertain information about future price movement and relationships
between securities, select securities for purchase and sale. These can include both
Factor-based and Statistical Arbitrage/Trading strategies.

The HFRX Event Driven Index measures the performance of an event-driven index;
its exposure includes a combination of sensitivities to equity markets, credit
markets, and idiosyncratic, company-specific developments. Investment theses are
typically predicated on fundamental characteristics (as opposed to quantitative),
with the realization of the theses predicated on a specific development exogenous
to the existing capital structure.

The HFRI EH: Equity Hedge (Total) Index includes Investment Managers who
maintain positions both long and short in primarily equity and equity derivative
securities. A wide variety of investment processes can be employed to arrive at an
investment decision, including both quantitative and fundamental techniques;
strategies can be broadly diversified or narrowly focused on specific sectors and can
range broadly in terms of levels of net exposure, leverage employed, holding period,
concentrations of market capitalizations and valuation ranges of typical portfolios.
EH managers would typically maintain at least 50% exposure to, and may in some
cases be entirely invested in, equities, both long and short.

The SG Trend Index includes managers employing the Systematic Diversified CTA
strategy. Systematic Diversified CTA managers typically employ an investment
process designed to identify opportunities in markets exhibiting trending or
momentum characteristics across individual instruments or asset classes.
Strategies utilize quantitative processes which focus on statistically robust or
technical patterns in the return series of the asset, and typically focus on highly
liguid instruments.

The HFRX Macro: Systematic Diversified CTA Index includes managers
employing the Systematic Diversified CTA strategy. CTA managers typically employ
an investment process designed to identify opportunities in markets exhibiting
trending or momentum characteristics across individual instruments or asset
classes. Strategies utilize quantitative processes which focus on statistically robust
or technical patterns in the return series of the asset, and typically focus on highly
liquid instruments.

The Barclays CTA Index (BARCCTA Index) provides a benchmark of representative
performance of commodity trading advisors (CTAs). In order to qualify for inclusion

V — R S O nust have four years of prior performance history. Refer to
1 — »m for more details on index construction methodology.

A combination of HFRX Macro: Systematic Diversified CTA Index and BARCCTA

Index is used as the benchmark index for the Trend Following risk premia strategy
returns. BARCCTA Index (monthly) returns are used for the period January 1990 to
December 2008. HFRX

Macro: Systematic Diversified CTA Index (daily) returns are used from January 2009
onwards. Combination index used due to availability of daily return data from HFRX
Macro: Systematic Diversified CTA index (from January 2009 onwards).

Equity Long/Short managers are typically considered long-biased when the average
net long exposure of their portfolio is greater than 35%.

The BarclayHedge Equity Long Bias Index is recalculated and updated real-time
on this page as soon as the monthly returns for the underlying funds are recorded.
Only funds that provide us with net returns are included in the index calculation.
The number of funds that are currently included in the calculations for the most
recent months can be found in the footnotes above. Please note that the
calculation for the number of funds is time-stamped and that the number of funds
will continue to increase until all funds categorized within the sector have reported
monthly returns.

The Barclays Global Aggregate Index provides a broad-based measure of the
global investment-grade fixed income markets. The three major components of this
index are the U.S. Aggregate, the Pan-European Aggregate, and the Asian-Pacific
Aggregate Indices. The index also includes Eurodollar and Euro-Yen corporate
bonds, Canadian government, agency and corporate securities, and USD
investment grade 144A securities.

The Barclays Global Treasury Index tracks fixed-rate, local currency government
debt of investment grade countries, including both developed and emerging
markets. The index represents the treasury sector of the Global
Aggregate Index and contains issues from 37 countries denominated in 24
currencies.

The Barclays Global High Yield Index represents the US High Yield Index, Pan-
European High Yield Index, High Yield CMBS Index, and non-investment grade
portion of the Barclays Global Emerging Markets Index.

The MSCI World Index represents a free float-adjusted market capitalization
weighted index that is designed to measure the equity market performance of
developed markets. As of February 2013, it includes 24 developed market country
indices: Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany,
Greece, Hong Kong, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Japan, Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway,
Portugal, Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the
United States.

The MSCI ACWI captures large and mid cap representation across

23 Developed Markets (DM) and 24 Emerging Markets (EM) countries. With 2,490
constituents, the index covers approximately 85% of the global investable equity
opportunity set.

The S&P GSCI™ Total Return index measures a fully collateralized commodity
futures investment that is rolled forward from the 5th to the 9th business day of
each month. Currently the index includes 24 commodity nearby futures contracts.
The Total Return is significantly different than the return from buying physical
commodities.

The S&P 500 index covers the 500 largest companies that are in the United States.
These companies can vary across various sectors. The S&P 500 is one of the most
important indices in the world as it widely tracks how the United States stock
market is performing.

The SG CTA Index calculates the net daily rate of return for a pool of CTAs selected
from the largest managers open to new investment. It is equal-weighted and
reconstituted annually.

The SG Macro Trading Index is a broad based performance measure for
constituents that trade Global Macro strategies. The SG Macro Trading Index
(Quantitative) is a sub-index of the SG Macro Trading Index covering quantitative

20

Global Macro strategies. The SG Macro Trading Index (Discretionary) is a sub-
index of the SG Macro Trading Index covering the discretionary strategies.

The Eurekahedge Multi-Factor Risk Premia Index is composed of multiple
strategies managed by large global banks, and is designed to provide a broad
measure of the performance of a diversified portfolio of systematic drivers of risk
and return across asset classes.

The Bloomberg Barclays US Treasury: 20+ Year Total Return Index measures US
dollar-denominated, fixed-rate, nominal debt issued by the US Treasury. Treasury
bills are excluded by the maturity constraint.

The S&P U.S. Treasury Bill Index is a broad, comprehensive, market-value
weighted index that seeks to measure the performance of the US. Treasury Bill
market. U.S. Treasury Bill 0-3 Month Index is designed to measure the performance
of U.S. Treasury bills maturing in O to 3 months.

The SG Multi Alternative Risk Premia Index calculates the daily rate of return for a
group of the largest ten multi-asset, multi-alternative risk premia programs
managed by investment managers. These managers often trade equity indices,
fixed income, currencies, commodities, and single name equities. Managers aims to
systemat|ca|ly capture a diversity of discrete risk premia, including value, carry,
momentum, and equity style premia. The index is equally welghted and
reconstituted and rebalanced onan annual basis.

The Russell 1000 Value Index measures the performance of those

Russell 1000 companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted
growth values. The index was developed with a base value of 200 as of August 31,
1992.

The Russell 2000 Value Index measures the performance of those Russell 2000
companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted growth values.

he Russell 1000 Growth Index measures the performance of thos Russell 1000
companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth values.
The index was developed with a base value of 200 as of August 31,1992.

The Russell 2000 Growth Index measures the performance of thos Russell 1000
companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth values.
The HFR Bank Systematic Risk Premia Indices are a series of benchmarks designed
to reflect the performance of the universe of managers that employ a portfolio
allocation strategy based on targeting risk levels across the various components of
an investment portfolio.

HFR Bank Systematic Risk Premia Commodity Index: A composite of all Bank
Systematic Risk Premia Commodity styles.

HFR Bank Systematic Risk Premia Credit Index: A composite of all Bank
Systematic Risk Premia Credit styles

HFR Bank Systematic Risk Premia Currency Index: A composite of all Bank
Systematic Risk Premia Currency styles.

HFR Bank Systematic Risk Premia Equity Index: A composite of all Bank
Systematic Risk Premia Equity styles.

HFR Bank Systematic Risk Premia Rates Index: A composite of all Bank
Systematic Risk Premia Rates styles.

Refer to HFR, Societe Generale, Barclayshedge, MSCI, Barclays, Russell and S&P
websites for more details on their respective indices construction methodology.



GENERAL DISCLOSURES

The information contained herein is provided for informational and discussion
purposes only and is not, and may not be relied on in any manner as, legal, tax or
investment advice. This document does not constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy any securities or the solicitation to enter into any
investment advisory or similar agreement with Versor Investments LP or any of
its affiliates (collectively, "Versor Investments”) and may not be used or relied
upon in connection with any offer or sale of securities. Any such offer may only be
made by means of formal Offering Documents, the terms of which will govern in
all respects. Past performance is not indicative of future results. The information
set forth herein does not purport to be complete.

Investing in an investment product made available by Versor Investments or its
affiliates (a "Fund") involves a high degree of risk. No person has been authorized
to make any statement concerning the Fund other than as set forth in such
Fund's Offering Documents and any such statements, if made, may not be
relied upon. Prior to investing, investors must familiarize themselves with the
Fund's offering materials and subscriptions documents (collectively, the
"Offering Documents") and be prepared to absorb the risks associated with any
such investment, including a total loss of all invested capital. The complete terms
regarding an investment in a Fund, including but not limited to the investment
program, fees and charges, tax considerations, risk factors, conflicts of interest
and liquidity, are set forth in the Fund’ s Offering Documents.

The information contained herein is unaudited and provided as an
accommodation to investors in connection with the monitoring of their
investment in a Fund. The materials provided are based upon information
included in our records, as well as information received from third parties. We do
not represent that such information is accurate or complete, and it should not be
relied upon as such. The financial information contained herein does not provide
a complete picture of the Fund" s financial position or results, in part because it is
does not reflect all applicable fees, expenses and other costs that will affect the
Fund's net returns. The actual returns of the Fund will be lower - and likely much
lower - than the unaudited returns included in this presentation. Please contact
Versor Investments for a pro forma calculation of the impact of projected fees
and expenses on the returns included herein. In the event of any discrepancy
between the information contained herein and the information contained in an
investor” s audited account statements, the latter shall govern.

Certain information in this document may consist of compilations of publicly-
available data. Versor Investments has obtained such data from what it believes
to be reliable sources. However, Versor Investments has no ability, and has not
attempted independently, to verify any of such information. Versor Investments
has not generated or independently verified the data included in this document
and assumes no responsibility for it.

Certain information included in this document regarding Versor Investments’
"implementation" of different strategies is simulated and back-tested. These are
hypothetical records only. These results have been generated by applying Versor
Investments’ systems to historical pricing data for the publicly-traded
instruments (including securities and futures) in which Versor Investments’

V=RSOR

accounts will trade. The recipient should understand that Versor Investments, in
using its analytics to generate simulated results, necessarily applies Versor
Investments’ statistical models to historical data on a backtested basis. Different
quantitative analysts will differ as to how statistically to define the different
factors. While Versor Investments believes that its method of analysis is
reasonable, there are other equally reasonable methods which would generate
materially different results. Relying on any form of statistical, quantitative analysis
in investment decision-making is speculative and involves a high degree of risk.
PAST PERFORMANCE IS NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE OF FUTURE RESULTS.
Commodity interest trading involves substantial risk of loss.

Because these results are simulated, they are subject to all of the material
inherent limitations of backtested data. Due to these limitations (among others),
the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission requires that the following
disclaimer accompany such information:

These results are based on simulated or hypothetical performance results
that have certain inherent limitations. Unlike the results shown in an actual
performance record, these results do not represent actual trading. Also,
because these trades have not actually been executed, these results may
have under-or over-compensated for the impact, if any, of certain market
factors, such as lack of liquidity. Simulated or hypothetical trading programs
in general are also subject to the fact that they are designed with the benefit
of hindsight. Specifically, Versor Investments continuously seeks to enhance
its methodologies and therefore a survivorship bias is present as these
hypothetical performance results are continuously updated to apply what
Versor Investments believes to be the most optimal approach at that point in
time. No representation is being made that any account will or is likely to
achieve profits or losses similar to these being shown. An investment with
Versor Investments is speculative and involves substantial risks; investors
may lose their entire investment. No one should rely on any simulated
performance in determining whether to invest with Versor Investments.
Certain analysis or statements included herein may constitute forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements are not historical facts but reflect
Versor Investments' current statistical conclusions regarding future results or
events. These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from
history or current expectations. Although Versor Investments believes that the
assumptions inherent in the forward-looking statements are reasonable,
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future results or events and,
accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such
statements due to the inherent uncertainty therein.

While Versor may consider ESG factors when making investment decisions,
Versor does not pursue an ESG-based investment strategy or limit its
investments to those that meet specific ESG criteria or standards.

It should not be assumed that any ESG initiatives, standards, or metrics described
herein will apply to each asset in which Versor invests or that any ESG initiatives,

21

standards, or metrics described herein have applied to Versor's prior investments.
ESG is only one of many considerations that affect Versor's investment decisions.
Other considerations outweigh ESG considerations in certain circumstances. The
information provided herein is intended solely to provide an indication of the ESG
initiatives and standards that Versor applies when seeking to evaluate and/or
improve the ESG characteristics of its investments as part of the larger goal of
maximizing financial returns on investments. Any ESG initiatives described
herein will be implemented with respect to a portfolio investment only to the
extent Versor determines these initiatives to be consistent with its broader
investment goals and applicable laws. Accordingly, certain investments may
exhibit characteristics that are inconsistent with the ESG initiatives, standards, or
metrics described herein.

This document is confidential and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information contained herein is proprietary and confidential to Versor
Investments and may not be disclosed to third parties, or duplicated or used for
any purpose other than the purpose for which it has been provided.
Unauthorized reproduction or the distribution of this document (or any excerpts
hereof) is strictly prohibited. The recipient agrees to dispose of this document
promptly upon the request of Versor Investments.



AUSTRALIA DISCLOSURES

Australia General Disclaimer

This document is issued by Versor Investments LP (“Versor Investments”) a U.S.
investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. The information in this document (the “Information”) has been
prepared without taking into account individual objectives, financial situations
or needs. It should not be relied upon as a substitute for financial or other
specialist advice. This document does not constitute investment advice or any
offer or solicitation to sell investment advisory services in any jurisdiction in
which an offer, solicitation, purchase or sale would be unlawful under the
securities law of that jurisdiction. This document is directed at and intended for
wholesale clients, professional clients, eligible counterparties and other
“institutional investors” (as such term is defined in various jurisdictions). This
document is provided on a confidential basis for informational purposes only
and may not be reproduced in any form or transmitted to any person without
authorization from Versor Investments.

By accepting a copy of this presentation, you agree (a) that the Information is
confidential and proprietary to Versor Investments , (b) to keep the Information
confidential, (c) not to use the Information for any purpose other than to
evaluate a potential investment in any product described herein, and (d) not to
distribute the Information to any person other than persons within your
organization or to your client that has engaged you to evaluate an investment in
such product. This document is supplied on the condition that it is not passed
on to any person who is a retail client. Past performance is not indicative of
future results. Unless otherwise specified, investments are not bank deposits or
other obligations of a bank, and the repayment of principal is not insured or
guaranteed. They are subject to investment risks, including the possibility that
the value of any investment (and income derived thereof (if any)) can increase,
decrease or in some cases, be entirely lost and investors may not get back the
amount originally invested. The contents of this document have not been
reviewed by any regulatory authority in the countries in which it is distributed.
Versor Investments accepts no liability whatsoever for any direct, indirect or
consequential loss arising from or in connection with any use of, or reliance on,
this document which does not have any regard to the particular needs of any
person. Versor Investments takes no responsibility whatsoever for any use,
reliance or reference by persons other than the intended recipient of this
document.

Opinions and views expressed constitute the judgment of Versor Investments as
of the date of this document, may involve a number of assumptions and
estimates which may not be valid, are not guaranteed, and are subject to
change without notice. Although the information and any opinions or views
given have been obtained from or based on sources believed to be reliable, no
warranty or representation is made as to their correctness, completeness or
accuracy.

The opinions and views herein are not intended to be recommendations of

V=RSOR

particular financial instruments or strategies to you. This document does not
identify all the risks (direct or indirect) or other considerations which might be
material to you when entering any financial transaction. You are advised to
exercise caution in relation to any information in this document. If you are in
doubt about any of the contents of this document, you should seek
independent professional advice.

Legal Disclaimer

It is the responsibility of any persons wishing to engage investment advisory
services to inform themselves of and to observe all applicable laws and
regulations of any relevant jurisdictions. Prospective clients should inform
themselves as to the legal requirements and tax consequences within the
countries of their citizenship, residence, domicile and place of business with
respect to the acquisition, holding or disposal of any investments in stock or
bonds, and any foreign exchange restrictions that maybe relevant thereto.
Versor Investments products or services are not registered for public sale in
Australia, New Zealand or Papua New Guinea, respectively.

The Information is provided for informational purposes only. Opinions, estimates,
forecasts, and statements of financial market trends that are based on current
market conditions constitute our judgment and are subject to change without
notice. We believe the information provided here is reliable. The views and
strategies described may not be suitable for all clients.

References to specific securities, asset classes and financial markets are for
illustrative purposes only and are not intended to be, and should not be
interpreted as, recormmendations.

22



RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE USE OF Al TOOLS

The utilization of Al Tools in investment management, driven by advancements
in computing technology and data analytics, is on the rise. These tools are
applied to various aspects of portfolio management, trading, and portfolio risk
management, with some market participants exploring increased autonomy.
The Investment Manager integrates Al Tools for pre-trade analysis, trade
execution, and post-trade analysis, encompassing descriptive, predictive, or
prescriptive tasks. They are employed not only in quantitative or algorithmic
trading but also in sophisticated fundamental analysis, including textual analysis,
and optimizing asset allocations within the Fund's portfolio. It's important to
acknowledge that while Al Tools offer advantages, potential risks exist. Many Al
Tools are relatively recent developments and may harbor undetected errors,
defects, or security vulnerabilities. Some errors may only surface after
widespread use or substantial marketplace operations, potentially leading to
significant financial losses, liabilities, or sanctions. The rapid execution
capabilities of Al-integrated trading technology, particularly when combined
with other algorithmic systems, can amplify the impact of these flaws.
Additionally, certain technological and operational limitations may hinder or
prevent human intervention. Investors considering initial or additional
investments in the Fund should be aware of these risks associated with Al Tools
and exercise caution. Careful due diligence and ongoing monitoring are
advisable to mitigate potential drawbacks.

Undetected Errors and Security Risks: Al Tools, being relatively recent
developments, may harbor undetected errors, defects, or security vulnerabilities.
Some issues may only surface after extensive use, potentially leading to
substantial financial losses, material liabilities, or sanctions. The rapid integration
of Al Tools into trading technology may magnify the impact of such flaws,
especially when interacting with other algorithmic systems.

Implementation Risk: Despite our commitment to implement Al Tools
diligently, their use in portfolio management, trading, and risk assessment may
produce results that do not align with our existing models or expectations,
possibly resulting in losses to the Fund. If Al Tools are employed in line with the
standard of care outlined herein, the Investment Manager will not be held liable
for such losses.

Regulatory Risk: Governmental entities are increasingly active in considering
regulations and market restrictions on algorithmic and machine-assisted trading
strategies. Such regulations may include requirements for pre-testing,
automatic volume controls, or liability for negative market impacts. These rules
might limit our ability to fully employ Al Tools, potentially affecting the Fund's
performance.

Interdependence and Opacity: Understanding and explaining the inferences

made by most Al Tools can be challenging due to their complexity. As Al Tools
rely on historical data, predicting their behavior in "black swan" events is difficult.

V=RSOR

This opacity can introduce risks, such as cascading market crashes, especially
when multiple asset management companies use similar Al Tools.

Incorrect Outputs: Al Tools may make erroneous decisions based on irrelevant
data patterns. Complex analytical frameworks used by Al Tools can make it
challenging to identify such errors, especially when integrating new data, which
may differ from the training data.

Data Quality: Al Tools depend on the quality and sufficiency of data. Poor-
quality data can lead to suboptimal performance. As Al Tools become more
complex, identifying data-related issues becomes harder, potentially resulting in
market instability.

Learning Limitations: Al Tools lack human judgment and context, which may
limit their effectiveness in certain environments. Learning limitations may affect
strategic deployment and risk-based reviews, leading to unexpected issues.

Potential Attacks: The use of Al Tools increases the risk of potential malicious
attacks, including data privacy breaches, data poisoning, and model extraction.
Such attacks may compromise data privacy, affect Al Tool performance, or lead
to the extraction of investment models. These attacks can harm the Fund's
investment performance.

Bias Risk: Al Tools may amplify risks related to biased outcomes or
discrimination. The evolving nature of data ethics and fairness introduces the
risk of unfair outcomes. Governmental entities may impose restrictions on Al
Tool use, potentially affecting Fund operations.

Drift: Drift may introduce various errors and risks in Al Tools. Changing
relationships between variables over time can impact tool accuracy. Detecting
drift and mitigating associated risks is a priority, but it may be challenging to do
so before losses occur. If monitoring is implemented in line with the standard of
care outlined herein, the Investment Manager will not be liable for losses due to
drift.

Disclaimer: The use of Al Tools in investment management involves risks, and
the effectiveness of these tools may vary. Investors should exercise caution and
conduct thorough due diligence. The information provided is for informational
purposes only and should not be considered as financial advice. Investment
decisions should be made after consulting with qualified financial professionals
and considering individual circumstances. Past performance is not indicative of
future results.



T 2175 NW Raleigh Street 503.226.1050

M E K E A Suite 300A Meketa.com
Portland, OR 97210

|

MEMORANDUM

TO: Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System (“OPFRS”)
FROM: Meketa Investment Group (“Meketa”)

DATE: March 26, 2025

RE: Versor Investments - Manager Update

Manager: Versor Investments

Inception Date: April 2022 OPFRS AUM (02/28/2025): $12.1 million

Strategy: Systematic Trend Following Strategy AUM (02/28/2025): $12.5 million

Benchmark: Société Générale Trend Index Firm-wide AUM' (06/30/2024): $1.3 billion
Summary

Versor has managed the Systematic Trend Following sleeve within the Crisis Risk Offset component
since April 2022. As of February 28, 2025, the portfolio is approximately $12.1 million or about 2.6% of
OPFRS’s total portfolio.

While the strategy has exhibited underperformance since account inception in 2022, the strategy’s overall
characteristics and performance has remained within expectations and guidelines for the portfolio. No
major organizational changes or personnel turnover in the portfolio management team have been
observed since the last review in September 2023. Therefore, Meketa does not have any major
concerns with Versor Investments and its Trend Following Fund and recommends that it be
removed from the monitoring watchlist.

Investment Performance Review Summary
As of February 28, 2025, Versor Trend Following strategy has underperformed the benchmark
Société Générale (SG) Trend Index quarter-to-date, over the 1-year trailing period, and since account

inception in April 2022, on net of fees basis. Since account inception in April 2022, the strategy has
generated an annualized net-of-fees investment return of -7.2%.

Portfolio Performance (as of 02/28/2025) 2

Since CcY CcY
QTD 1Yr Inception 2024 2023
Versor Trend Following (Net) -5.1 -21.5 7.2 -14.7 -6.7
SG Trend Index -3.0 -7.7 1.1 2.6 -4.2
Excess Return -2.0 -13.9 -8.3 -17.3 -2.6

It should be noted that OPFRS has invested in the strategy for less than 3 years; as a long-term
investment within the Crisis Risk Offset (CRO) segment, it ought to be evaluated contextually considering
its characteristics and the surrounding market conditions, which are presented using the fund’s historical
product characteristics in the following section.

1 Source: Versor website.
2 Performance is annualized for periods longer than one year.

[
MEKETA.COM



M March 26, 2025
[ |

Investment Product Characteristics (As of 12/31/2024)3

The Crisis Risk Offset (CRO) component, which Versor Trend Following is a part of, is expected to exhibit
lower correlations to the traditional equity and fixed income markets and developed to serve as a
diversifier and mitigate both the equity risk and nominal interest rate risk of the total portfolio.

Long-Term Correlations to Board Market Indices

Versor Trend Following Fund has exhibited relatively low (within the range of -0.5 to +0.5) correlations to
equity markets (represented by MSCI All Country World Index), fixed income markets (represented by
Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index) and commodities (represented by Bloomberg Commodity Index)
since product inception in May 2017.4

Correlation

MSCI All Country World Index (Net) -0.3
Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index -0.3

Bloomberg Commodity Index -0.1

Volatility

Versor Trend Following Fund has also exhibited lower volatility (measured as Standard Deviation) in
comparison to the equity markets since the product’s inception while exhibiting a slightly higher volatility
compared to the Bloomberg Commodity Index. Compared to the fixed income markets, it has significantly
higher volatility as expected.

Standard Deviation

Versor Trend Following (Net) 14.5
MSCI All Country World Index (Net) 15.7
Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index 6.7
Bloomberg Commodity Index 13.8

Down Market Performance

One of the CRO component’s primary objective is to be a risk-mitigating component during market
downturns. The following table illustrates the performance of Versor Trend Following fund during the
periods when the benchmark (index) generated negative returns.

Versor Product

Down Market Performance Return Benchmark Return Excess
MSCI All Country World Index (Net) 10.0 -41.1 +51.0
Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index 0.6 -16.3 +16.9
Bloomberg Commodity Index -0.9 -29.6 +28.7

Since product inception, the strategy has had significant outperformance during the periods of equity
market downturns as well as those of downturns in the global fixed income markets.

3 Source: eVestment. Product inception date is May 2017. Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index is unhedged.
4 The calculations include Versor Trend Following strategy’s history as a sub-strategy under ARP Alternative Risk Premia 2x Fund.
I —______
Page 2 of 3



March 26, 2025

I<

Product and Organization Review Summary

Areas of Potential Impact

Level of Investment Investment Performance Team/Firm

Versor Investments Concern Process Team Track Record Culture
Product

Key people changes None

Changes to team structure or

individuals’ roles heed

Product client gain/losses None

Changes to investment process None

Personnel turnover None
Organization

Ownership changes None

Key people changes None

Firm wide client gain/losses None
Recommended Action None - X Watch Status Termination

A review of Versor Investments and the Trend Following Fund revealed no concerning organizational
issues or changes since last review in September 2023.

Investment Summary

Versor Trend Following derives absolute returns from long, medium, and short-term directional moves in
various markets. The strategy invests in 100+ futures and forwards contracts across four major asset
classes globally: commodities, equities, fixed income, and currency markets. The strategy takes long or
short positions in these instruments where markets exhibit price trends.

The key investment theme is to generate absolute returns through trend following. This strategy aims to
profit from persistent price trends in futures markets. The internally developed trend following models use
different statistical signals such as moving average cross over and time series momentum to identify
trends. In addition to different kinds of signals, the models also implement the signals across different
time horizons ranging from short-term (typically about 1 month) to long-term (typically up to 1 year). The
portfolio will take long or short position in any of these contracts based on their trends.

Risk management is integrated into the investment process. Versor uses proprietary risk models for
quantifying risk. Risk adjustment of positions in individual contracts is done using short-term volatility
measures and both long and short positions are levered up or down to maintain target volatility.
Risk-adjusted positions in individual contracts are then combined to form four sector portfolios:
commodities, equities, fixed income, and currencies. Risk adjustment is also done at the sector level to
maintain target risk contribution to overall portfolio risk from each of the four sector portfolios.

DS/PN/JLC/mn

Page 30of 3



MEKETA

Economic and Market Update

February 2025 Report

MEKETA.COM



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Commentary

After a positive start to 2025, stock and bond markets had mixed returns in February with investors largely
rotating away from US equities.

-

-

Domestic equity markets (Russell 3000) fell -1.9% in February, with value outperforming growth.

Non-US developed market stocks (MSCI EAFE +1.9%) continued to outperform US markets, supported by rate
cuts from the ECB, EU planned increases in defense spending, and a weakening US dollar.

Emerging market equities returned +0.5% for the month, underperforming non-US developed markets given tariff
risks from the US. However, Chinese stocks rose an impressive +11.8% in February on DeepSeek Al enthusiasm.

The Federal Reserve held policy rates steady at the end of January as inflation remained above the target level
and the labor market was relatively healthy.

Most fixed income markets posted positive returns, with TIPS (+2.2%) and the US bond market (+2.2%)
outperforming most other fixed income sectors.

Looking ahead, uncertainty related to the Trump Administration’s policies and their impact on the economy,
inflation, and Fed policy will be key. The path of China’s economy and concerns over elevated valuations and
technology-driven concentration in the US equity market will also be important focuses of 2025.

MEKETA.COM Page 2 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Index Returns’

YTD February
MSCI EAFE - 7 3% FTSE NAREIT Equity I 6%
0,
Bloomberg Commodity Index 4.8% Bloomberg Aggregate 2.2%
0,
FTSE NAREIT Equity - 4.7% Bloomberg US TIPS - 2.2%
0,
Bloomberg US TIPS 3.5% MSCI EAFE 1.9%
- 0,
Bloomberg Aggregate . 2.7% Bloomberg Short-Term TIPS I 1.1%
MSCI ACWI 2.7% Bloomberg Commodity Index 0.8%
. e Bloomberg High Yield I 0.7%
JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified 2.7%
. JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified 0.7%
MSCI Emerging Markets 2.3%
MSCI Emerging Markets 0.5%
Bloomberg Short-Term TIPS 21%
MSCI ACWI -0.6% I
Bloomberg High Yield 2.0%
S&P 500 -1.3%
S&P 500 l 1.4%

' Russell 3000 1.9%
Russell 3000 1.2% 00 5.39% d
Russell 20 -5.3%
Russell 2000 -2.9% -
- On a year-to-date basis most major markets remain in positive territory.

- In February, non-US equities outperformed US equities as markets re-priced their outlook for US stocks in 2025
while fixed income markets benefited from cooling inflation and economic growth.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025.

MEKETA.COM 7 Page 3 of 19



MEKETA

February
Domestic Equity (%)
S&P 500 -1.3
Russell 3000 -1.9
Russell 1000 -1.7
Russell 1000 Growth -3.6
Russell 1000 Value 04
Russell MidCap -2.8
Russell MidCap Growth -5.7
Russell MidCap Value -1.8
Russell 2000 -5.3
Russell 2000 Growth -6.8
Russell 2000 Value -3.8

US Equities: The Russell 3000 fell -1.9% in February, bringing the year-to-date return to +1.2%.

Domestic Equity Returns'

1.4
1.2
1.4
-1.7
5.1
1.3
0.3
1.6
-2.9
-3.8
-1.9

18.4
17.5
18.1
19.7
15.8
12.2
14.5
11.7

6.7

5.8

7.6

12.5
11.6
121
14.8
8.6
7.2
9.5
6.1
3.3
3.6
2.8

Economic and Market Update

16.8
16.1
16.5
19.7
12.5
12.4
12.9
11.7

9.4

7.9
10.3

13.0
12.3
12.7
16.0
8.9
9.3
11.0
8.0
7.2
7.2
6.9

- After approaching record highs in early February, US stocks finished the month lower. Investors grew concerned
over tariff policies, a potentially weakening consumer, and the sustainability of earnings growth from tech stocks.

-» Consumer discretionary stocks (-6.4%) were hardest hit among sectors in February. Tesla was the largest detractor
in the Russell 3000 index as the stock dropped ~27% during the month. Other “Magnificent 77 names were among

the largest detractors, such as Alphabet (-16%), Amazon (-11%), and Microsoft (-4%).

- Value stocks outperformed growth stocks during February, continuing the trend from January. This dynamic was
most pronounced in the large cap space, where the Russell 1000 Value index was 6.8% ahead of the Russell 1000
Growth index year to date. Small cap stocks declined more than large cap stocks for the month due to weakening

growth expectations.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025.

MEKETA.COM

Page 4 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Russell 3000 Sector Returns'

= February QTD

10% 7.4%
6.3% 6.3% " 6.6% 6.4% 4.89,5-6% 5,99,

3.4%

1.6% 2.2% . 1.8% 1.2%

0.50/ . ) ’ ’ . ’
: — 0.-2% 0.0% -

0% .
o H -
1.8% 2.7% 1.9%

-3.8%-3.7%

10% -6.4%
- (]

Basic Materials
Consumer Discretionary
Consumer Staples
Energy

Financials

Health Care
Industrials
Technology
Telecommunications
Utilities

Russell 3000

- Sector results were mixed in February with defensive sector consumer staples (+6.3%) leading the way and cyclical
consumer discretionary stocks (-6.4%) suffering the largest decline. The drop in consumer discretionary stocks
was largely driven by slowing European sales weighing on Tesla’s share price.

- Technology stocks, a previous bright spot, declined in January and in February, with NVIDIA, Broadcom, Microsoft,
and Apple driving results.

- Industrial stocks declined in February amid concerns regarding the sustainability of economic growth, but remain
positive for the year so far.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025.

MEKETA.COM Page 5 of 19



MEKETA

Foreign Equity Returns’

February
Foreign Equity (%)
MSCI ACWI Ex US 1.4
MSCI EAFE 1.9
MSCI EAFE (Local Currency) 0.9
MSCI EAFE Small Cap -0.3
MSCI Emerging Markets 0.5
MSCI Emerging Markets (Local Currency) 0.7
MSCI EM ex China -3.8
MSCI China 11.8

5.5
7.3
5.8
3.1
23
23
-1.8
12.8

9.7
8.8
1.4
6.4
10.1
14.1
0.8
39.0

4.6
6.4
10.5
0.7
0.5
319
0.9
0.0

Economic and Market Update

7.5
8.7
10.9
5.7
43
6.5
6.9
-0.3

4.8
53
6.8
5.2
3.5
5.7
4.2
2.5

Foreign Equity: Developed international equities (MSCI EAFE) returned 1.4% in February and emerging

market equities (MSCI Emerging Markets) rose 0.5%.

- Developed markets saw modest gains in February, due in part to a weaker USD, outperforming US peers.
Eurozone equities were the top performer among developed markets, boosted by continued strength in European
financials, a growing focus on defense spending, and the prospect of a ceasefire in Ukraine. The UK followed
shortly behind, with a similar story of large banks, defense, and health care driving returns. Japanese stocks fell,

with sentiment driven by namely uncertainty surrounding US trade policies.

- Emerging markets rose slightly in February, with gains driven by China, the top performer globally. China continues
to benefit from excitement around DeepSeek, stimulus efforts, and the prospect of a more favorable regulatory
environment following meetings between Xi Jingping and major business leaders. South Korea saw slight negative
returns following a downgraded GDP growth forecast. Indian equities fell by over 7% amid continued signs of a

growth slowdown and stretched valuations.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025.

MEKETA.COM

Page 6 of 19



MEKETA

Equity Cyclically Adjusted P/E Ratios'

=— EAFE EM — US
45

40

Economic and Market Update

25 A}/%\ ,
= v | A

= AV
15 EM PE Average = |6.7W"’
10

Price to Earnings Ratio

EAFE PE Average = 21

38.0
35
30 US PE Average = 28.2 ,/\/\/v,/\ A
V .

214

15.1

1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019

2021 2023 2025

- Valuations in US stocks remained at a significant premium to non-US developed and emerging market stocks at

the end of February.

- US equities, priced at 38.0 times earnings, continued to trade well above their long-run P/E average of 28.2.

- Non-US developed market valuations (21.4 times) are trading near their long-term average. Emerging market

valuations (15.1 times) are below their long-run average.

1 US Equity Cyclically Adjusted P/E on S&P 500 Index. Source: Robert Shiller, Yale University, and Meketa Investment Group. Developed and Emerging Market Equity (MSCI EAFE and EM Index) Cyclically Adjusted P/E Source: Bloomberg. Earnings
figures represent the average of monthly “as reported” earnings over the previous ten years. Data is as of February 2025. The average line is the long-term average of the US, EM, and EAFE PE values from April 1998 to the recent month-end,

respectively.

MEKETA.COM

Page 7 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Fixed Income Returns’

Current

February 3YR 10 YR Yield Duration
Fixed Income (%) (%) (%) (%) (Years)
Bloomberg Universal 21 2.7 6.3 0.1 -0.1 1.9 4.8 6.0
Bloomberg Aggregate 2.2 2.7 5.8 -0.4 -0.5 1.5 4.6 6.2
Bloomberg US TIPS 22 35 6.4 -0.8 1.9 24 43 6.9
Bloomberg Short-term TIPS 1.1 2.1 6.6 2.6 3.6 2.7 4.2 2.5
Bloomberg US Long Treasury 5.2 5.6 34 -8.6 -6.6 -0.4 4.5 15.1
Bloomberg High Yield 0.7 2.0 10.1 4.9 4.9 5.1 7.1 3.3
JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified (USD) -0.7 27 24 1.7 -0.4 0.8 - -

Fixed Income: The Bloomberg Universal index rose 2.1% in February.

- Investors sought the safety of high quality bonds in February given policy uncertainty in the US and weakening
economic data particularly related to the consumer. Corporate bonds did not perform as well in this risk adverse
environment.

-» The broad US bond market (Bloomberg Aggregate) rose 2.2% for the month, along with the broad US TIPS index.
Long-term Treasuries performed particularly well in the declining interest rate environment.

- High yield bonds experienced less demand from investors, and emerging market debt fell.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025. The yield and duration data from Bloomberg is defined as the index’s yield to worst and modified duration, respectively. JPM GBI-EM data is from J.P. Morgan. Current yield and duration data is

not available.
R |
MEKETA.COM Page 8 of 19



MEKETA

6%

5%

4%

3%

2%

1%

0%

Economic and Market Update

US Yield Curve'’

8/31/2024 ——2/28/2025

3M 6M 1Y 2Y 5Y 7Y 10Y 30Y

- US Treasury yields declined significantly over the month, as investors expressed concern about the potential
policies of the new US administration, economic data related to consumers weakened, and overall growth

expectations fell.

- The more policy sensitive 2-year Treasury yield fell from 4.20% to 3.99%, while the 10-year Treasury yield declined

from 4.54% to 4.24%.

- After the Fed started reducing interest rates in September 2024, the yield curve stopped being inverted (short-term
interest rates higher than long-term interest rates) given expectations for inflation to continue to decline and policy
rates to continue lower.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025. The August 2024 Treasury yields are shown as a reference before the first interest rate cut.

MEKETA.COM

S EsTTTTEETeeE——————S—SSMMMmLLLLLL———SS
Page 9 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Stress is Building on US Consumers

Total Balance by Delinquency Status' Transition into Serious Delinquency for Credit Cards by Age?
30 days late m60 days late =90 days late =120+ days late ' Severely Derogatory e 18-29 30-39 e 40-49 50-59 = 60-69 704 e Al
14% 16%
12% 14%
10% 12%
8% 10%
i
4% |||'|”|| |H|HH|H|||| j; -
z | “”““'"'“”HIllul!!”!””!””!”H”!.... e 2% \/
0%

0%

- Some signs of stress on the US consumer have started to emerge given persistently higher prices and interest
rates.

- After falling to historic lows during the pandemic, loan delinquencies recently started rising.

- While some segments of the credit market have started to show signs of stress, total delinquencies remain well
below pre-pandemic levels.

- While total delinquency rates are below pre-pandemic rates, the credit card segment is showing more signs of
distress where borrowers are subject to variable and higher borrowing costs.

- Credit card delinquencies are rising rapidly, especially for borrowers under the age of 40.

1 Source: New York Federal Reserve, Quarterly Household Debt and Credit Report, February 2025. See also FRED. Data is as of February 28, 2025.
2 Source: FRED. Data is as of February 28, 2025.
-]

MEKETA.COM Page 10 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Credit Spreads vs. US Treasury Bonds'

— Emerging Market Debt Investment Grade Corporates — US High Yield
20%
18%
16%

14%
12% High Yield
Average = 4.9% Emerging Mkt Debt

10
% Average = 3.4%

Inv. Grade
6% \Average =15%

o\ | AN
4% ' - : l

A s 2o
2% 2.2%

0.9%

026003 2005 2007 2009 201 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025
- Spreads (the yield above a comparable maturity Treasury) widened slightly in February for riskier bonds and were
stable for investment grade issues.
- All yield spreads remained below their respective long-run averages, particularly high yield (2.8% versus 4.9%).
- Although spreads are tight, absolute yields remain at above-average levels compared to the last two decades.

' Source: Bloomberg. Data is as February 28, 2025. Average lines denote the average of the investment grade, high yield, and emerging market spread values from September 2002 to the recent month-end, respectively.

MEKETA.COM Page 11 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Equity and Fixed Income Volatility'

80 250
200

60 >
b 2 150
= 40 w +1 Std. Dev.
x
S g 100 104.5
20 Y 'F“""l ] FN" 50

-1 Std. Dev.
0 0
2001 2005 2009 2013 2017 2021 2025 2001 2005 2009 2013 2017 2021 2025

- Bond and equity volatility rose in February mainly driven by policy and trade uncertainty.

- Volatility levels (VIX) in the US stock market finished February below its long-run average, while volatility in the
bond market (MOVE) finished the month above its long-run average.

1 Equity Volatility — Source: FRED. Fixed Income Volatility — Source: Bloomberg. Implied volatility as measured using VIX Index for equity markets and the MOVE Index to measure interest rate volatility for fixed income markets. Data is as of

February 28, 2025. The average line indicated is the average of the VIX and MOVE values between January 2000 and February 2025.
o
Page 12 of 19

MEKETA.COM



MEKETA

Economic and Market Update

US Ten-Year Breakeven Inflation and CPI’

Breakeven Rate 10Y Core CPI CPI
10%
8% CPI Avg = 2.5%
Core CPI Avg = 2.4%
6% BE 10Y Avg = 2%
4%

NNW
D=
RESES

Mttt L |
O%WWM LZBALAV AR ;

-2
% 2001 2005 2009 2013 2017 2021 2025

- In February, inflation came in slightly below expectations, month-over-month (0.2% versus 0.3%) and fell compared
to the January level of 0.5%; headline inflation rose 2.8% over the past twelve months also a decline from the prior
reading and below of expectations of 2.9%.

- Shelter continued to drive both headline and core inflation in February, with the shelter index rising 0.3% month-
over-month and accounting for nearly half of the headline inflation for the month.

-» Core inflation rose 0.2% month-over-month in February and increased 3.1% year-on-year (both below expectations
and below the January readings). Owners’ equivalent rent rose 4.2% over the last 12 months, while vehicle

insurance (11.1%), medical care (2.9%), and education (3.7%) also contributed to core inflation.

- Inflation expectations (breakevens) fell slightly over the month as concerns related to the potential inflationary

impacts of the new US administration’s policies shifted to concerns over economic growth.

1 Source: FRED. Data is as of February 2025. The CPI and 10 Year Breakeven average lines denote the average values from February 1997 to the present month-end, respectively. Breakeven values represent month-end values for comparative

purposes.

MEKETA.COM

Page 13 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Global Inflation (CPI Trailing Twelve Months)'

- Eurozone China —— Japan
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2% -\r"/\N"\-—\I"'M-/I\ I/"\"‘

0% |-~ — -— ‘ ! ——

4.0%
2.4%

-0.7%

2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025

- After four monthly increases, inflation in the eurozone declined slightly (2.5% to 2.4%)

in February, but levels

remain below the US. The increase from the lows was driven by last year’s significant fall in energy prices no longer

being included in the calculation.

-» The latest reading of inflation in Japan rose from 3.6% to 4.0% due in part to an increase in food prices and the

end of energy subsidies driving electricity and gas prices higher.

- In China, despite record policy stimulus consumer prices fell in February by 0.7% (exceeding the expectations of
a 0.5% decline). Despite years of policy stimulus to counter the real estate crisis, the Chinese consumer has

remained weak; contributing to the first negative inflation print since January 2024.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as February 2025, except Japan which is as of January 2025.

MEKETA.COM

Page 14 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

US Unemployment'

=== United States U-3 United States U-6

22%
20%
18%
16%
14%
12%

10%
8% 8.0%
6% e
4% — 4.1%
2%

2003 2005 2007 2009 201 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025

- The US economy added 151,000 jobs in February below expectations for 160,000 new jobs with the unemployment
rate rising slightly from 4.0% to 4.1%, with 7.1 million jobseekers looking for work (little changed from the prior
reading).

- A broader measure of total unemployed (U-6) that includes those marginally attached to the labor force and
employed part-time for economic reasons, rose slightly to 8.0%, the highest level since late 2021.

- Health care, financial activities, transport/warehouse, and social assistance sectors added jobs in February while
the Federal government lost 10,000 jobs in the month.

-» The last reading of job openings came in at around 7.7 million, a level well below the pandemic highs (>12 million);
the number of openings exceeds the number of unemployed workers looking for work (7.1 million).

- Separations (5.3 million) and hires (5.4 million) remained steady and average hourly wages continued to grow at
approximately 4.0% a year.

" Source: FRED and BLS. Data is as of February 28, 2025.
e
MEKETA.COM Page 15 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Policy Rates'

== United States Eurozone = China Japan = United Kingdom
6.0%
5.5%
igé 4.5%
. "
o 4.0% 4.4%
= 3.5%
& 3.0% N 2.8%
> 2.5% h\_ )
S 2.0% 2.0%
o 1.5%
1.0%
0.5% 0.5%
0.0%
-0.5%
2017 2019 2021 2023 2025

-» The Fed kept US interest rates steady at their January meeting after reducing rates by 0.25% twice over the final
quarter of 2024 to a range of 4.25% to 4.50%. Given growing concerns about growth, markets recently increased

expectations for the amount of rate cuts in 2025 to between two and three.

- In February, the Bank of England cut interest rates for the third time by 0.25% to 4.5%, and after month-end the
European Central Bank cut rates by another 0.25% to 2.5%. The People’s Bank of China also continues to maintain

measures to try to stimulate the economy with increasing debt issuance and defending the yuan.

- In contrast to many other central banks, the Bank of Japan increased interest rates in January to 0.5%, in the face
of persistent inflation. Rate cutting by other major central banks are complicating prospects for further policy rate

hikes in Japan.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of February 28, 2025. United States rate is the mid-point of the Federal Funds Target Rate range. Eurozone rate is the ECB Deposit Facility Announcement Rate. Japan rate is the Bank of Japan Unsecured Ovemight

Call Rate Expected. China rate is the China Central Bank 1-Year Medium Term Interest Rate. UK rate is the UK Bank of England Official Bank Rate.

MEKETA.COM

Page 16 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

US Dollar vs. Broad Currencies’
$130
$120
L $107.6
$100

$90

DXY Index

$ 80
$70

$ 60

2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025

- After largely strengthening through 2024 the US dollar recently started to weaken.

- Concerns over slower growth in the US and corresponding lower yields have recently weighed on the value of the
dollar.

1 Source: Bloomberg. Data as of February 28, 2025.
|
MEKETA.COM Page 17 of 19



M E KETA Economic and Market Update

Summary

Key Trends:

-

According to the International Monetary Fund’s (IMF) January report, global growth in 2025 is expected to be
slightly higher than 2024 (3.3% versus 3.2%). Growth forecast in the US (+2.7%) and China (+4.6%) are lower for
this year compared to last, while growth in the EU (+1.0%) is projected to be slightly higher in 2025.

Questions remain about what policies will be implemented by the new administration in the US, with particularly
concerns about tariffs’ potential impact on growth. Although deregulation and tax cuts could support growth, these
policies, along with higher tariffs and restrictive immigration, could fan inflation. This will likely lead to additional
uncertainty regarding the timing and pace of interest rate cuts in the coming year.

Signs of pressure have started to emerge on the US consumer with sentiment weakening. Overall risk to economic
growth and to inflation from tariffs, as well elevated borrowing costs, could put further pressure on consumers and
lead to a weaker job market.

US equities have recently come under pressure. A focus going forward will be whether earnings can remain resilient
if growth slows. Also, the future paths of the large technology companies that have driven market gains will continue
to be important.

We have started to see divergence in monetary policies. The Fed is likely to cut interest rates at a much slower
pace than previously expected in 2025. On the other hand, additional rate cuts are expected from the
European Central Bank and the Bank of England, while the Bank of Japan has increased interest rates. This
disparity will likely influence capital flows and currencies.

China appears to have shifted focus to more policy support for the economy/asset prices with a suite of fiscal and
financial policy stimulus measures. Advances in Al technologies have also contributed to optimism. Despite the
policy support consumer spending remains weak and issues remain in the real estate sector. It is not clear what
the long-term economic impact of these policies will be, and if policy makers will remain committed to these efforts.

MEKETA.COM Page 18 of 19



M EKETA Disclaimer

THIS REPORT (THE “REPORT”) HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT (THE “RECIPIENT").

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS MAY OCCUR (OR HAVE OCCURRED) AFTER THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, AND IT IS NOT OUR FUNCTION OR
RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THIS REPORT. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY OPINIONS OR
RECOMMENDATIONS, REPRESENTS OUR GOOD FAITH VIEWS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY
TIME. ALL INVESTMENTS INVOLVE RISK, AND THERE CAN BE NO GUARANTEE THAT THE STRATEGIES, TACTICS, AND METHODS
DISCUSSED HERE WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.

THE INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FROM INVESTMENT MANAGERS, CUSTODIANS, AND
OTHER EXTERNAL SOURCES. SOME OF THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN PRODUCED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ARTIFICIAL
INTELLIGENCE (“AlI’) TECHNOLOGY. WHILE WE HAVE EXERCISED REASONABLE CARE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT, WE CANNOT
GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, VALIDITY, RELIABILITY, AVAILABILITY, OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY INFORMATION
CONTAINED HEREIN, WHETHER OBTAINED EXTERNALLY OR PRODUCED BY THE Al.

THE RECIPIENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THIS REPORT MAY INCLUDE AI-GENERATED CONTENT THAT MAY NOT HAVE CONSIDERED
ALL RISK FACTORS. THE RECIPIENT IS ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH THEIR MEKETA ADVISOR OR ANOTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR
BEFORE MAKING ANY FINANCIAL DECISIONS OR TAKING ANY ACTION BASED ON THE CONTENT OF THIS REPORT. WE BELIEVE THE
INFORMATION TO BE FACTUAL AND UP TO DATE BUT DO NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE
CONTENT PRODUCED. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL,
OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHER TORT,
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF THIS CONTENT. IT IS IMPORTANT FOR THE RECIPIENT TO CRITICALLY
EVALUATE THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

CERTAIN INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT MAY CONSTITUTE “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,” WHICH CAN BE
IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “SHOULD,” “EXPECT,” “AIM,” “ANTICIPATE,” “TARGET,” “PROJECT,”
‘ESTIMATE,” “INTEND,” “CONTINUE,” OR “BELIEVE,” OR THE NEGATIVES THEREOF OR OTHER VARIATIONS THEREON OR COMPARABLE
TERMINOLOGY. ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT ARE
BASED UPON CURRENT ASSUMPTIONS. CHANGES TO ANY ASSUMPTIONS MAY HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY THEREFORE BE MATERIALLY
DIFFERENT FROM ANY FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT.

PERFORMANCE DATA CONTAINED HEREIN REPRESENT PAST PERFORMANCE. PAST PERFORMANCE IS NO GUARANTEE OF FUTURE
RESULTS.

e
MEKETA.COM Page 19 of 19



Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

March 26, 2025

February Flash Report

MEKETA.COM



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

As of February 28, 2025
Policy Current Allocation vs. Targets and Policy
Balance Current Lo;gl-i'lc':(;rm Difference I;:ﬁ::; ;g:;’é Within
0, 0, 2
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) Range?
B Domestic Equity 212,308,645 451 25.0 20.1 340 15.0-35.0 No
International Equity 64,100,061 13.6 5.0 8.6 120 2.0-22.0 Yes
B Fixed Income 113,179,337 24.0 51.0 -27.0 440 31.0-71.0 No
1 Credit 6,022,488 1.3 10.0 -8.7 0.0 0.0-16.0 Yes
B Covered Calls 20,573,694 4.4 0.0 4.4 00 0.0-50 Yes
5.0% Crisis Risk Offset 38,443,626 8.2 9.0 -0.8 10.0 4.0-14.0 Yes
B Cash 16,496,878 3.5 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.0-5.0 Yes
Total 471,124,727 100.0 100.0 0.0 100.0

13.6%
0.0% 8.2%
9.0%
0.0%

The new asset allocation policy established after the completion of the 2023 Asset-Liability Study became effective in July 2024. The asset classes may be out of policy ranges due to pending transitions.

MEKETA.COM Page 2 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Asset Class Performance Summary | As of February 28, 2025
Asset Class Performance Summary

Market Value % of 1 Mo QTD FYTD 1Yr 3Yrs 5Yrs 10 Yrs S.L Inception

(%) Portfolio (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) Date

OPFRS Total Plan 471,124,727 100.0 0.0 2.4 6.4 9.0 4.8 7.2 6.7 6.7 Dec-88
OPFRS Policy Benchmark 0.6 2.4 6.4 10.5 5.9 7.9 7.1 8.0
Excess Return -0.6 -0.1 0.0 -1.5 -1.2 -0.7 -0.4 -1.3

Domestic Equity 212,308,645 451 -1.9 1.2 9.3 12,9 8.6 13.7 10.9 9.2 Jun-97
Russell 3000 (Blend) -1.9 1.2 10.3 17.5 11.6 16.1 12.4 9.8
Excess Return 0.0 0.1 -1.0 -4.6 -2.9 -2.5 -14 -0.5

International Equity 64,100,061 13.6 1.4 6.1 6.9 10.4 6.6 8.5 6.0 5.6 Jan-98
MSCI ACWI ex US (Blend) 1.4 5.5 5.3 9.7 4.6 7.6 4.8 5.3
Excess Return 0.0 0.6 1.6 0.7 1.9 0.9 1.2 0.3

Fixed Income 113,179,337 24.0 2.4 2.9 4.9 6.0 -0.2 -0.1 2.0 4.5 Jan-94
Fixed Income & Credit Benchmark 2.2 2.7 5.1 6.4 0.1 -0.1 1.9 4.5
Excess Return 0.2 0.2 -0.2 -04 -0.3 0.0 0.1 -0.1

Credit 6,022,488 1.3 0.5 1.5 5.3 8.0 4.7 5.9 5.1 5.3 Feb-15
Blmbg. U.S. Corp: High Yield Index 0.7 2.0 7.6 10.1 4.9 4.9 5.1 5.3
Excess Return -0.1 -0.5 -2.3 -2.1 -0.2 0.9 0.0 0.0

Covered Calls 20,573,694 4.4 -0.5 1.9 9.6 15.7 10.3 13.8 10.2 9.9 Apr-14
Cboe S&P 500 Buy Write Index -0.6 1.6 13.5 17.7 7.7 9.2 7.0 6.8
Excess Return 0.0 0.2 -3.8 -2.0 2.6 4.6 3.2 3.1

Crisis Risk Offset 38,443,626 8.2 1.7 2.5 -2.9 -2.6 -3.6 -8.6 - -6.5 Aug-18
Crisis Risk Offset Benchmark 0.7 1.4 -0.4 1.1 3.6 1.1 - 0.5
Excess Return 1.0 1.1 -2.4 -3.7 -71 -9.6 - -7.0

Cash 16,496,878 3.5 0.0 0.2 0.6 0.9 0.3 0.3 0.8 0.6 Mar-11

Performance shown is net of fees, except for Total Plan, Domestic Equity, and International Equity composites which have a mix of gross and net of fees performance. Please see the Addendum for more details.
Since inception date and performance begin in the month following an investment's initial funding. Fiscal year begins on July 1. Please see Benchmark History section for custom benchmark compositions.

I
MEKETA.COM Page 3 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Asset Class & Manager Performance | As of February 28, 2025

Market Value % of 1Mo QTD FYTD 1Yr 3Yrs 5Yrs 10Yrs S.d Inception
($) Portfolio (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) Date

OPFRS Total Plan 471,124,727 100.0 0.0 24 6.4 9.0 4.8 7.2 6.7 6.7 Dec-88
OPFRS Policy Benchmark 0.6 2.4 6.4 10.5 5.9 7.9 7.1 8.0
Excess Return -0.6 -0.1 0.0 -1.5 -1.2 -0.7 -0.4 -1.3

Domestic Equity 212,308,645 451 -1.9 1.2 9.3 12.9 8.6 13.7 10.9 9.2 Jun-97
Russell 3000 (Blend) -1.9 1.2 10.3 17.5 11.6 16.1 12.4 9.8
Excess Return 0.0 0.1 -1.0 -4.6 -2.9 -2.5 -1.4 -0.5

Northern Trust Russell 1000 111,341,190 23.6 -1.8 1.4 104 18.0 12.0 16.4 12.6 14.1 Jun-10
Russell 1000 Index -1.7 1.4 10.5 18.1 12.1 16.5 12.7 14.2
Excess Return 0.0 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

EARNEST Partners 41,754,921 8.9 -3.6 0.5 5.3 4.4 4.1 11.5 10.5 9.2 Apr-06
Russell Midcap Index -2.8 1.3 11.3 12.2 7.2 12.4 9.3 9.1
Excess Return -0.8 -0.8 -6.0 -7.9 -3.1 -0.9 1.2 0.1

Wellington Select Quality Equity 26,120,583 5.5 0.1 2.3 8.0 8.7 -- -- -- 8.3 May-22
Russell 1000 Index -1.7 1.4 10.5 18.1 -- -- -- 15.2
Excess Return 1.9 0.9 -2.5 94 - - - -6.9

Brown Fundamental Small Cap Value 14,304,364 3.0 -4.2 -3.3 54 7.4 7.7 - - 7.0 Apr-21
Russell 2000 Value Index -3.8 -1.9 7.0 7.6 2.8 -- -- 2.5
Excess Return -04 -1.4 -1.6 -0.2 4.9 -- -- 4.5

Rice Hall James 18,787,587 4.0 -04 4.4 17.1 15.2 5.1 10.3 -- 8.3 Aug-17
Russell 2000 Growth Index -6.8 -3.8 6.0 5.8 3.6 7.9 - 7.4
Excess Return 6.4 8.2 111 9.3 1.5 2.4 - 0.9

Performance shown is net of fees, except for Total Plan and Domestic Equity which have a mix of gross and net of fees performance. Please see the Addendum for more details. Since inception date and performance begin in the month
following an investments initial funding. Fiscal year begins on July 1. Please see the Benchmark History for custom benchmark compositions.

-
MEKETA.COM Page 4 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Asset Class & Manager Performance | As of February 28, 2025

Market Value % of 1Mo QTD FYTD 1Yr 3Yrs 5Yrs 10Yrs S.d Inception
($) Portfolio (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) Date

International Equity 64,100,061 13.6 1.4 6.1 6.9 10.4 6.6 8.5 6.0 5.6 Jan-98
MSCI ACWI ex US (Blend) 1.4 5.5 5.3 9.7 4.6 7.6 4.8 5.3
Excess Return 0.0 0.6 1.6 0.7 1.9 0.9 1.2 0.3

Vanguard Developed Markets ETF 17,101,556 3.6 2.3 6.8 5.2 8.4 55 8.5 - 7.7 Sep-19
FTSE Developed All Cap ex-U.S. Index 1.4 6.3 5.4 8.6 5.6 8.9 -- 8.0
Excess Return 0.8 0.5 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -04 -- -0.2

SGA ACWI ex-U.S. Equity 46,998,505 10.0 1.1 5.8 7.6 11.1 6.9 8.6 - 6.3 Dec-19
MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 1.4 5.5 5.3 9.7 4.6 7.6 -- 5.8
Excess Return -0.3 0.3 2.3 14 2.3 1.1 -- 0.5

Fixed Income 113,179,337 24.0 24 2.9 4.9 6.0 -0.2 -0.1 2.0 4.5 Jan-94
Fixed Income & Credit Benchmark 2.2 2.7 5.1 6.4 0.1 -0.1 1.9 4.5
Excess Return 0.2 0.2 -0.2 -04 -0.3 0.0 0.1 -0.1

Ramirez 76,644,195 16.3 24 3.0 4.8 5.7 -0.3 -04 -- 2.0 Jan-17
Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index 2.2 2.7 4.8 5.8 -0.4 -0.5 - 1.6
Excess Return 0.2 0.2 0.0 -0.1 0.1 0.1 - 0.4

Wellington Core Bond 7,363,315 1.6 2.3 2.8 5.1 6.6 0.0 - - -0.5 Apr-21
Bimbg. U.S. Aggregate Index 2.2 2.7 4.8 5.8 -0.4 -- -- -0.7
Excess Return 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.8 04 -- -- 0.2

Reams 29,171,826 6.2 24 2.9 5.1 6.4 0.3 2.2 3.0 4.9 Feb-98
Fixed Income & Credit Benchmark 2.2 2.7 5.1 6.4 0.1 -0.1 1.9 4.2
Excess Return 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 2.3 1.2 0.7

Performance shown is net of fees, except for International Equity composite which has a mix of gross and net of fees performance. Please see the Addendum for more details. Since inception date and performance begin in the month
following an investments initial funding. Fiscal year begins on July 1. Please see the Benchmark History for custom benchmark compositions.

-
MEKETA.COM Page 5 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Asset Class & Manager Performance | As of February 28, 2025

Market Value % of 1Mo QTD FYTD 1Yr 3Yrs 5Yrs 10Yrs S.d Inception
($) Portfolio (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) Date

Credit 6,022,488 1.3 0.5 1.5 5.3 8.0 4.7 5.9 5.1 5.3 Feb-15
Blmbg. U.S. Corp: High Yield Index 0.7 2.0 7.6 10.1 4.9 4.9 5.1 5.3
Excess Return -0.1 -0.5 -2.3 -2.1 -0.2 0.9 0.0 0.0

Polen Capital 6,022,488 1.3 0.5 15 5.3 8.0 4.7 5.9 5.1 5.3 Feb-15
ICE BofA U.S. High Yield Index 0.7 2.0 7.6 10.1 4.9 4.8 5.0 5.2
Excess Return -0.1 -0.5 -2.3 -2.0 -0.2 1.1 0.1 0.1

Covered Calls 20,573,694 4.4 -0.5 1.9 9.6 15.7 10.3 13.8 10.2 9.9 Apr-14
Cboe S&P 500 Buy Write Index -0.6 1.6 13.5 17.7 7.7 9.2 7.0 6.8
Excess Return 0.0 0.2 -3.8 -2.0 2.6 4.6 3.2 3.1

Parametric BXM 9,836,826 2.1 -0.1 2.0 9.7 14.9 8.9 11.2 8.4 8.0 Apr-14
Cboe S&P 500 Buy Write Index -0.6 1.6 13.5 17.7 7.7 9.2 7.0 6.8
Excess Return 0.5 04 -3.8 -2.8 1.2 2.1 14 1.2

Parametric DeltaShift 10,736,867 2.3 -0.9 1.7 9.6 16.5 115 16.0 11.6 11.9 Apr-14
Cboe S&P 500 Buy Write Index -0.6 1.6 13.5 17.7 7.7 9.2 7.0 6.8
Excess Return -0.4 0.1 -3.9 -1.2 3.8 6.8 4.6 5.1

Performance shown is net of fees. Since inception date and performance begin in the month following an investments initial funding. Fiscal year begins on July 1. Please see the Benchmark History for custom benchmark compositions.

|
MEKETA.COM Page 6 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Asset Class & Manager Performance | As of February 28, 2025

Market Value % of 1Mo QTD FYTD 1Yr 3Yrs 5Yrs 10Yrs S.d Inception
($) Portfolio (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) Date

Crisis Risk Offset 38,443,626 8.2 1.7 25 -2.9 -2.6 -3.6 -8.6 -- -6.5 Aug-18
Crisis Risk Offset Benchmark 0.7 1.4 -0.4 1.1 3.6 1.1 -- 0.5
Excess Return 1.0 1.1 -2.4 -3.7 -7.1 -9.6 -- -7.0

Kepos Alternative Risk Premia 13,406,042 2.8 3.5 7.1 10.6 15.9 10.5 - - 10.0 Feb-22
SG Multi Alternative Risk Premia Index 0.2 1.7 3.0 7.1 7.4 -- -- 6.9
Excess Return 3.3 54 7.6 8.8 3.1 -- -- 3.0

Versor Trend Following 12,065,057 2.6 -3.5 -5.1 -19.6 -215 -~ -- -- -7.2 Apr-22
SG Trend Index -3.2 -3.0 -8.5 -7.7 -- -- -- 1.1
Excess Return -0.3 -2.0 -11.1 -13.9 - -- -- -8.3

Vanguard Long-Term Treasury ETF 12,972,526 2.8 5.1 5.8 4.0 3.3 -8.6 -6.7 -- -3.1 Jul-19
Bimbg. U.S. Gov Long Index 5.2 5.6 4.1 3.4 -8.6 -6.6 -- -3.1
Excess Return 0.0 0.1 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -- 0.0

Cash 16,496,878 3.5 0.0 0.2 0.6 0.9 0.3 0.3 0.8 0.6 Mar-11

Performance shown is net of fees. Since inception date and performance begin in the month following an investments initial funding. Fiscal year begins on July 1. Please see the Benchmark History for custom benchmark compositions.

-
MEKETA.COM Page 7 of 16



Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

MEKETA

Financial Reconciliation | February 28, 2025

Cash Flow Summary
Month to Date

Beginning Net Investment Ending
Market Value($) Net Cash Flow($) Change($) Market Value($)

Northern Trust Russell 1000 113,324,976 - -1,983,786 111,341,190
EARNEST Partners 43,301,851 - -1,546,930 41,754,921
Wellington Select Quality Equity 27,582,871 -1,500,000 37,712 26,120,583
Brown Fundamental Small Cap Value 14,926,652 - -622,287 14,304,364
Rice Hall James 18,845,731 - -58,144 18,787,587
Vanguard Developed Markets ETF 16,723,158 - 378,397 17,101,556
SGA ACWI ex-U.S. Equity 46,467,049 - 531,456 46,998,505
Ramirez 74,852,772 - 1,791,424 76,644,195
Wellington Core Bond 7,197,552 - 165,764 7,363,315
Reams 28,493,972 - 677,854 29,171,826
Polen Capital 5,989,978 - 32,510 6,022,488
Parametric BXM 9,844,571 - -7,745 9,836,826
Parametric DeltaShift 10,835,523 - -98,656 10,736,867
Kepos Alternative Risk Premia 12,952,698 - 453,344 13,406,042
Versor Trend Following 12,497,171 - -432,114 12,065,057
Vanguard Long-Term Treasury ETF 12,383,068 -45,978 635,436 12,972,526
Cash - Money Market 6,569,353 79,625 6,900 6,655,878
Cash - Treasury 9,974,000 -133,000 - 9,841,000
Securities Lending Northern Trust - -11,522 11,522 -
OPFRS Total Plan 472,762,945 -1,610,875 -27,343 471,124,727

- |
Page 8 of 16

MEKETA.COM



MEKETA

Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Benchmark History | As of February 28, 2025

Benchmark History

From Date

To Date

OPFRS Total Plan

Benchmark

01/01/2025  Present 34.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA (Net), 44.0% Bimbg. U.S. Aggregate Index, 10.0% Crisis Risk Offset
Benchmark

07/01/2024  01/01/2025  34.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA (Net), 44.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index, 10.0% Crisis Risk Offset
Benchmark

06/01/2022  07/01/2024  40.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA (Net), 31.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index, 2.0% Bimbg. U.S. Corp:
High Yield Index, 5.0% Cboe S&P 500 Buy Write Index, 10.0% Crisis Risk Offset Benchmark

01/01/2019  06/01/2022  40.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 31.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index, 5.0% Cboe S&P 500 Buy
Write Index, 2.0% Blmbg. U.S. Treasury: Long, 10.0% Crisis Risk Offset Benchmark

05/01/2016  01/01/2019  48.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 20.0% Bimbg. U.S. Universal Index, 20.0% CBOE BXM

10/01/2015  05/01/2016  43.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 20.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index, 15.0% CBOE BXM,
10.0% CPI - All Urban Consumers (unadjusted) +3%

01/01/2014  10/01/2015  48.0% Russell 3000 Index, 12.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 20.0% BIimbg. U.S. Universal Index, 10.0% CBOE BXM,
10.0% CPI - All Urban Consumers (unadjusted) +3%

03/01/2013  01/01/2014  40.0% Russell 3000 Index, 10.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 17.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index, 33.0% ICE BofA 3 Month
U.S. T-Bill

08/01/2012  03/01/2013  20.0% Russell 3000 Index, 7.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 18.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index, 55.0% ICE BofA 3 Month
U.S. T-Bill

10/01/2007  08/01/2012  53.0% Russell 3000 Index, 17.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 30.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index

04/01/2006  10/01/2007  35.0% Russell 3000 Index, 15.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index, 50.0% Blmbg. U.S. Universal Index

01/01/2005  04/01/2006  35.0% Russell 3000 Index, 50.0% Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index, 15.0% MSCI AC World ex USA index

04/01/1998  01/01/2005  20.0% Russell 1000 Value Index, 10.0% Russell 1000 Index, 5.0% Russell Midcap Index, 50.0% Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index,
15.0% MSCI EAFE (Net)

01/01/1978  04/01/1998  40.0% S&P 500 Index, 55.0% Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index, 5.0% FTSE 3 Month T-Bill

e ——
MEKETA.COM Page 9 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Benchmark History | As of February 28, 2025

Benchmark History

From Date To Date Benchmark
Domestic Equity
01/01/2005 Present 100.0% Russell 3000 Index

04/01/1998  01/01/2005  57.1% Russell 1000 Value Index, 28.6% Russell 1000 Index, 14.3% Russell Midcap Index
09/01/1988  04/01/1998  100.0% S&P 500 Index
International Equity
01/01/2005  Present 100.0% MSCI AC World ex USA (Net)
01/01/1998  01/01/2005  100.0% MSCI EAFE Index
Fixed Income & Credit
01/01/2025  Present 100.0% Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index
04/01/2006  01/01/2025  100.0% BIimbg. U.S. Universal Index
01/01/1976  04/01/2006  100.0% Blmbg. U.S. Aggregate Index
Covered Calls

04/01/2014  Present Cboe S&P 500 Buy Write Index
Crisis Risk Offset
01/01/2023  Present 33.3% SG Trend Index, 33.3% SG Multi Alternative Risk Premia Index, 33.3% Blmbg. U.S. Government: Long Term Bond Index
08/01/2018  01/01/2023  100.0% SG Multi Alternative Risk Premia Index
Cash
03/01/2011 Present FTSE 3 Month T-Bill

]
MEKETA.COM Page 10 of 16



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Additional Information

Additional Information

Performance Return Types: Performance shown is net of fees, except for OPFRS Total Plan, Domestic Equity, and International
Equity Composites, which have a mix of gross and net of fees performance. Performance shown for OPFRS Total Plan and
International Equity composite is gross of fees prior to January 2016. Performance shown for Domestic Equity composite is gross of
fees prior to January 2017.

Inception Date: Since inception date and performance begin in the month following an investments initial funding.
Fiscal Year: Fiscal year begins on July 1.

Fair Value Pricing Methodology: Though Vanguard Developed Markets ETF is a passive strategy, short-term performance may
appear to diverge from the index it tracks more than would be expected. This is due to Fair Value Pricing (FVP) adjustments that
address the pricing discrepancies that may arise from time-zone differences among global securities markets. The resulting temporary
divergence is expected to correct itself when the foreign markets reopen.

MEKETA INVESTMENT GROUP age 110



Disclaimer, Glossary, and Notes

Page 12 of 16



M E KETA Disclaimer, Glossary, and Notes

THIS REPORT (THE “REPORT") HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT (THE “RECIPIENT").

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS MAY OCCUR (OR HAVE OCCURRED) AFTER THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, AND IT IS NOT OUR FUNCTION OR
RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THIS REPORT. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY OPINIONS OR
RECOMMENDATIONS, REPRESENTS OUR GOOD FAITH VIEWS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY
TIME. ALL INVESTMENTS INVOLVE RISK, AND THERE CAN BE NO GUARANTEE THAT THE STRATEGIES, TACTICS, AND METHODS
DISCUSSED HERE WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.

THE INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FROM INVESTMENT MANAGERS, CUSTODIANS, AND
OTHER EXTERNAL SOURCES. SOME OF THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN PRODUCED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ARTIFICIAL
INTELLIGENCE (“AlI’) TECHNOLOGY. WHILE WE HAVE EXERCISED REASONABLE CARE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT, WE CANNOT
GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, VALIDITY, RELIABILITY, AVAILABILITY, OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY INFORMATION
CONTAINED HEREIN, WHETHER OBTAINED EXTERNALLY OR PRODUCED BY THE Al.

THE RECIPIENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THIS REPORT MAY INCLUDE AI-GENERATED CONTENT THAT MAY NOT HAVE CONSIDERED
ALL RISK FACTORS. THE RECIPIENT IS ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH THEIR MEKETA ADVISOR OR ANOTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR
BEFORE MAKING ANY FINANCIAL DECISIONS OR TAKING ANY ACTION BASED ON THE CONTENT OF THIS REPORT. WE BELIEVE THE
INFORMATION TO BE FACTUAL AND UP TO DATE BUT DO NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE
CONTENT PRODUCED. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL,
OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHER TORT,
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF THIS CONTENT. IT IS IMPORTANT FOR THE RECIPIENT TO CRITICALLY
EVALUATE THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

CERTAIN INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT MAY CONSTITUTE “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,” WHICH CAN BE
IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “SHOULD,” “EXPECT,” “AIM,” “ANTICIPATE,” “TARGET,” “PROJECT,”
‘ESTIMATE,” “INTEND,” “CONTINUE,” OR “BELIEVE,” OR THE NEGATIVES THEREOF OR OTHER VARIATIONS THEREON OR COMPARABLE
TERMINOLOGY. ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT ARE
BASED UPON CURRENT ASSUMPTIONS. CHANGES TO ANY ASSUMPTIONS MAY HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY THEREFORE BE MATERIALLY
DIFFERENT FROM ANY FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT.

PERFORMANCE DATA CONTAINED HEREIN REPRESENT PAST PERFORMANCE. PAST PERFORMANCE IS NO GUARANTEE OF FUTURE
RESULTS.

e
MEKETA.COM Page 13 of 16



M E KETA Disclaimer, Glossary, and Notes

Credit Risk: Refers to the risk that the issuer of a fixed income security may default (i.e., the issuer will be unable to make timely principal and/or
interest payments on the security).

Duration: Measure of the sensitivity of the price of a bond to a change in its yield to maturity. Duration summarizes, in a single number, the
characteristics that cause bond prices to change in response to a change in interest rates. For example, the price of a bond with a duration of three
years will rise by approximately 3% for each 1% decrease in its yield to maturity. Conversely, the price will decrease 3% for each 1% increase in the
bond’s yield. Price changes for two different bonds can be compared using duration. A bond with a duration of six years will exhibit twice the
percentage price change of a bond with a three-year duration. The actual calculation of a bond’s duration is somewhat complicated, but the idea
behind the calculation is straightforward. The first step is to measure the time interval until receipt for each cash flow (coupon and principal payments)
from a bond. The second step is to compute a weighted average of these time intervals. Each time interval is measured by the present value of that
cash flow. This weighted average is the duration of the bond measured in years.

Information Ratio: This statistic is a measure of the consistency of a portfolio’s performance relative to a benchmark. It is calculated by subtracting
the benchmark return from the portfolio return (excess return), and dividing the resulting excess return by the standard deviation (volatility) of this
excess return. A positive information ratio indicates outperformance versus the benchmark, and the higher the information ratio, the more consistent
the outperformance.

Jensen’s Alpha: A measure of the average return of a portfolio or investment in excess of what is predicted by its beta or “market” risk. Portfolio
Return- [Risk Free Rate+Beta*(market return-Risk Free Rate)].

Market Capitalization: For a firm, market capitalization is the total market value of outstanding common stock. For a portfolio, market capitalization
is the sum of the capitalization of each company weighted by the ratio of holdings in that company to total portfolio holdings; thus it is a weighted-
average capitalization. Meketa Investment Group considers the largest 65% of the broad domestic equity market as large capitalization, the next
25% of the market as medium capitalization, and the smallest 10% of stocks as small capitalization.

Market Weighted: Stocks in many indices are weighted based on the total market capitalization of the issue. Thus, the individual returns of higher
market-capitalization issues will more heavily influence an index’s return than the returns of the smaller market-capitalization issues in the index.

Maturity: The date on which a loan, bond, mortgage, or other debt/security becomes due and is to be paid off.

Prepayment Risk: The risk that prepayments will increase (homeowners will prepay all or part of their mortgage) when mortgage interest rates
decline; hence, investors’ monies will be returned to them in a lower interest rate environment. Also, the risk that prepayments will slow down when
mortgage interest rates rise; hence, investors will not have as much money as previously anticipated in a higher interest rate environment. A
prepayment is any payment in excess of the scheduled mortgage payment.

Price-Book Value (P/B) Ratio: The current market price of a stock divided by its book value per share. Meketa Investment Group calculates P/B
as the current price divided by Compustat's quarterly common equity. Common equity includes common stock, capital surplus, retained earnings,
and treasury stock adjusted for both common and nonredeemable preferred stock. Similar to high P/E stocks, stocks with high P/B’s tend to be riskier
investments.

e, ]
MEKETA.COM Page 14 of 16



M E KETA Disclaimer, Glossary, and Notes

Price-Earnings (P/E) Ratio: A stock’s market price divided by its current or estimated future earnings. Lower P/E ratios often characterize stocks in
low growth or mature industries, stocks in groups that have fallen out of favor, or stocks of established blue chip companies with long records of stable
earnings and regular dividends. Sometimes a company that has good fundamentals may be viewed unfavorably by the market if it is an industry that
is temporarily out of favor. Or a business may have experienced financial problems causing investors to be skeptical about is future. Either of these
situations would result in lower relative P/E ratios. Some stocks exhibit above-average sales and earnings growth or expectations for above average
growth. Consequently, investors are willing to pay more for these companies’ earnings, which results in elevated P/E ratios. In other words, investors
will pay more for shares of companies whose profits, in their opinion, are expected to increase faster than average. Because future events are in no
way assured, high P/E stocks tend to be riskier and more volatile investments. Meketa Investment Group calculates P/E as the current price divided
by the I/B/E/S consensus of twelve-month forecast earnings per share.

Quality Rating: The rank assigned a security by such rating services as Fitch, Moody’s, and Standard & Poor’s. The rating may be determined by
such factors as (1) the likelihood of fulfillment of dividend, income, and principal payment of obligations; (2) the nature and provisions of the issue;
and (3) the security’s relative position in the event of liquidation of the company. Bonds assigned the top four grades (AAA, AA, A, BBB) are considered
investment grade because they are eligible bank investments as determined by the controller of the currency.

Sharpe Ratio: A commonly used measure of risk-adjusted return. It is calculated by subtracting the risk free return (usually three-month Treasury
bill) from the portfolio return and dividing the resulting excess return by the portfolio’s total risk level (standard deviation). The result is a measure of
return per unit of total risk taken. The higher the Sharpe ratio, the better the fund’s historical risk adjusted performance.

STIF Account: Short-term investment fund at a custodian bank that invests in cash-equivalent instruments. It is generally used to safely invest the
excess cash held by portfolio managers.

Standard Deviation: A measure of the total risk of an asset or a portfolio. Standard deviation measures the dispersion of a set of numbers around
a central point (e.g., the average return). If the standard deviation is small, the distribution is concentrated within a narrow range of values. For a
normal distribution, about two thirds of the observations will fall within one standard deviation of the mean, and 95% of the observations will fall within
two standard deviations of the mean.

Style: The description of the type of approach and strategy utilized by an investment manager to manage funds. For example, the style for equities
is determined by portfolio characteristics such as price-to-book value, price-to-earnings ratio, and dividend yield. Equity styles include growth, value,
and core.

Tracking Error: A divergence between the price behavior of a position or a portfolio and the price behavior of a benchmark, as defined by the
difference in standard deviation.

e
MEKETA.COM Page 15 of 16



M E KETA Disclaimer, Glossary, and Notes

Yield to Maturity: The yield, or return, provided by a bond to its maturity date; determined by a mathematical process, usually requiring the use of a
“pbasis book.” For example, a 5% bond pays $5 a year interest on each $100 par value. To figure its current yield, divide $5 by $95—the market price
of the bond—and you get 5.26%. Assume that the same bond is due to mature in five years. On the maturity date, the issuer is pledged to pay $100
for the bond that can be bought now for $95. In other words, the bond is selling at a discount of 5% below par value. To figure yield to maturity, a
simple and approximate method is to divide 5% by the five years to maturity, which equals 1% pro rata yearly. Add that 1% to the 5.26% current
yield, and the yield to maturity is roughly 6.26%.

5% (discount) _ 1% pro rata, plus
5 (yrs. to maturity) 5.26% (current yield)

= 6.26% (yield to maturity)

Yield to Worst: The lowest potential yield that can be received on a bond without the issuer actually defaulting. The yield to worst is calculated by
making worst-case scenario assumptions on the issue by calculating the returns that would be received if provisions, including prepayment, call, or
sinking fund, are used by the issuer.

NCREIF Property Index (NPI): Measures unleveraged investment performance of a very large pool of individual commercial real estate properties
acquired in the private market by tax-exempt institutional investors for investment purposes only. The NPI index is capitalization-weighted for a
quarterly time series composite total rate of return.

NCREIF Fund Index - Open End Diversified Core Equity (NFI-ODCE): Measures the investment performance of 28 open-end commingled funds
pursuing a core investment strategy that reflects funds' leverage and cash positions. The NFI-ODCE index is equal-weighted and is reported gross
and net of fees for a quarterly time series composite total rate of return.

Sources: Investment Terminology, International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans, 1999.
The Handbook of Fixed Income Securities, Fabozzi, Frank J., 1991

The Russell Indices®, TM, SM are trademarks/service marks of the Frank Russell Company.
Throughout this report, numbers may not sum due to rounding.
Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized throughout this report.

Values shown are in millions of dollars, unless noted otherwise.

MEKETA.COM Page 16 of 16



Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

March 26, 2025

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

MEKETA.COM |



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Table of Contents
1. Background
Portfolio Optimization

Optimization Model Descriptions & Outputs

h w DN

Appendix

R
MEKETA.COM Page 2 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Background

At the meeting in February 2025, the Board approved a total of four fixed income managers (two for Core and two for
Core Plus) for hire, namely:

-» Ramirez and Loop Capital (LCAM) as Core Fixed Income managers, and

- Reams and Wellington* as Core Plus Fixed Income managers.

In aggregate, these four managers will manage the Fixed Income component which makes up 61 of the PFRS total
portfolio per the long-term allocation policy™**.

-~ As of February 28, 2025, this amounts to approximately $287 million.

*Wellington currently manages a portion of OPFRS's fixed income with a Core Fixed Income mandate, which will be revised and amended to become a Core Plus Fixed Income mandate.
**The long-term allocation policy was established in early 2024 at the completion of an asset-liability study and became effective on July 1, 2024.

[
MEKETA.COM Page 3 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Portfolio Optimization

Using Meketa’s Portfolio Builder tool, optimal allocation between these managers (specifically, the intended
products) are modeled in a few different ways.

- There is no one optimal model as the optimization process depends upon the intended purpose and objective.

For PFRS’s Fixed Income component, the following four objectives are selected:
1. Maximize Sharpe Ratio
2. Maximize Alpha
3. Maximize Information Ratio
4. Minimize Tracking Error

Finally, all of these approaches are aggregated as the Combined Model which is the recommended model.*

The following section includes the description of these objectives.

*The recommended allocations rounded the decimal points to nearest 0.5 point.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 4 of 14



Optimization Model Descriptions & Outputs

Page 5 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Maximizing Risk-Adjusted Returns
Sharpe Ratio, Alpha, and Information Ratio are three commonly used risk-adjusted performance measurements,
each with adjustments for different kinds of risks.
Sharpe Ratio
A portfolio taking on risk, instead of investing in cash, is expected to generate higher returns.

- Sharpe Ratio measures how well the portfolio generated returns with that risk above the safety of earning
interests in cash.

Information Ratio
An actively managed investment takes on additional risk above a benchmark and is expected to earn higher returns.

-» Information Ratio measures how well the portfolio generated returns per unit of active risk taken above the
benchmark.

-» Information ratio aims to provide an insight into the consistency of a manager by considering not only the excess
returns but also the volatility of those excess returns over time.

Alpha

Alpha is a measurement of risk-adjusted performance given a portfolio’s beta to benchmark (i.e., sensitivity of the
portfolio’s return relative to the benchmark’s returns) and the average benchmark return.

-» Alpha in this context is the portfolio’s excess return above risk-free rate that cannot be explained by benchmark
risk.

-» A positive alpha implies that the portfolio provides positive value even when adjusting for risk and benchmark
forces.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 6 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Allocation Outputs from Risk-Adjusted Return Maximization Models

Max Sharpe Max Info Ratio Max Alpha Benchmark*

Ramirez Core 20.0 20.0 20.0 -
LCAM Core 20.0 20.0 20.0 -
Reams Core Plus 39.3 20.0 40.0 -
Wellington Core Plus 20.7 40.0 20.0 --
Total Allocation 100.0 100.0 100.0 -
Portfolio Statistics*

Return (%) 4.5 4.4 4.5 2.6
Standard Deviation (%) 5.1 4.8 5.1 4.3
Sharpe Ratio 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.3
Information Ratio 0.9 1.0 0.9 -
Alpha (%) 1.8 1.7 1.8 --
Tracking Error (%) 21 1.7 21 -

*Portfolio Statistics uses eVestment product data from 01/2009 through 12/2024, which is the common history for all four managers. Investment return data is gross of fees. Benchmark is Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index.

I |
MEKETA.COM Page 7 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations
Minimizing Risk

Tracking Error is the amount of active risk taken by Allocation Outputs

a portfolio. Min Track. Error Benchmark*

- A higher tracking error indicates a higher level of  Ramirez Core 274 -
risk, not necessarily a higher level of return, being
taken relative to the specified benchmark. LCAM Core 27.5 -
Tracking error accounts for deviations away from the = Reams Core Plus 20.0 --
benchmark, but it does not signal in which directions _
these deviations occur (positive or negative). Wellington Core Plus i .
Total Allocation 100.0 --

Portfolio Statistics*

Return (%) 4.2 2.6
Standard Deviation (%) 4.8 4.3
Sharpe Ratio 0.7 0.3
Information Ratio 1.0 --
Alpha (%) 1.7 --
Tracking Error (%) 1.6 --

*Portfolio Statistics uses eVestment product data from 01/2009 through 12/2024, which is the common history for all four managers. Investment return data is gross of fees. Benchmark is Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index.

o
MEKETA.COM Page 8 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Combined Model

The four selected measurement specifications are equally weighted and combined to arrive at the Combined Model.
Min Track.

Max Sharpe Max Info Ratio Max Alpha Error Combined Benchmark*
Ramirez Core 20.0 20.0 20.0 274 21.8 --
LCAM Core 20.0 20.0 20.0 27.5 21.9 -
Reams Core Plus 39.3 20.0 40.0 20.0 29.8 --
Wellington Core Plus 20.7 40.0 20.0 25.1 26.5 -
Total Allocation 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 --

Portfolio Statistics*

Return (%) 4.5 4.4 4.5 4.2 4.4 2.6
Std. Dev. (%) 5.1 4.8 5.1 4.8 4.9 4.3
Sharpe Ratio 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.3
Info Ratio 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 -
Alpha (%) 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 --
Tracking Error (%) 2.1 1.7 2.1 1.6 1.9 --

*Portfolio Statistics uses eVestment product data from 01/2009 through 12/2024, which is the common history for all four managers. Investment return data is gross of fees. Benchmark is Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index.
|
MEKETA.COM Page 9 of 14



Recommendations

Page 10 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations

Recommendation

We recommend allocating the fixed income managers with the Combined optimized model’s results.

Approximate
Of Fixed Income Of Total Portfolio* Balance*

Combined Model (%) (%) ($M)

Ramirez Core 21.8 13.5 63.6
LCAM Core 21.9 13.5 63.6
Reams Core Plus 29.8 18.0 84.8
Wellington Core Plus 26.5 16.0 75.4
Total 100.0 61.0 287.4

*Percentages scaled to Total Portfolio are rounded. Approximate Balance is based on the market values as of 02/28/2025.

MEKETA.COM Page 11 of 14



Appendix

Page 12 of 14



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Fixed Income Manager Allocations
Portfolio Builder Optimization Model Parameters
The portfolio optimization was run using Meketa’s Portfolio Builder tool.

-» Performance Data: Calculations use gross of fees performance data of the strategies/products provided by
eVestment.

-» Allocation Constraints: Each manager is given a minimum of 20% allocation.
- Benchmark: Bloomberg US Aggregate Index.
-» Risk-Free Rate: 1.1%

-» Time Period: January 2009 through December 2024, which is the common period available for all managers
included.

- Rolling Periods: 36 months (3 years).

-» Rebalancing Interval: Quarterly.

O ———
MEKETA.COM Page 13 of 14



M E K ETA Disclaimer

THIS REPORT (THE “REPORT”) HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT (THE “RECIPIENT”).

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS MAY OCCUR (OR HAVE OCCURRED) AFTER THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, AND IT IS NOT OUR FUNCTION OR
RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THIS REPORT. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY OPINIONS OR
RECOMMENDATIONS, REPRESENTS OUR GOOD FAITH VIEWS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT
ANY TIME. ALL INVESTMENTS INVOLVE RISK, AND THERE CAN BE NO GUARANTEE THAT THE STRATEGIES, TACTICS, AND METHODS
DISCUSSED HERE WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.

THE INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FROM INVESTMENT MANAGERS, CUSTODIANS,
AND OTHER EXTERNAL SOURCES. SOME OF THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN PRODUCED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ARTIFICIAL
INTELLIGENCE (“Al’) TECHNOLOGY. WHILE WE HAVE EXERCISED REASONABLE CARE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT, WE CANNOT
GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, VALIDITY, RELIABILITY, AVAILABILITY, OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY INFORMATION
CONTAINED HEREIN, WHETHER OBTAINED EXTERNALLY OR PRODUCED BY THE Al.

THE RECIPIENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THIS REPORT MAY INCLUDE AI-GENERATED CONTENT THAT MAY NOT HAVE CONSIDERED
ALL RISK FACTORS. THE RECIPIENT IS ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH THEIR MEKETA ADVISOR OR ANOTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR
BEFORE MAKING ANY FINANCIAL DECISIONS OR TAKING ANY ACTION BASED ON THE CONTENT OF THIS REPORT. WE BELIEVE THE
INFORMATION TO BE FACTUAL AND UP TO DATE BUT DO NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE
CONTENT PRODUCED. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL,
OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHER
TORT, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF THIS CONTENT. IT IS IMPORTANT FOR THE RECIPIENT TO CRITICALLY
EVALUATE THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

CERTAIN INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT MAY CONSTITUTE ‘FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,” WHICH CAN BE
IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “SHOULD,” “EXPECT,” “AIM,” “ANTICIPATE,” “TARGET,” “PROJECT,”
‘ESTIMATE,” “INTEND,” “CONTINUE,” OR “BELIEVE,” OR THE NEGATIVES THEREOF OR OTHER VARIATIONS THEREON OR
COMPARABLE TERMINOLOGY. ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN
THIS REPORT ARE BASED UPON CURRENT ASSUMPTIONS. CHANGES TO ANY ASSUMPTIONS MAY HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY THEREFORE BE
MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM ANY FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT.

PERFORMANCE DATA CONTAINED HEREIN REPRESENT PAST PERFORMANCE. PAST PERFORMANCE IS NO GUARANTEE OF FUTURE
RESULTS.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 14 of 14



MEKETA

Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

March 26, 2025

Recommendation for
2025 Q2 Cash Flows

MEKETA.COM



Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

MEKETA

Asset Class / Manager Liquidity

Recommendation for 2025 Q2 Cash Flows

Description of Liquidity Tiers

Asset Class Fund Liquidity Tier | Tier Description Balance ($M) In Months!
US Equity Northern Trust Russell 1000 1 1 Public, Scheduled Withdrawal Allowances 157.9 105.3
US Equity EARNEST Partners 3 2 Public, Accommodating of Withdrawals 132.4 88.3
US Equity Wellington Select Quality Equity 3 3 Public; Must Plan Withdrawals 180.8 120.5
US Equity Rice Hall James 3 4 Privately Held / llliquid 0.0 -
US Equity Brown Small Cap Value 3 Total 4711

International Equity SGAACWI ex US 3

International Equity Vanguard Developed Markets 1

Fixed Income Ramirez 2

Fixed Income Reams 2

Fixed Income Wellington Core 3

Credit Polen Capital High Yield 2

Covered Calls Parametric 2

Crisis Risk Offset Kepos Alternative Risk Premia 3

Crisis Risk Offset Versor Trend Following 3

Crisis Risk Offset
Cash

Vanguard Long-Term Treasury

Cash

1 lllustrates liquidity in months per liquidity tier assuming a net drawdown of $1.5 million per month estimated for FYE2025 based on prior fiscal year's actuarial valuations..

MEKETA.COM Page 2 of 6



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Recommendation for 2025 Q2 Cash Flows

Oakland PFRS Asset Allocation as of February 28, 2025

Current Long-Term Interim Variance from Interim Planned Cash Flows for | Suggested Cash Flows
Market Value Targets Target? Target Current Quarter for Next Quarter
($M) (%) (%) (%) ($M) () In ($M) Out ($M) In ($M) Out ($M)
Northern Trust Russell 1000 111.3 23.6 15.0 21.0 12.4 2.6 - -- -- --
EARNEST Partners 41.8 8.9 5.0 6.0 13.5 29 -- -- -- --
Wellington Select Quality Equity 26.1 5.5 0.0 0.0 26.1 5.5 -- (4.5) -- --
Rice Hall James 18.8 4.0 25 3.5 23 0.5 -- -- -- --
Brown Small Cap Value 14.3 3.0 25 3.5 (2.2) (0.5) -- -- -- --
US Equity 212.3 45.1 25.0 34.0 52.1 1.1 -- (4.5) - --
SGAACWI ex US 47.0 10.0 --* 8.4 7.4 1.6 - - -- --
Vanguard Developed Markets 171 3.6 --* 3.6 0.1 0.0 -- -- -- --
International Equity 64.1 13.6 5.0 12.0 7.6 1.6 - -- - --
Parametric (BXM & DeltaShift) 20.6 4.4 0.0 0.0 20.6 4.4 -- -- -- --
Covered Calls 20.6 4.4 0.0 0.0 20.6 4.4 -- -- -- --
Kepos Alternative Risk Premia 13.4 2.8 3.0 3.3 (2.1) (0.5) - -- -- --
Versor Trend Following 12.1 2.6 3.0 3.3 (3.6) (0.8) - -- -- --
Vanguard Long-Term Treasury 13.0 2.8 3.0 3.3 (2.8) (0.6) -- -- - --
Crisis Risk Offset 38.4 8.2 9.0 10.0 (8.5) (1.8) -- -- -- --
Ramirez Core 76.6 16.3 -k -* ¥ -* -- -- - --
Loop Core 0.0 0.0 --* -* -* -* - -- - --
Reams Core Plus 29.2 6.2 --* -* -* -* - -- - --
Wellington Core Plus* 7.4 1.6 --* --* --* -* -- -- - --
Polen Capital High Yield 6.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 6.0 1.3 - - - (4.5)
Fixed Income (IG & Credit) 119.2 253 61.0 44.0 (88.1) (18.7) - -- - (4.5)
Cash & City Contributions 16.5 3.5 0.0 0.0 16.5 3.5 8.7 (8.7) 8.7 (8.7)
Total Portfolio 471.1 100.0 100.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 8.7 (13.2) 8.7 (13.2)

*Long-term and interim targets to be determined due to ongoing investment manager review and search. Wellington currently manages a core fixed income mandate which is currently being revised as a core plus mandate.

1 Benefit payments and expenses are estimated at $13.2 million quarterly for FYE2025 based on prior fiscal year's actuarial valuations. The expected quarterly contribution from the City is $8.7 million. Benefits are payable on first of each month.
2The interim targets are the revised implementation targets effective the 2n half of 2024. Some investment manager/product targets and variances are omitted due to ongoing asset class reviews and transition planning.
-
MEKETA.COM Page 3 of 6



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Recommendation for 2025 Q2 Cash Flows

Allocations by Portfolio Segment Projected Allocations After Cash Flows

Balance Allocations | Allocations Cash
Before Before After Cash 4%

Cash Flows Cash Flows Flows )

Portfolio Segment ($M) (%) (%) Fixed Income
(IG & Credit
US Equity 212.3 45.1 45.0 25%
International Equity 64.1 13.6 13.9
Covered Calls 20.6 4.4 4.5 Total Equity
Crisis Risk Offset 38.4 8.2 8.3 Crisis Risk Offset 9%
8%
Fixed Income (IG & Credit) 119.2 25.3 24.8
CaSh 16.5 3.5 3.6 Covered Calls
. . . 4%

Total Portfolio 4711 100.0 100.0

Suggested Cash Withdrawals

Source Amount ($M)
Treasury Cash / City Contributions 8.7
Polen Capital High Yield 4.5
Total 13.2

e eeeesss——————S—SSSSSS—..............SSSSS
Page 4 of 6

MEKETA.COM



M E KETA Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

Recommendation for 2025 Q2 Cash Flows
Projected OPFRS Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2025

Estimated Market Value Interim Targets Variance from Interim Targets
($M) (%) (%) ($Mm) (%)
3.1

Northern Trust Russell 1000 111.3 241 21.0 14.3
EARNEST Partners 41.8 9.0 6.0 14.0 3.0
Wellington Select Quality Equity 21.6 4.7 0.0 21.6 4.7
Rice Hall James 18.8 4.1 3.5 2.6 0.6
Brown Small Cap Value 14.3 3.1 3.5 (1.9) (0.4)
US Equity 207.8 45.0 34.0 50.7 11.0
SGAACWI ex US 47.0 10.2 --* --* -
Vanguard Developed Markets 17.1 3.7 --* --* --*
International Equity 64.1 13.9 12.0 8.6 1.9
Parametric 20.6 4.5 0.0 20.6 4.5
Covered Calls 20.6 4.5 0.0 20.6 4.5
Kepos Alternative Risk Premia 134 2.9 3.3 (1.8) (0.4)
Versor Trend Following 121 26 3.3 (3.3) (0.7)
Vanguard Long-Term Treasury 13.0 2.8 3.3 (2.5) (0.5)
Crisis Risk Offset 38.4 8.3 10.0 (7.6) (1.7)
Ramirez Core 76.6 16.6 --* --* --*
Loop Core 0.0 0.0 --* --* -
Reams Core Plus 29.2 6.3 --* --* --*
Wellington Core Plus* 7.4 1.6 --* --* --*
Polen Capital High Yield 1.5 0.3 0.0 1.5 0.3
Fixed Income (IG & Credit) 114.7 24.8 44.0 (88.6) (19.2)
Cash 16.5 3.6 0.0 16.5 3.6
Total Portfolio 462.1 100.0 100.0 --* --*

*Long-term and interim targets to be determined due to ongoing investment manager review and search. Wellington currently manages a core fixed income mandate which is currently being revised as a core plus mandate.**

1 Estimated ending market value accounts for the remaining cash flows (recommended previously) for the current quarter and expected cash flows for the following quarter. The interim targets reflect the targets effective in 2nd half of 2024 transitioning
towards upon the long-term targets adopted in 2024 Q1. Some manager/product targets and variances are omitted due to ongoing asset class reviews and transition planning.
-
MEKETA.COM Page 5 of 6



M E KETA Disclaimer

THIS REPORT (THE “REPORT”) HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT (THE “RECIPIENT").

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS MAY OCCUR (OR HAVE OCCURRED) AFTER THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, AND IT IS NOT OUR FUNCTION OR
RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THIS REPORT. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY OPINIONS OR
RECOMMENDATIONS, REPRESENTS OUR GOOD FAITH VIEWS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY
TIME. ALL INVESTMENTS INVOLVE RISK, AND THERE CAN BE NO GUARANTEE THAT THE STRATEGIES, TACTICS, AND METHODS
DISCUSSED HERE WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.

THE INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FROM INVESTMENT MANAGERS, CUSTODIANS, AND
OTHER EXTERNAL SOURCES. SOME OF THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN PRODUCED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ARTIFICIAL
INTELLIGENCE (“AlI’) TECHNOLOGY. WHILE WE HAVE EXERCISED REASONABLE CARE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT, WE CANNOT
GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, VALIDITY, RELIABILITY, AVAILABILITY, OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY INFORMATION
CONTAINED HEREIN, WHETHER OBTAINED EXTERNALLY OR PRODUCED BY THE Al.

THE RECIPIENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT AI-GENERATED CONTENT MAY NOT HAVE CONSIDERED ALL RISK FACTORS. THE RECIPIENT
IS ADVISED TO PERFORM THEIR OWN DUE DILIGENCE AND CONSULT WITH PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS BEFORE MAKING ANY
FINANCIAL DECISIONS OR TAKING ANY ACTION BASED ON THE CONTENT OF THIS REPORT. WE BELIEVE THE INFORMATION TO BE
FACTUAL AND UP TO DATE BUT DO NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONTENT PRODUCED BY
Al TECHNOLOGY. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR
INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHER TORT,
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF AI-GENERATED CONTENT. PLEASE REMEMBER, Al TECHNOLOGY IS NOT A
SUBSTITUTE FOR HUMAN EXPERTISE. IT IS IMPORTANT FOR THE RECIPIENT TO CRITICALLY EVALUATE THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

CERTAIN INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT MAY CONSTITUTE “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,” WHICH CAN BE
IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “SHOULD,” “EXPECT,” “AIM,” “ANTICIPATE,” “TARGET,” “PROJECT,”
‘ESTIMATE,” “INTEND,” “CONTINUE,” OR “BELIEVE,” OR THE NEGATIVES THEREOF OR OTHER VARIATIONS THEREON OR COMPARABLE
TERMINOLOGY. ANY FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT ARE
BASED UPON CURRENT ASSUMPTIONS. CHANGES TO ANY ASSUMPTIONS MAY HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY THEREFORE BE MATERIALLY
DIFFERENT FROM ANY FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT.

PERFORMANCE DATA CONTAINED HEREIN REPRESENT PAST PERFORMANCE. PAST PERFORMANCE IS NO GUARANTEE OF FUTURE
RESULTS.

—— ]
MEKETA.COM Page 6 of 6



Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System

March 26, 2025

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

MEKETA.COM |



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Table of Contents
1. Executive Summary
Market Overview
FAQs
2025 Expected Returns and Changes from Prior Years
Summary Data and Track Record
Long-Term Theme: The Sustainability of US Earnings

Long-Term Theme: The Decreasing Number of Public Companies

© N o o ~ w0 N

Long-Term Theme: China

L —
MEKETA.COM Page 2 of 103



Executive Summary

Page 3 of 103



M E K ETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Executive Summary

- We update our capital markets expectations (“CMEs”) each year in January.

e Capital markets are dynamic, and regular updates ensure that assumptions accurately reflect the current
market environment.

-» Changes in our CMEs are driven by shifts in the capital markets, including factors such as interest rates, credit
spreads, cap rates, and equity prices.

¢ Yields increased for much of the investment grade bond market, while credit spreads tightened, especially for
lower quality credit such as high yield.

e Stock market valuations continued to rise, especially in the US, where equity markets rallied at a faster pace
than the gain in earnings.

e Cap rates for real estate moved higher, while the rebound in buyout multiples lagged the valuation gains for
public markets.

e Not only did current Treasury yields increase, but projections for future Treasury yields also increased.

-» Our 10-year CMEs continue to be lower than our 20-year CMEs for every asset class, largely due to a higher
assumed “risk-free” rate in the future.

-» The return assumption decreased for two-thirds of the asset classes over the 10-year horizon, while it increased
for half the asset classes over the 20-year horizon.

- Our lower return assumptions over the 10-year horizon implies that investors might be well served by moderating
their return expectations for the next ten years.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 4 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Expected Return and Changes for Major Asset Classes

10-year 20-year
Expected Expected
Return A From 2024 Return A From 2024
Asset Class
Cash Equivalents 2.8 +0.4 3.1 +0.6
Investment Grade Bonds 4.9 +0.3 D) +0.5
Long-term Government Bonds 5.0 +0.7 5.7 +0.7
TIPS 4.3 0.0 5.0 +0.3
High Yield Bonds 6.3 -0.2 71 +0.3
Bank Loans 6.3 -0.2 6.8 +0.2
Emerging Market Debt 6.3 NA 6.8 NA
Private Debt 8.7 -0.5 9.1 -0.1
US Equity 6.4 -0.5 8.4 -0.1
Developed Non-US Equity 7.2 -0.5 8.7 -0.2
Emerging Non-US Equity 71 -0.5 8.7 -0.2
Global Equity 6.7 -0.5 8.5 -0.2
Private Equity 9.8 -0.1 11.2 0.0
Real Estate 6.9 +0.6 8.5 +0.5
Infrastructure 7.2 -0.2 9.2 +0.2
Commodities 55 +0.6 5.9 +0.6
Hedge Funds 4.2 -0.3 6.0 +0.2
Inflation 2.3 -0.1 2.7 -0.1

]
MEKETA.COM Page 5 of 103



Market Overview

Page 6 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations
Rising Interest Rates

- While the short end of the yield curve moved down, the long end of the curve moved up.

-» The result was a shift away from the inverted curve of the last two years to a slightly “U”-shaped curve with a
nadir at the one-year maturity.

US Yield Curve

6%

5% l

12/31/2023 ——12/31/2024

1%

0%

3M 6M 1Y 2Y 5Y

7Y

10Y
Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM

30Y

Page 7 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Normalizing Yield Curve

-» The yield curve began the year in inverted territory but gradually moved toward a positive slope.
e The 2-10 spread moved positive before year-end; however, the curve is still inverted in other sections.

Yield Curve Slope (Ten Minus Two)
4%

3%
2%
0% v -

1%

Source: FRED. Yield curve slope is calculated as the difference between the 10-Year US Treasury Yield and 2-Year US Treasury Yield. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM . Page 8 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Narrower Credit Spreads

- Credit spreads tightened again in 2024, moving further below their long-term averages.

e The spread for high yield bonds declined from 323 basis points to 287 basis points, while the spread for
investment grade corporates declined from 99 basis points to 80 basis points.

US Investment Grade and High Yield Credit Spreads

20% - |nvestment Grade Corporates US High Yield
18%
16%
14%
12%
High Yield
10% Investment Grade Average = 5.1%
Average = 1.3%
8%
6%
4%
2.9%
- *WW“M
0.8%
0%

Source: Bloomberg. High Yield is proxied by the Bloomberg High Yield Index and Investment Grade Corporates are proxied by the Bloomberg US Corporate Investment Grade Index. Spread is calculated as the difference between the Yield to
Worst of the respective index and the 10-Year US Treasury yield. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 9 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Similar or Higher Yields

-» Short-term interest rates declined as the Fed cut its target rate, yet the yield on the 10-year Treasury increased.
- Despite tighter credit spreads, yields increased for all but the lower quality bond markets.

Yield to Worst Yield to Worst

12/31/23 12/31/24
(%) (%)

Fed Funds Rate 5.25-5.50 4.25-4.50
10-year Treasury 3.88 4.58
Bloomberg Aggregate 4.53 4.91
Bloomberg Corporate 5.06 5.33
Bloomberg Securitized 4.72 5.25
Bloomberg Global Aggregate 3.51 3.68
Bloomberg US Corporate High Yield 7.59 7.49

Source: Bloomberg. Data is as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 10 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Yields Drive Future Returns

-~ Changes in interest rates matter because yields are a very good predictor of future returns for bonds', at least
over a 10-year horizon.

YTW and Returns for Investment Grade Bonds YTW and Returns for High Yield Bonds
Y TW 10-yr Forward Return Y TW 10-yr Forward Return
18% 25%
16%
14% f el

l
12% \f
) 15%
10% \U ”
8% ]
6 wﬁ\ N\‘/\ 10%

4% »!"‘ ‘\'\ 59
2% W
0% 0%

C RO NNV NN LE O LYIODXLS WV A DO N DO HLH A 9O XN O v A 9 N v
AN OISO ST LSS SIS NNNN O OO O IO O O T QO T NN
ST T T T T T T TP ® LTI T EIFTTTTSTS S

" When predicting returns for bonds, default risk should also be taken into account. For example, defaults are why the return for high yield bonds have generally been below the starting yield.
Source: Bloomberg Aggregate and Bloomberg High yield indices. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 11 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Slightly Lower Inflation Expectations

- After substantial changes in inflation expectations in recent years, the market’s expectations for inflation were
little changed at the end of 2024.

e The 10-year BEI rate increased from 2.2% to 2.3%. The 5-year BEI was slightly higher, at 2.4%.

Ten-Year Breakeven Inflation

4.0%
3.5%
High Inflation
Expectations
3.0%
2.5% -1 Std. Dev. k AA II-A . A N AA..

| WA ) M iy
| "L mw,v/\/%,/

0 vV
1.5% " v -1 Std. Dev.
1.0%
Low Inflation
Expectations
()
S
>

Source: US Treasury and Federal Reserve. Inflation is measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI-U NSA). Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM _ Page 12 of 103



MEKETA

Higher Prices for US Equities

- US stocks had another good year, with the S&P 500 index gaining 25%.
- Valuations increased and remain elevated relative to their long-term history.

US Equity Cyclically Adjusted Price/Earnings
50

45
40

35

30 A
25 +1 Std. Dey.

20

Average =18

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

38

10

L
ALY W L)
v y ANy

Source: Robert Shiller, Yale University, and Meketa Investment Group. Data is as of December 31, 2024 for the S&P 500 Index.

MEKETA.COM

Page 13 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Little Change in Non-US Equity Valuations

-» EAFE equities had a good year in local currency terms (+11.3%), but a currency headwind ate into most of these
gains for USD investors who only saw a 3.8% return.

- EAFE valuations are little changed from one year ago and remain close to their historical average.

Developed International Equity Cyclically Adjusted P/E
45

40

35
Average = 21.0
30 +1 Std. Dev. l

25

: W T

-1 Std. Dev.

10

Source: MSCI and Bloomberg. Earnings figures represent the average of monthly “as reported” earnings over the previous ten years. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM 7 Page 14 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Slightly Higher Prices in Emerging Market Equities

- Emerging market equities gained 13.1% in local currency terms, but the rising dollar cut returns to 7.5% for USD
investors.

- EM equity valuations remain below their long-term average, with the EM ex-China index continuing to trade at
higher valuations than the China index.

Emerging Market Equity Cyclically Adjusted P/E
40

35

30

Average =17.5
+1 Std. Dev. l

M
¥ ol um“’ LOWATAW

25

i,
»AV»J

15

v
10 -1 Std. Dev.

a

0

) v A o o S v » () Q QO Q% \g o
3 O (Y (Q () N ) S ) N N N N N

Source: MSCI and Bloomberg. Earnings figures represent the average of monthly “as reported” earnings over the previous ten years.. Data is as of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 15 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

US Earnings Growth

- S&P 500 earnings (EPS) rebounded after a short-lived dip in 2023.
e At year-end, estimates were that EPS was just shy of its peak in July 2022.

S&P 500 Earnings Per Share
$225

$200
$175
$150
$125
$100

$75
Trendline

$50

$25

Source: S&P 500 Index data from Bloomberg. Represents trailing 12-month “as reported” earnings per share. Data is as of December 31, 2024.
|
MEKETA.COM Page 16 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Private Equity Prices Rebounding

- EBITDA multiples rose from year end (note that the endpoint is as of September 30).

e Like public equities, valuations have been trending up since the GFC, though they did not rise as quickly as
those for US equities over the past year.

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

EBITDA Multiples

+1 Std. Dev. /\ /

N 4

13.5

-1 Std. Dev.

/ \ / Averale =10.7
/

(] A Ge) () Q N v &) \a H © A o ) Q N v o '
Q Q Q S N N N N N N N N N N Q% & Q% 2 v

Source: Pregin Median EBITDA Multiples Paid in All LBOs, as of September 30, 2024.

MEKETA.COM

Page 17 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Real Estate Valuations Improving

- Cap rates for core real estate continued to improve in 2024.

e This is despite a challenging year for many real estate segments.

- Higher cap rates may be indicative of better returns going forward.

9%

8%

7%

6%

5%

Core Real Estate Cap Rates

Source: NCREIF NPI value-weighted cap rates. As of September 30, 2024.

MEKETA.COM

T ————————————SS————————
Page 18 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Higher Projected Rates in the Future

- As interest rates have risen, so have the market’s predictions for future interest rates.

e The market is forecasting that the 10-year Treasury yield in ten years will be 5.42%, versus a prediction of
4.57% twelve months ago.

-» Higher future interest rates implies higher expected returns for any forecasting model that includes a risk
premium approach.

Market Projection for the 10-Year Treasury Yield in Ten Years
12%

10%
8%
6%

4%

Source: FRED. Represents the Fitted Instantaneous Forward Rate 10 Years Hence, as of December 31, 2024.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 19 of 103



FAQs

Page 20 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

How do these CMEs compare to prior years’ assumptions?

- To help evaluate this, we created a weighted average of expected returns for the asset classes that comprise a
typical institutional portfolio.

-» The value of the expected return for the portfolio is not a precise expected return (i.e., it has not been run via
MPT), but the magnitude of the change is what is relevant.

- In short, the average of 20-year expected returns is 10 basis points higher than last January.

Weighted Average Change from
Expected Return Prior Year

(%) (%)
2025 8.1 +0.1
2024 8.0 -0.2
2023 8.2 +1.7
2022 6.5 +0.4
2021 6.1 -0.7
2020 6.8 -0.6
2019 7.4 +0.7

' The weights are as follows: 10% investment grade bonds, 3% LT government bonds, 4% TIPS, 3% high yield, 2% bank loans, 3% EM debt, 3% private debt, 25% US equity, 12% EAFE equity, 8% EM equity, 10% private equity, 10% real
estate, 2% natural resources, 3% infrastructure, 2% hedge funds.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 21 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

What is driving the changes from last year?

US equity markets rallied, pushing them to higher valuations, thus reducing their forward-looking returns.
Interest rates moved up, increasing yields and hence expected returns for higher quality bonds.

Credit spreads tightened, leading to lower yields for riskier fixed income assets.

Higher anticipated cash yields helped expected returns for hedge funds and related asset classes.

Cap rates for real estate moved up, pushing up the expected returns.

Higher anticipated long-term interest rates also provide a tailwind in our 20-year projections, as the bridge from
10 to 20 years is made via a risk premium being added to a (higher) future risk-free rate.

N N R

e The market projection for the 10-year risk-free rate jumped from 4.57% to 5.42%.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 22 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

How do Meketa’s CMEs compare to peers?
-» Our CMEs are typically in the same ballpark as our peers.

- While we expect be above or below the median for various asset classes, we tend not to be systematically above
or below for the entire group.

- We generally cite the survey conducted each year by Horizon Actuarial Services for making peer comparisons,
as it is the most comprehensive survey of CMEs of which we are aware.

e However, this survey is usually not published until July or August.

> It is important to distinguish between intermediate-term assumptions (e.g., 7-10 years) and long-term
assumptions (e.g., 20-30 years) when making these comparisons.

e The average intermediate-term return assumptions tend to be lower than the long-term assumptions across
the peer group, particularly for riskier asset classes.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 23 of 103



M E K ETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

What model changes were made?

- We reduced the equity risk premium we assume for years 11-20 by 50 basis points.

The 5.5% historical average risk premium for US equities is based on a history that includes significant
multiple expansion (e.g., increase in P-E ratio).

— Using this same level of risk premium implies that we would assume multiple expansion in the future.
— Therefore, we decided to use a lower risk premium.
We are making this change not just for US equities, but for every equity/growth-oriented asset class.

— We have observed valuation multiples expand over time for most of these asset classes where we have
available metrics (e.g., EBITDA multiples, cap rates).

- We changed to using two distinct currency models, one for developing markets that emphasizes interest rate
parity and one for emerging markets that emphasizes purchasing power parity.

This was partly driven by the observation that central banks have intervened in their foreign exchange
markets.

Currency movements are the portion of our CMEs that we probably have the least confidence in (hence why
we have capped them historically).

For 2025, developed markets switches from a 50 basis point tailwind to a 20 basis point headwind, while there
is no impact on emerging markets.

— There are a few asset classes (e.g., foreign bonds, foreign equities) that feel the full impact and others
(e.q., global equities, buyouts, natural resources) that will experience a more modest impact.

MEKETA.COM Page 24 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

What model changes were made?

-

We switched from using historical real income to nominal income to predict near-term income for timberland and
farmland.

e The inflation of recent years dispelled the notion of a direct link between income and inflation in the short term
for these asset classes.

We started incorporating data from third parties for two private market asset classes where such data has
traditionally been hard to come by:

e In private credit, we are including yield and spread data from Lincoln Senior Debt Index.
e In private infrastructure, we are including valuation metrics from Macquarie.

For various private markets where we use a public market proxy to estimate valuations, we modified the
composites to reflect the changing natures of those industries:

e \We added an Al index to our VC model.
e We added an Energy Efficiency index to our Energy model.
e We added a Clean Energy index to our Sustainability model

We assume lower leverage for buyouts (range dropped from 1.4x — 1.6x to 1.3x - 1.5x) as leverage has declined
over the past 5-10 years.

MEKETA.COM Page 25 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

What structural changes were made for 20257
- We added the following “asset classes” (total now at 113):
Multi-sector credit

High yield municipal bonds

Emerging market corporate bonds

Emerging market bonds aggregate

Did volatility expectations change?
- Not systematically; there were very few changes, and most were +/- 1%.

-» The biggest change was a 5% decrease in digital currencies. This reflects the growing institutionalization of the
asset class (e.g., with bitcoin ETFs being introduced).

-» Our methodology includes a 20-year look back, which includes the volatile years of 2022, 2020, and 2008.

Were there any qualitative adjustments?

- We typically make some qualitative adjustments to the CMEs, though they have grown fewer in number over the
years as we have refined our models.

- We made a manual adjustment to the 10-year foreign equity return given concerns we had about the data for
geographic revenue sources provided by the vendor for the underlying index.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 26 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

What is the equity risk premium implied by the CMEs?
-» We assume a long-term risk premium of 5.0% for US equities over 10-year Treasuries in our model.
e However, our 10-year assumptions imply an equity risk premium of ~1.5%.
e This averages out to a 20-year implied equity risk premium of ~3.0%.

- Historically, the risk premium for the S&P 500 over the yield for the 10-year Treasury has averaged 5.5%, though
the range has varied considerably.

US Equity Risk Premium over 10-year Treasury’

20%

15%

=l N e T
0%“ P’U W\.A\J‘f W V\\VN
i

" Represents the ten-year risk premium for the S&P 500 index over the 10-year Treasury yield at the start of the period. Data is through December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 27 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Is Meketa assuming that interest rates will go up or down?
- We use the market’s projections for future rates, based on what was priced in at the time of our analysis.

-» For example, the market is projecting that the ten-year Treasury will be yielding approximately 5.4% in ten years,
versus the actual yield of 4.6% at the end of December 2024.

-» By contrast, the FOMC is expecting the fed funds rate to fall to ~3.4% by 2026, implying a return to a more
normally shaped yield curve.
What is the steepness of the yield curve you imply?

- Just as our equity models assume mean reversion in pricing, our bond models assume a kind of mean reversion
in the shape of the yield curve over the next ten years.

e The yield on the 10-year Treasury has averaged 141 basis points over that for T-bills since 1962.
e The 2-10 spread has averaged 86 basis points since 1976.
- This is consistent with the market’s projections for short-term and longer-term rates noted above.

Source: FRED. 3-Month Treasury Bill Secondary Market Rate, Market Yield on US Treasury Securities at 10-Year Constant Maturity, 10-Year Treasury Constant Maturity Minus 2-Year Treasury Constant Maturity.

R ——
MEKETA.COM Page 28 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Why is the market projecting rates will be higher in ten years?

-» Expectations of high inflation could necessitate a demand by investors for higher nominal yields to compensation
them for the loss of purchasing power.

-» Likewise, expectations of a widening government deficit that will be filled with additional borrowing could be
perceived as increasing the credit risk of Treasury issuance, thereby increasing the yield investors seek to
compensate them for this new, higher level of risk.

Cumulative PCE Inflation Since January 2021 Federal Debt as a % of GDP
140 140
1
30 100
125
80
120
60
115
110 40
105 20
100 0
N> A 9 N> A O™ A N> AN
S TSNS ST I NS TS NS &N LA L LIPS TS OL L9
N NN N SISO H O N BN DD DD DD DO DD OO OO NN
A P PR VG V. P P VN VO VA VA A\ I, R NNNNRNNNININIONOINNN Yy YN
DA A S A S A A R S A

Source: FRED. Personal Consumption Expenditures indexed to 100 on Jan 2021. Federal Debt: Total Public Debt as Percent of Gross Domestic Product, Percent of GDP, Seasonally Adjusted.

O ———
MEKETA.COM Page 29 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Is it reasonable to believe that Treasury yields will be that high (5.4%) in ten years?

- Looking back, a 5.4% rate on the 10-year Treasury is not unreasonable, as the 10-year has spent roughly half of
the past 62 years at that level or higher.

- However, when viewed over a (much) longer timeframe, the period from the late 1960s to the late 1990s appears
to be a bit of an outlier.

e From this viewpoint, a 5.4% yield on the debt issuance of the world’s (perceived) safest government bonds
would typically be associated with an unusually high bout of inflation.

Yield on 10-Year US Treasury Bonds Since 1962 Long-Term Bond Yields in the UK Since 1755
o
18% 16%
16% 14%
14% 12%
12% 10%
o
10% 8%
8%
6%
6%
4% 4%
2% 2%
0% 0%
VOEONITASDN OO N LPLEIIA 0,94 YA SD O 2N LN IFA LD OCDHNODD N
(LA N AN IR LELLSSSNNNN N o SRS N NN LN SIS N
RO X XXX I VID PP PPN A A I O A I N O R I O O

Source: FRED. Market Yield on US Treasury Securities at 10-Year Constant Maturity 1962-2024. Consol (Long-Term Bond) Yields in the United Kingdom 1754-2016, UK Long-Term (10-Year) Government Bond Yields 2017-2024.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 30 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group
2025 Capital Markets Expectations
FAQs for 2025
9

Why is the expected return for cash increasing when short-term rates decreased during 20247
Our expected returns are long-term projections, reflecting where we expect interest rates to settle in (i.e., the new
“normal” rate).

Many economists (including the FOMC) and futures markets are expecting short-term rates to settle in much
higher in 2-3 years than they were a year ago.
9

Most of the horizon will be at these rates that are projected to be higher than they were one year ago.

Projected Fed Funds Rate

- Dec 2024 Projections
6%

Dec 2023 Projections

\

\

"
Q%
&

&
v
Source: FRED. FOMC Summary of Economic Projections for the Fed Funds Rate, Median.
MEKETA.COM

A

v

S
I |

Page 31 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

How does Meketa arrive at its inflation assumption? Is it based on a combination of breakeven rates and
other data?

-» Most of our economic projections come from the IMF’s World Economic Outlook. Their inflation projections are in
the table below.

e They were projecting slightly lower inflation for the US in 2025, followed by benign levels thereafter.

- We combine the five-year average for the US with the 5-year-5 inflation swap (i.e., what the market is projecting
5-year inflation will be five years from now), to arrive at our 10-year number.

Inflation Estimates

5-yr-5 10-year

5-Year Inflation Inflation

2026 2027 2028 2029 Average SYET) Estimate
us 1.9 2.1 21 2.1 21 2.1 25 2.3
Euro Area 2.3 2.1 21 2.1 2.1 2.1 21 2.1
UK 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.2 2.6
Japan 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 NA 1.7
China 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 NA 2.8

Sources: IMF World Economic Outlook, October 2024; Bloomberg.

S
MEKETA.COM Page 32 of 103



M E K ETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Are US earnings expected to grow faster than the broad economy?
-» The companies in the US market have grown their earnings much faster than the broad market since the 1990s.
- We assume this trend will continue, based on structural advantages enjoyed by the US market, including:

A global footprint that provides access to potentially faster growth overseas economies.

A different sector composition than the broader economy that favors faster growing sectors (e.g., IT).

Stable pricing power as exhibited by steady profit margins.

Favorable societal norms (e.g., a culture that values risk-taking and innovation).

How does the growth of S&P 500 earnings compare to your forward EPS growth projections?

-» Our long-term US EPS growth projections are 6.4%, which are reasonably consistent with the 6.9% EPS growth
rate observed since 1990, and conservatively below the 9.7% rate observed since 2010.

Is trailing 20 years the right period to use to look at mean reversion for equities? Why not use the longest

period possible for each asset class?

- We use 20 years because we are trying to do apples-to-apples comparisons across similar asset classes.

- While we have a long history of data for US equities, the available history (especially of earnings) is much shorter
for non-US markets.

O
MEKETA.COM Page 33 of 103



M E K ETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Do we believe US companies will continue to be net buyers of their stock, and why does that matter?

-

We believe US companies will continue to be net buyers of their shares over the next decade, though perhaps to
a lesser extent than they have for the past decade.

Investors have generally rewarded US-based companies who have decided that the best use of their “excess”
cash is to repurchase shares.

e S0 long as markets continue to support this decision, and so long as companies continue to generate
sufficient cash to make buybacks, they are likely to continue to do so.

Moreover, a mature and active venture capital market in the US allows companies to fund significant growth
while they are still private, thereby not diluting public market shareholders.

The buyback assumption matters in our models because it impacts EPS growth.

e If companies are more profitable and they are buying back shares, this will be much more beneficial to EPS
than if companies are less profitable and are diluting their shares (e.g., via new issuance).

e That s, buybacks will be a net tailwind to EPS and thus expected returns.
We expect non-US markets to be net issuers of shares (i.e., this will be dilutive to shareholder wealth).
e This is most pronounced in emerging markets, due to their anticipated economic growth.

MEKETA.COM Page 34 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

How do you account for the percentage of earnings/revenues that companies derive from foreign countries?

-» Many large corporations operate internationally, allowing them to generate significant revenues and profits from
overseas markets.

-» Hence, exposure to faster-growing economies could help profits to grow faster than domestic economic growth
alone would allow.

-» Therefore, we estimating earnings growth for a market, we adjust for the geographic revenue source.

Revenue Source by Market

Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues
from US from EAFE from EM from Frontier
(%) (%) (%) (%)
MSCI USA 61.7 171 19.6 1.6
MSCI EAFE 229 52.9 221 2.0
MSCI Emerging Markets 14.8 7.9 76.0 1.2

Source: MSCI Economic Exposure indices for USA, EAFE, Emerging Markets, and Frontier Markets as of December 31, 2024.

N
MEKETA.COM Page 35 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

How is your outlook on China affecting your expected returns?
- Our outlook for China has declined in recent years due to a number of factors, including:

The lackluster post-COVID economic rebound.

A shift in prioritization by the CCP to favor Marxism over growth.

Geopolitical tensions and “de-risking” by Western investors.

Real estate and debt challenges.

- As a result, we place a significant discount on Chinese (and hence, emerging market) growth translating to EPS
growth.

e This discount is greater than for EAFE and EM ex-China indices.
- This serves as a drag on expected returns for EM and Chinese equities.
e ltis also consistent with Chinese EPS growth substantially lagging GDP growth over the past twenty years.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 36 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Why did the spread for private equity over public equity increase?

-» Valuations increased to a greater extent for public equities (e.g., PE ratios) than they did for private equity (e.g.,
EBITDA multiples).

e Of note, the private equity data (as always) is one quarter lagged (i.e., as of 9/30/24).

How does Meketa look at valuations for venture capital?

-» Venture capital tends to be focused on a smaller part of the broad economy, concentrating mostly on a few
sectors such as technology and healthcare.

-» To get a feel for how VC is currently priced, we create a proxy composed of public market indices that focus on
these sectors.

- The proxy is currently composed of: the NASDAQ; Pharma, Biotech & Life Sciences; IT Services; financial
technology; Al; and Clean Tech/Environment.

e The composition and weightings have changed over time.
-» That said, we take our VC model with a large grain of salt, as there is very little private market data available.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 37 of 103



M E K ETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

Why did the 10-year expected returns for private real estate increase while it went down for REITs?
-» Cap rates and REIT yields moved in opposite directions.
e Value-weighted cap rates are ~80 basis points above REIT yields.
-» Higher cap rates pushed up our expected returns for core and non-core real estate, while lower yields pushed
down our expected returns for REITs.
Do we consider inflation when building expected returns for real assets like real estate, infrastructure, and
natural resources?

- Yes, for the vast majority of real assets, inflation is generally linked with either income or growth in our models.

Why did the yield for EM local debt increase when it decreased for most other credit-focused asset classes?
- We use the JPM GBI EM Global Diversified Index as our proxy for EM local debt.

-» JPM added India to the index in 1% monthly increments starting in June, and the yield for Indian bonds was
generally higher than that for the rest of the index.

e This had the effect of pulling up the overall yield.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 38 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

FAQs for 2025

How are you accounting for the non-linear return profile of Long Vol?

- We assume that the payoff of a long vol strategy is significantly and positively skewed during periods of poor
equity market returns (e.g., when equity markets increase or decrease by 10%).

- However, the average return in most years is driven by the effective “insurance premium” investors pay for this
strategy.

How much confidence do you have in your model for cryptocurrencies?

-» We have the lowest amount of confidence in our projections for digital currencies.

-» The lack of associated cash flows makes them challenging to model relative to most other financial assets, as
does their sensitivity to government policy changes.

MEKETA.COM Page 39 of 103



2025 Expected Returns and
Changes from Prior Years

Page 40 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-year Geometric Expected Returns
Rate Sensitive

2024 E(R) 2025 E(R) A From 2024
(%) (%) (%) Notes

Cash Equivalents 24 2.8 0.4 Higher projected short-term rates
Short-term Investment Grade Bonds 3.8 4.2 0.4 Higher projected short-term rates
Investment Grade (Core) Bonds 4.6 4.9 0.3 Higher yields
Intermediate Government Bonds 4.0 4.4 0.4 Higher yields
Long-term Government Bonds 4.3 5.0 0.7 Higher yields
Mortgage-Backed Securities 4.7 5.3 0.6 Higher yields
Investment Grade Corporate Bonds 5.2 5.4 0.2 Higher yields
Long-term Corporate Bonds 5.2 5.9 0.7 Higher yields
Short-term TIPS 3.8 3.9 0.1 Higher real yields
TIPS 4.3 4.3 0.0 Higher real yields
Long-term TIPS 4.7 5.0 0.3 Higher real yields
Global ILBs 4.3 4.2 -0.1 Switched to currency headwind
Foreign Bonds 3.1 24 -0.7 Switched to currency headwind

Slightly lower near-term economist and

US Inflation 2.4 2.3 -0.1 .
market projections

R
MEKETA.COM Page 41 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-year Geometric Expected Returns

Credit
2024 E(R) 2025E(R) A From 2024
(%) (%) (%) Notes

High Yield Bonds 6.5 6.3 -0.2 Tighter spreads
Bank Loans 6.5 6.3 0.2 Higher projec’;tiegdh?:ro:;:gg Srates offset by
Multi-Sector Credit NA 6.3 NA
Collateralized Loan Obligations (CLOs) 8.1 6.9 -1.2 Substantial decline in yield
Emerging Market Bonds (major) 7.0 6.9 -0.1 Lower yields
Emerging Market Bonds (local) 6.3 6.5 0.2 Higher yields with addition of India
Emerging Market Corporate Bonds NA 5.6 NA
Private Debt 9.2 8.7 -0.5 Tighter spreads

Direct Lending 8.2 7.6 -0.6 Tighter spreads

Asset Based Lending 9.7 9.3 -0.4 Tighter spreads

Special Situations Lending 9.7 9.4 -0.3 Tighter spreads

N
MEKETA.COM Page 42 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-year Geometric Expected Returns

Equities
2024 E(R) 2025 E(R) A From 2024
(%) (%) (%) Notes

US Equity 6.9 6.4 05 Higher valuatlonsé;)ran:trllésf;ce)\tlvi)g higher projected
Developed Non-US (EAFE) Equity 7.7 7.2 -0.5 Switched to currency headwind
Emerging Market Equity 7.6 71 -0.5 Higher valuations and lower projected earnings growth

Emerging Market ex-China 7.8 7.5 -0.3 Lower dividends and projected earnings growth

China Equity 71 6.0 -1.1 Higher valuations and lower projected earnings growth
Frontier Market Equity 9.6 8.9 -0.7 Lower projected earnings growth
Global Equity 7.2 6.7 -0.5 Higher valuations and some currency headwind
Low Volatility Equity 6.5 6.0 -0.5 Higher valuations
Private Equity 9.9 9.8 -01 Higher valuations

Buyouts 95 95 0.0 Lower valuatilcz)r\ferre;?;igtj r’:?op;l::\lligrr;;kets offset by

Growth Equity 104 10.1 -0.3 Higher valuations

Venture Capital 10.8 104 -0.4 Higher valuations

R
MEKETA.COM Page 43 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-year Geometric Expected Returns
Real Estate and Infrastructure

2024 E(R)  2025E(R) A From 2024

(%) (%) (%) Notes
Real Estate 6.3 6.9 0.6 Higher cap rates
US REITs 5.6 5.3 -0.3 Lower yields
Core Private Real Estate 4.8 55 0.7 Higher cap rates
Value-Added Real Estate 7.3 8.4 1.1 Higher cap rates
Opportunistic Real Estate 8.4 9.5 1.1 Higher cap rates

Higher expected borrowing costs, no more

Infrastructure 7.4 7.2 -0.2 I
currency tailwind
Infrastructure (Public) 8.0 7.6 -0.4 Higher valuations
Infrastructure (Core Private) 6.5 6.2 -0.3 Aliglier 2 ezt borrow!ng clofE, [0 el
currency tailwind
Infrastructure (Non-Core Private) 8.0 8.2 0.2 Higher income growth partly offset by higher

borrowing costs, no more currency tailwind

R
MEKETA.COM Page 44 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-year Geometric Expected Returns
Natural Resources and Commodities

2024 E(R) 2025 E(R) A From 2024

(%) (%) (%) Notes
Natural Resources 7.8 7.4 -04 Higher valuations
Natural Resources (Public) 8.3 7.8 -0.5 Slightly higher valuations, currency headwind
Natural Resources (Private) 7.7 7.4 -0.3 Higher valuations
Energy 9.1 8.8 -0.3 Slightly higher valuations
Mining 8.6 8.3 -0.3 Slightly higher valuations, currency headwind
Timberland 5.5 5.3 -0.2 Higher valuations
Farmland 5.0 3.6 -1.4 Higher valuations
Sustainability 8.4 8.6 0.2 Lower relative valuations
MLPs 6.6 5.7 -0.9 Higher valuations
Gold Mining 8.0 7.9 -0.1 Slightly higher valuations
Gold (Metal) 2.4 2.3 -0.1 Slightly lower inflation expectations
Commodities 4.9 5.5 0.6 Higher cash yield, moved to positive roll return

R
MEKETA.COM Page 45 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-year Geometric Expected Returns
Hedge Funds and Miscellaneous

2024 E(R) 2025 E(R) A From 2024
(%) (%) (%) Notes
Hedge Funds 4.5 4.2 -0.3 Higher equity valuations, tighter spreads
Long-Short 39 31 0.1 Higher equity valuatlons,. partly offset by higher
cash yields
Event Driven 7.0 5.1 -1.9 Higher equity valuations, tighter spreads
Global Macro 4.2 4.5 0.3 Higher yields
CTA — Trend Following 3.8 3.4 -0.4 Less favorable signals for rates and equities
Fixed Income/L-S Credit 5.0 4.9 -0.1 Tighter spreads
Relative Value/Arbitrage 5.6 4.9 -0.7 Lower projected arb spreads
RMS Aggregate 36 37 0.1 Higher cash yields off§et by less favorable trend
signals
Long Vol 0.7 0.7 0.0
Insurance Linked Strategies )& 4.8 -0.5 Higher expected losses
Alternative Risk Premia 4.8 5.2 0.4 Higher cash yields
Risk Parity (10% vol) 6.3 6.1 -0.2 Higher equity valuations, tighter spreads
Digital Currencies 24 29 0.5 Growing institutionalization

N
MEKETA.COM Page 46 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-year Geometric Expected Returns
Rate Sensitive

2024 E(R) 2025E(R) A From 2024

(%) (%) (%) Notes
Cash Equivalents 2.5 3.1 0.6 Higher yields
Short-term Investment Grade Bonds 3.7 4.3 0.6 Higher yields
Investment Grade (Core) Bonds 4.8 5.3 0.5 Higher yields
Intermediate Government Bonds 4.1 4.6 0.5 Higher yields
Long-term Government Bonds 5.0 5.7 0.7 Higher yields
Mortgage-Backed Securities 4.9 5.5 0.6 Higher yields
Investment Grade Corporate Bonds 5.4 5.9 0.5 Higher yields
Long-term Corporate Bonds 6.0 6.7 0.7 Higher yields
Short-term TIPS 3.7 4.1 0.4 Higher real yields
TIPS 4.7 5.0 0.3 Higher real yields
Long-term TIPS 5.2 5.7 0.5 Higher real yields
Global ILBs 4.7 5.0 0.3 Higher yields
Foreign Bonds 3.9 3.9 0.0 Higher yields offset by currency headwind
US Inflation 2.8 2.7 0.1 S ’OVI‘f’fg r’;ﬁfg :;,:Z tfoclfgomiSt i)

R
MEKETA.COM Page 47 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-year Geometric Expected Returns

Credit
2024 E(R) 2025E(R) A From 2024
(%) (%) (%) Notes

High Yield Bonds 6.8 7.1 0.3 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads
Bank Loans 6.6 6.8 0.2 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads
Multi-Sector Credit NA 7.0 NA
Collateralized Loan Obligations (CLOs) 7.2 7.0 -0.2 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads
Emerging Market Bonds (major) 6.8 7.1 0.3 Higher yields
Emerging Market Bonds (local) 6.2 6.7 0.5 Higher yields with addition of India
Emerging Market Corporate Bonds NA 6.5 NA
Private Debt 9.2 9.1 -0.1 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads

Direct Lending 8.4 8.2 -0.2 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads

Asset Based Lending 9.4 9.3 -0.1 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads

Special Situations Lending 9.9 9.9 0.0 Higher yields offset by tighter spreads

N
MEKETA.COM Page 48 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-year Geometric Expected Returns
Equities

2024 E(R) 2025E(R) A From 2024

(%) (%) (%) Notes
Higher valuations, partly offset by higher projected

US Equity 8.5 8.4 -0.1 eamings growth
Developed Non-US (EAFE) Equity 8.9 8.7 -0.2 Switched to currency headwind
Emerging Market Equity 8.9 8.7 -0.2 Higher valuations and lower projected earnings growth
Emerging Market ex-China 9.0 9.0 0.0
China Equity 8.6 8.1 -0.5 Higher valuations and lower projected earnings growth
Frontier Market Equity 10.0 9.8 -0.2 Lower projected earnings growth
Global Equity 8.7 8.5 -0.2 Higher valuations and some currency headwind
Low Volatility Equity 7.8 7.7 -0.1 Higher valuations
Private Equity 11.2 11.2 0.0
Buyouts 10.8 10.9 0.1 Lower valuatilc())r\:jerre;?rt]i(\)/(z :?O;;L::\I/igrr:;;kets offset by
Growth Equity 11.5 114 -01 Higher valuations
Venture Capital 12.0 11.9 -0.1 Higher valuations

N
MEKETA.COM Page 49 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-year Geometric Expected Returns
Real Estate and Infrastructure

2024 E(R)  2025E(R) A From 2024

(%) (%) (%) Notes
Real Estate 8.0 8.5 0.5 Higher cap rates
US REITs 7.8 7.8 0.0
Core Private Real Estate 6.9 7.4 0.5 Higher cap rates
Value-Added Real Estate 9.0 9.6 0.6 Higher cap rates
Opportunistic Real Estate 10.3 10.9 0.6 Higher cap rates
Infrastructure 9.0 9.2 0.2 Higher income growth
Infrastructure (Public) 9.1 9.0 -01 Higher valuations
Infrastructure (Core Private) 8.0 8.0 0.0
Infrastructure (Non-Core Private) 10.0 10.3 0.3 Higher income growth partly offset by higher

borrowing costs

R
MEKETA.COM Page 50 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-year Geometric Expected Returns
Natural Resources and Commodities

2024 E(R) 2025 E(R) A From 2024

(%) (%) (%) Notes
Natural Resources 9.3 9.2 -0.1 Higher valuations
Natural Resources (Public) 9.2 9.1 -0.1 Slightly higher valuations
Natural Resources (Private) 9.3 9.2 -0.1 Slightly higher valuations
Energy 10.4 10.3 -0.1 Slightly higher valuations
Mining 9.9 9.8 -0.1 Slightly higher valuations
Timberland 7.3 7.3 0.0
Farmland 7.0 6.5 -0.5 Higher valuations
Sustainability 10.0 10.2 0.2 Lower relative valuations
MLPs 8.4 8.0 -0.4 Higher valuations
Gold Mining 9.5 9.5 0.0
Gold (Metal) 3.5 3.6 0.1
Commodities 5.3 5.9 0.6 Higher cash yield

R
MEKETA.COM Page 51 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-year Geometric Expected Returns
Hedge Funds and Miscellaneous

2024 E(R) 2025 E(R) A From 2024
(%) (%) (%) Notes
Hedge Funds 5.8 6.0 0.2 Higher valuations offset by higher cash yields
Long-Short 5.3 55 0.2 Higher valuations offset by higher cash yields
Event Driven 7.6 6.7 -0.9 Higher equity valuations, tighter spreads
Global Macro 54 59 0.5 Higher yields
CTA - Trend Following 4.7 4.9 0.2
Fixed Income/L-S Credit 6.1 6.4 0.3 Higher yields
Relative Value/Arbitrage 6.5 6.5 0.0
RMS Aggregate 4.4 4.8 0.4 Higher cash yields
Long Vol 1.2 1.5 0.3
Insurance Linked Strategies 6.2 6.3 0.1
Alternative Risk Premia 5.2 5.8 0.6 Higher cash yields
Risk Parity (10% vol) 7.2 7.4 0.2
Digital Currencies 3.5 4.1 0.6 Growing institutionalization

R
MEKETA.COM Page 52 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Big Picture: Higher Return for Similar Risk

- The relationship between long-term return expectations and the level of risk accepted is not static.

- The higher interest rates compared to a decade ago mean that many investors have greater flexibility in how they
structure a portfolio to achieve their target returns.

A 2015 12025
12 - -
Private Equity A EM Equity
10
EAFE Equity APrivate Equity
< Real Estate AEAF ;}er_ngty -
<~ 8 High Yield Bonds - AEAFE.Eq
c g us EqUIty— gs.qunty
2 =" Real Estate
ﬂd:’ - -
-
g 6 P - —‘
© - - -
o Core Bonds TIBS” < - High Yield Bonds
% - -
w4 _-
s L d
Cash - re Bonds
L d
Cash” A TIPS
2 i
0
0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Standard Deviation (%)

" Expected return and standard deviation are based upon Meketa Investment Group’s 2015 and 2025 20-year capital market expectations.

MEKETA.COM _ Page 53 of 103



Summary Data and Track Record

Page 54 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Return and Risk Data

10-year 20-year Years 11-20
Expected Expected Standard Risk
Return Return Deviation Premium?
Asset Class

Cash Equivalents 2.8 3.1 1.0 -2.0
Investment Grade Bonds 4.9 5.3 4.0 0.4
Long-term Government Bonds 5.0 5.7 12.0 1.0
TIPS 4.3 5.0 7.0 0.4
High Yield Bonds 6.3 7.1 11.0 25
Bank Loans 6.3 6.8 10.0 2.0
Emerging Market Debt 6.3 6.8 11.0 1.8
Private Debt 8.7 9.1 15.0 4.1
US Equity 6.4 8.4 17.0 5.0
Developed Non-US Equity 7.2 8.7 18.0 4.9
Emerging Non-US Equity 71 8.7 22.0 5.0
Global Equity 6.7 8.5 17.0 5.0
Private Equity 9.8 11.2 25.0 7.3
Real Estate 6.9 8.5 15.0 4.8
Infrastructure 7.2 9.2 18.0 5.7
Commodities 55 5.9 17.0 1.0
Hedge Funds 4.2 6.0 7.0 24
Inflation 2.3 2.7 NA NA

" Risk premia are calculated relative to the market's projection for the yield on the 10-year Treasury in ten years..

R
MEKETA.COM Page 55 of 103



Investment Grade
Bonds

Long-Term
Government Bonds

TIPS
High Yield Bonds

US Equity

Developed Non-US
Equity

Emerging Market
Equity

Private Equity
Real Estate

Commodities

Hedge Funds

m
A\
-
>

1.00

0.86

0.77

0.35

0.18

0.28

0.26

0.00

0.26

-0.01

0.31

0.15

1.00

0.61

-0.03

-0.13

-0.07

-0.06

-0.10

0.07

-0.24

0.14

-0.17

1.00

0.47

0.25

0.34

0.35

0.03

0.16

0.27

0.32

0.30

1.00

0.74

0.77

0.72

0.66

0.56

0.48

0.65

0.78

Correlation Data

1.00

0.87

0.71

0.90

0.53

0.48

0.64

0.79

1.00

0.85

0.83

0.49

0.55

0.68

0.83

1.00

0.79

0.42

0.59

0.59

0.80

Private
Equit

1.00

0.48

0.23

0.51

0.53

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

.m
Estate [Commod. Funds

1.00

0.15

0.61

0.47

1.00

0.41

0.64

1.00

0.61

1.00

MEKETA.COM

Page 56 of 103



Meketa Investment Group

MEKETA

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

10-Year Return Forecasts and Likely Range

18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%

Page 57 of 103

MEKETA.COM



Meketa Investment Group

MEKETA

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

20-Year Return Forecasts and Likely Range

18%

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

Page 58 of 103

MEKETA.COM



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Our 20-Year CMEs Since 2000

— Cash Equivalents TIPS —|nvestment Grade Bonds
—=High Yield Bonds = US Equity Developed Non-US Equity
- Emerging Market Equity Private Equity Real Estate

= Commodities
16%

14%

o A NN
8% \//\ /\
6% \/\_

4%

» /_\/v

0%

MEKETA.COM - Page 59 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Our Track Record

Investment Grade Bonds TIPS
- Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER - Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER
9% —=Actual 20-year Return 8% Actual 20-year Return

8%
7%
6%

= [N = INL L

4% [T}TTTTMjL WW]

0,
3% J 3°A’ l
2% l l 2%
1% 1%

7%

o e Tm—

0% 0%
N D> L O DA DO OSSN0 S & & L &P LY L0
L T LTSN N NN
ST T T TS TFTTT ST S & PP FT ST S
High Yield Bonds Core Real Estate
. ==Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER . = Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER
15% Actual 20-year Return 15%

—

w AN o ]
Wil HHH\Hﬁ::HJﬂH

3%
0% 0%

_
_
'—

—Z—|

MEKETA.COM Page 60 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Our Track Record (continued)

US Equity

20%

(L]

- Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER
Actual 20-year Return

Emerging Markets Equity

- Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER

24% Actual 20-year Return
20% | [
o | A
12% | |
8%
4% L — \/
0%

I I I SR Sy

20%
16%
12%
8%
4%
0%
4%

24%
20%
16%
12%
8%
4%
0%

EAFE Equity

- Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER
Actual 20-year Return

HLWHWHHH

poSay

Private Equity

- Actual 10-year Return Forecast 20-year ER
Actual 20-year Return

NG ~

MEKETA.COM

Page 61 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

2024 Peer Survey
- Annually, Horizon Actuarial Services, LLC publishes a survey of capital market assumptions that they collect from
various investment advisors.’

-» The Horizon survey is a useful tool to determine whether a consultant’s expectations for returns (and risk) are
reasonable.

Horizon 10-Year Horizon 20-Year
Average Meketa 10-Year Average Meketa 20-Year
Asset Class (%) (%) (%) (%)
Cash Equivalents 3.7 24 3.4 2.5
TIPS 4.4 4.3 4.3 4.7
US Core Bonds 4.9 4.6 4.9 4.8
US High Yield Bonds 6.1 6.5 6.4 6.8
Emerging Market Debt 6.2 6.3 6.3 6.2
Private Debt 8.3 9.2 8.4 9.2
US Equity (large cap) 6.5 6.9 7.0 8.5
Developed Non-US Equity 7.1 7.7 7.5 8.9
Emerging Non-US Equity 7.7 7.6 8.2 8.9
Private Equity 9.1 9.9 9.7 11.2
Real Estate 6.1 6.3 6.2 8.0
Infrastructure 7.3 7.4 7.4 9.0
Commodities 4.9 4.9 5.0 5.3
Hedge Funds 59 4.5 6.2 5.8
Inflation 24 24 24 2.8

"The 10-year horizon included all 41 respondents to the survey, and the 20-year horizon included 26 respondents. Figures are based on Meketa’s 2024 CMEs. The survey is typically published in August.
|
MEKETA.COM Page 62 of 103



Long-Term Theme:
The Sustainability of US Earnings

Page 63 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Long-Term Link Between Profits and GDP

- There is an intuitive appeal to the idea that long-term earnings growth is linked to economic growth.

-» Corporate profitability is based on factors such as consumption, investment, and spending that are the key
ingredients of economic growth.

- Indeed, growth features in the discounted cash flow formula commonly used by investors to calculate the present
value of a stock (or any asset).

Corporate Profits and GDP 1947-2023

- Corporate Profits After Tax GDP
140

120

100

80
.

60 \/

40

20

Source: Meketa analysis of FRED data as of December 2023. US annual GDP and corporate profits indexed annual growth to March 2020. Corporate profits include both private and publicly traded companies as calculated by the Bureau of
Economic Analysis.

MEKETA.COM Page 64 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Long-Term Link Between Profits and GDP

-» There appears to be a relationship between economic growth and earnings growth, at least in the US.

-» Since 2000, there is a clear positive correlation between the earnings growth of S&P 500 companies and real

GDP growth.

-» The r-squared value of 0.456 implies that while economic growth is partly responsible for earnings growth, it is far

from the full story.

S&P 500 Earnings Growth

S&P 500 Earnings Growth and US Real Economic Growth Relationship

80%

°
60%
°
40% 2=0.4559 .
o, .o
20% v, ,,....! ----
¢ a-%e Q@
o9
% — et % o —
o ... » )
-20% o T . . .
-40% °

-60%

4% -3% 2% “1% 0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 7%

Real Annual GDP Growth

Source: Meketa analysis of FactSet and FRED data as of December 2023.

MEKETA.COM

T ——...SSS..
Page 65 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

US Profitability

- In the US, corporate profits have grown considerably faster than the broader economy since the 1990s.
- This is coincident with profits consuming a greater proportion of the economic pie.
e Since 2000, corporate profits averaged 9.1% of GDP, vs 6.1% prior to that.

Corporate Profits as a % of GDP
12%

1%
10%
9%
8%
7%
6%
5%

4%

3%

I\
)
PP A2 2222220000302

Source: Meketa analysis of FRED data. Series uses Seasonally Adjusted Annual Rate for Nominal GDP and Corporate Profits After Tax with Inventory Valuation Adjustment (IVA) and Capital Consumption Adjustment (CCAdj). Data is from
1Q1947 through 3Q2024.

L
MEKETA.COM Page 66 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Recent Corporate Profits

-» The strong growth in US earnings since 1990 is linked in part to profits consuming a greater proportion of the
economic pie.

Growth of US GDP, Corporate Earnings, and EPS

US Nominal GDP US Corporate Earnings  S&P 500 EPS Growth

Growth Per Annum Growth Per Annum Per Annum
(%) (%) (%)
Since 1990 4.8 7.0 6.9
Since 2010 49 5.6 9.7

- This begs the question of why US corporate profits have grown faster than the broader economy (as well as
other markets), and more importantly, whether this is sustainable.

¢ Justifying higher future earnings growth implies that profits will continue to comprise a higher percentage of
GDP.

Source: Federal Reserve Economic Data, S&P. Corporate earnings defined as Corporate Profits After Tax (with VA and CCAdj). Seasonally Adjusted Annual Rate for Nominal GDP. Data is as of September 30, 2024.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 67 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

EPS Growth

- EPS growth for the EAFE and Emerging Markets indices has been essentially zero since 2011.
¢ Meanwhile, US EPS growth has been strong over the past two decades.

-» There has been a meaningful difference in EPS growth for the US versus other global markets, and it has not
been due to a difference in GDP growth.

20-Year EPS Growth, Indexed to $1

5.00 ——S&P 500 MSCI EAFE ———MSCI EM

Source: Meketa analysis of MSCI and Bloomberg data. Series uses Trailing 12-month earnings per share in local currency. As of December 31, 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 68 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Reasons Why Profitability May Decouple from GDP Growth

- There are several reasons why profits have likely comprised a higher (or lower) percentage of GDP:
e The global footprint of companies
e Market composition
e Technological advancements
e Labor market dynamics
e Government policies
e The level of interest rates
- In addition, EPS can decouple from earnings.
¢ Net issuance vs buybacks affects EPS.
- The question is to what extent some or all of these explanations will remain in place.

N
MEKETA.COM Page 69 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

A Global Footprint
-» Many large corporations (i.e., most of the biggest publicly traded companies) operate internationally, allowing
them to generate significant revenues and profits from overseas markets.

e For example, the companies in the MSCI USA index derived an estimated 38.3% of their revenues from
outside the US in 2024.

-» Many of these companies expanded to international markets in the hope of taking advantage of faster growth in
the target market for their product or service.

- Hence, exposure to faster-growing economies (e.g., many emerging markets countries) could help boost US
profits to grow faster than US economic growth alone would allow.

Revenue Source for the Stock Market

% Revenues from % Revenues from % Revenues from % Revenues
us EAFE EM Frontier
MSCI USA 61.7 17.1 19.6 1.6
MSCI EAFE 229 52.9 221 2.0
MSCI Emerging Markets 14.8 7.9 76.0 1.2

Source: Meketa analysis of data provided by MSCI as of December 31, 2024.
R
MEKETA.COM Page 70 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Shifting Winds in Global Trade
-» Starting around 1990, the world experienced extraordinary growth in trade as countries adopted trade
liberalization policies.
- Global trade grew from 20% of global GDP in 1970 to a peak of over 50% in 2008.
e However, it has since plateaued and appears to be declining.
- As a result, the share of profits for US-based companies coming from outside the US may have peaked.

-» Hence, the tailwind of expanded global trade has likely faded and may even be turning into a headwind if the
world continues on its recent path of deglobalization.

Annual Global Trade and GDP (1970 — 2023)
65 —World Trade (% GDP) (L Axis) World GDP ($ T) 120

60 /\ Vv 100
55 \/
80

50

45 60

40 40

35

30 20

25 0
FEELFEFFLESFEE ST TTTTESEF

Source: World Bank, as of December 2023. World trade shown in current US dollars.

MEKETA.COM ' Page 71 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Market Composition

- The composition of the US stock market is constantly evolving.

-» At any point in time, it is often led by those companies that are driving change in the economy, from the railroad
stocks of the late 1800s to the Al-related stocks of today.

- In the last two decades, it has become increasingly concentrated in the information technology sector.

MSCI USA Historical Sector Weightings

o R —— " UltleS
90% = Telecommunication Services
80% = Real Estate
70% = Materials
= Information Technology
60%
= Industrials
50%
Health Care
40% = Financials
30% = Energy
20% = Consumer Staples
10% = Consumer Discretionary

= Communication Services

Source: MSCI as of December 2024. In 2017, the Communications sector was created from the telecommunications sector and some social media companies. And in 2017, Real Estate sector was introduced to the index

o
MEKETA.COM Page 72 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Market Composition, continued

-» This evolution in sector composition is important as different sectors have exhibited varied earnings growth
profiles.

-» For example, the two sectors that have exhibited the highest earnings growth since 2000 are now the two largest
sectors in the S&P 500.

- If these sectors continue to grow faster than the rest of the market, their larger weighting supports the concept of
the equity market growing faster than the broader economy.

Annualized Average US Earnings Growth by Sector
14%

11.9%
12%
10% | g.59%
0,
8% 7.6%
6.0% 6.2%
6% 4.9%
" 4-5% 4.1% S 3.8%
0
2% 1.5% . 1.7%
0%
& Q\06" z&* ¥ O@*Q R o@ ¥ \&(’ <& Q
o N > ~ 0N & & & ' S g
)
N 2 < & N S & 2 @ ) 2
\d < & i by > N\ &) A
& o&z < D 3 K@ & @é@
R
0‘0 006" 'i}oo & z@\
& &) & & <&
N &
& & 6‘&

Source: MSCI USA index. Data as for the twenty years ending December 2024. Real estate established in 2016 and showing since inception return. Note that Meta and Alphabet were moved to communication services in 2016..

MEKETA.COM Page 73 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Market Composition (continued)
- Just as important as the changes in the composition of the equity market are the differences between the stock
market and the broad economy.
- For example, IT comprises a substantially larger portion of the stock market than it does of US GDP.

Composition of US Equity Market vs US GDP by Sector

35% m Russell 3000 (Market Cap %) BEA Sector Weight (% GDP)
(]

30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
4 I
0% I I . . || [ |
x
o@ od \Q}e ) {z}e &2 & @; (5@ ‘&e ¢o°(° ) \o\fo &e &
> N $ 9 O NS & ) D O L &
(\o \}O \{o ,bQ S 9\ Q}\ & 0’0 > x@ {4 \
3 N \ XY 2 &) <
& @ & & 2 < 2 & N\ % ©
Y & < @ @ @ S O S
A & NS & <& & & o <)
(0 6\} o‘o @0 '\oe
& P O N4
O N Q
& K@ ¥
P &
é\o
&
Q€

Source: Russell 3000 index fact sheet as of December 2024. Bureau of Economic Analysis as of September 2024. For GDP analysis at the sector level, the BEA uses the ‘valued added’ approach to GDP calculation. Meketa estimated weights
for BEA sectors into GICS sectors.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 74 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Profitability and Productivity

Productivity is a driver of growth at both the macroeconomic and microeconomic levels.

Increases in labor productivity, for example, mean that more output is produced per hour worked, which directly
contributes to GDP growth.

- Likewise, improvements in total factor productivity, often driven by technological advancements and innovation,
can lead to significant increases in GDP.

Labor Productivity and GDP

- Real GDP Labor Productivity (Output Per Order)
240

220
200
180
160
140
120
100 (==

Source: FRED. Data is for the period 1990 through 3Q2024.
|
MEKETA.COM Page 75 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Profitability, Productivity, and Labor Market Dynamics
-» Companies that can increase output without a corresponding increase in labor costs will enjoy higher
productivity, leading to higher profits.
e At the macro level, the economy has shifted such that labor has less pricing power.
e As a result, a smaller share of economic gains goes to labor, while a larger share goes to corporate profits.
- The decreasing share of union workers in the workforce may be both a measure of and cause of this.

e This decline is due to a number of factors, including the decrease as a % of the economy of heavily unionized
industries like manufacturing, mining, and transportation.

e As these industries have shrunk in relative terms, the economy has shifted towards sectors with traditionally
lower unionization rates, such as services and technology.

e The offshoring of manufacturing and other “low skill” jobs, as well as the automation of much of those
industries, has also played a part.

e More recently, the rise of the gig economy represents yet another area where labor has limited pricing power.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 76 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Profitability, Productivity, and Scale

- Productivity can also be driven by economies of scale.

e For example, companies in the tech sector, particularly those involved in software development and data
centers, enjoy significant economies of scale.

e Once the initial development costs are covered, the cost of producing additional “units” (e.g., software
licenses) is minimal.

e The pharmaceutical industry benefits from economies of scale in research and development (R&D) and
production.

e High initial costs for R&D can be spread over a large volume of drug sales, reducing the average cost per unit.

- If the stock market is more heavily weighted in industries/companies that have more favorable productivity
characteristics, it might help explain why the market has been able to grow earnings faster than the broader
economy.

e Indeed, industries that enjoy low comparative labor costs and high comparative economies of scale represent
a disproportionate share of the stock market relative to the economy.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 77 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Profit Margins

- Profit margins for the S&P 500 have proved to be quite steady over the past decade, even during the global
pandemic.

-» This implies stable pricing power on behalf of listed companies, no matter the political administration, inflationary
environment, or stage of the business cycle.

S&P 500 Net Profit Margin
25%

20%

15%
10%
5%
0%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Source: FactSet as of December 31, 2024. Data pulled on January 7, 2025.

MEKETA.COM Page 78 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Government Policies: Taxes and Interest Rates

- Declining effective tax rates, combined with lower interest rates, have served as a tailwind for profitability since
the 1990s.

- In June of 2023, the Federal Reserve published a research note that found that between 1989 and 2019, falling
tax rates and borrowing costs accounted for around forty percent of corporate profit growth.

- Indeed, corporate taxes and interest expense have fallen from around sixty percent of earnings in the early
1990s to about ten percent of earnings in 2024.

Interest and Tax Share of S&P 500 Earnings (% EBIT)

—=|nterest Expense + Tax Share of Earnings (% EBIT) (L-Axis)

S&P 500 Earnings Before Interest and Taxes

70% 300
60%
250
50%
200
40%
30% 150
20%
100
10%
0% Py 50
° W
-10% 0
N ] ¢) A O N %) H Q O N > ) A S N )
) O O V) O \ N \ \) Q N N N N N QA &
EEFELE ST FTS S

Source: Bloomberg as of February 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 79 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Societal Norms

-» The US has a culture that encourages risk-taking, individualism, and entrepreneurial activities.
e This is perhaps best exemplified by the venture capital industry, which is fairly unique to the US.

e Venture capital tends to emphasize sectors that, on average, are growing faster than the broad economy, it has
served as the breeding ground for many of the companies that are currently driving earnings growth in the US.

e It is not too far-fetched to believe that the companies that will be powering earnings growth ten or twenty years
in the future will come out of the US venture ecosystem of today.

- In the US, maximizing shareholder wealth has long been the primary goal of the boards and executives that run
public companies.

e Arguably, this results in companies seeking to maximize their long-term earnings per share growth.

e However, the degree to which shareholder wealth is a primary motivation varies by market, and this changes
over time.

e For example, many European companies are focused on improving outcomes for all “stakeholders” in a
company (i.e., stakeholder capitalism).

R
MEKETA.COM Page 80 of 103



M E K ETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Societal Norms (continued)

-» Perhaps less benevolently, intervention by the state and structural inefficiencies such as lack of property rights or
clear rule of law, may also affect earnings growth.

State-owned or state-controlled enterprises may pursue motives beside shareholder wealth.

State-backed companies may be more willing to tolerate low margins or even operate at a loss in order to
achieve other strategic objectives.

Likewise, countries that lack clear property rights or rule of law are more likely to be subject to direct
intervention by the state that can harm shareholders.

- Corruption, graft, and nepotism can affect the link between economic growth and earnings growth.

- A

Capitalism, at least in theory, allows for the efficient allocation of resources and capital, as determined by the
marketplace.

A culture where corruption is common is more likely to result in the misallocation of resources, where capital is
directed from productive to unproductive uses (e.g., bribes).

Emerging economies tend to have the lowest scores on the global Corruption Perceptions Index published by
Transparency International.

favorable regulatory environment can boost after-tax profits, while a high or unfavorable regulatory

environment can detract them.

When comparing the relative ease of doing business, the World Bank finds that regulatory burdens are higher
in countries with lower national income (i.e., many emerging market countries).

Source: Transparency International, Corruption Perceptions Index, 2023. The CPI measures the perceived levels of public sector corruption in countries and territories around the world.
Source: World Bank Group, “Doing Business 2020: Company Business Regulation in 190 Countries,” 2020.

MEKETA.COM Page 81 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group
2025 Capital Markets Expectations
Earnings Growth

-» EPS has grown faster than earnings in the US in recent years, acting as a tailwind.

- This is primarily due to companies using excess cash to repurchase their shares.’

EPS with no change in shares EPS with 2% reduction in shares

$1,578B / 10.5M shares $1,578B / 10.3M shares

= $150.3 per share = $153.2 per share

EPS 2% higher

-» Over ten years, this can have a significant compounding effect.

EPS with 2% reduction in shares for ten years

$1,578B / 8.6M shares
= $183.9 per share?
EPS 22% higher

-~ Data shows that this trend is almost two decades long.3

- This bucks the longer-term trend (still common in non-US markets) of companies being net issuers of shares.

" Buying back shares reduces the denominator in the Earnings per Share equation, thus increasing the result of the calculation. The example shown is illustrative.
2 Throughout this document, numbers may not sum due to rounding.

3 Source: Yardeni research.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 82 of 103



Long-Term Theme:
The Decreasing Number of Public Companies

Page 83 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Historical Perspective

- Throughout most of US market history, the number of publicly listed companies grew.
e This trend peaked in 1997, when there were more than 6,500 listed companies.
-» The number then declined by more 40% until reaching a nadir of just 3,800 companies in 2012.
-~ Market capitalization was relatively unhampered, increasing by nearly 6x to $60 trillion in June 2024.

Number and Market Cap of US Listed Companies 1980 — June 2024

7,000 mmm Market Cap ($T) Number of Stocks 60
6,000
5,000

4,000

Market Cap ($T)

3,000

Number of Stocks

2,000

1,000

Source: Bloomberg. Stock count from NASDAQ, New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), and New York Stock Exchange American. Note that estimates of the total number of listed stocks vary. For example, data from the World Bank shows a peak
of just over 8,000 stocks, while data from CRSP US Stocks Databases shows it peaking at 7,300.

o —————————————————————
Page 84 of 103

MEKETA.COM |



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Delistings Rise as Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) Fall

- For the majority of the past thirty years, the number of net new companies has declined.
e The number is impacted by both additions (i.e., IPOs) and subtractions (i.e., delistings).

- Delistings experienced two prolonged surges, one starting in 1997-98 and the other in 2018.

-» |POs declined from a peak in the mid 1990s, aside from a spike in 2021.

-» Other developed markets (e.g., the UK) have seen similar trends of a decreasing number of public companies.
¢ However, some emerging markets (e.g., China) have seen the opposite trend.

Net Changes to Number of US Listed Companies (IPOs — Delistings)

1,500 m=m Number of IPOs Per Year
Number of Delistings Per Year
1,000 == Net Number of New Companies Per Year

500

-500

-1,000

-1,500

Source: London Stock Exchange as June 2024 and Shanghai Stock Exchange as of August 16, 2024.
Source: Bloomberg data for delisting from NASDAQ, NYSE and NYSE American. Represents annual figures for 1996 through 2023 and partial year through June 2024. IPOs Data accounts only for “Primary Share Offerings,” excludes
“Secondary Share Offerings” and “Best Efforts.” Delistings are based on delistings from NYSE and NASDAQ. “Other” reasons for delisting include reorganization, bankruptcy, liquidation, and not available.

L
MEKETA.COM Page 85 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Delisting By Public and Private Acquisition

- If a company delists, shareholders may be bought out or offered new shares.
- Delistings due to M&A peaked in the late 1990s and early 2000s.
¢ |t has averaged ~250 companies per year since.

- Delistings due to acquisitions has been driven more by public companies’ M&A activity than private companies
taking public companies private.

¢ When public companies acquire other public companies, investors continue to have access to the growth and
revenues of the acquired companies through the merged entity.

Delistings Due to Private and Public Acquisitions
Annual Figures: January 1990 - June 2024

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150

= Public Acquirer Private Acquirer

Source: NBER Market Microstructure Meetings 2002, J. Macey et. Al., “Down and Out in the Stock Market: The Law and Economics of the Delisting Process,” 2002 and updated in February 2005.
Source: Bloomberg data as of June 2024 for NASDAQ, NYSE and NYSE American exchanges.

N
MEKETA.COM Page 86 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Exchange and SEC Regulatory Changes
- Between 1990 and 1998, regulatory efforts to separate “penny stocks” from more valuable shares resulted in the
creation of the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (OTCBB).
e The number of penny stocks declined from ~6,000 to ~4,000 stocks.
- In 1996, NASDAQ increased its minimum market cap and share price requirements.

> In 2002, with the passage of Sarbanes-Oxley (SOX) regulation, all US exchanges amended their listing
standards to include additional corporate governance requirements such as independent audits.

e Between 1996 and 2002 more than 7,350 stocks delisted from US exchanges, with half of them being forced
to delist for not meeting minimum asset, volume, and shareholder minimums.

Delistings by Reason = Other

1400 Not Available
1200 " m Liquidated
1000 I ! I I _ | i End of When-Issued Trading
222 | | | I : i i _ i i i ® Reorganization
400 E N - B = ! i | - Security Called for Redemptions
200 I Il =z:03; '----E = Expired

0 E

Failure to Meet Listing Requirements

S Q% » o Qo S Q% \a o Qo N v e
S ) S S S N N N N N Q% v v
R . S R . Y. S SO S m Acquired/Merged

Source: NBER Market Microstructure Meetings 2002, J. Macey et. Al., “Down and Out in the Stock Market: The Law and Economics of the Delisting Process,” 2002 and updated in February 2005.

Source: Doidge, Karolyi, and Stulz, “The US listing gap,” July 2015.

Source: Bloomberg. Represents the period January 1990 to June 2024. IPOs Data accounts only for “Primary Share Offerings,” excludes “Secondary Share Offerings” and “Best Efforts.” Delistings are based on delistings from NYSE, NYSE
American and NASDAQ. Chart does not include all of the reasons cited for delisting but focuses on the most often cited reasons.

]
MEKETA.COM Page 87 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Private Equity and Shadow Banking
- In October 1996, the National Securities Markets Improvement Act (“NSMIA”) “made it easier for both private
start-ups and private equity funds investing in them to raise private capital.”

> In an effort to de-risk systemically important banks and promote financial stability, Congress passed the
Dodd-Frank Act in 2010.

e As a result, many banks took a more conservative approach to lending and many companies found
themselves unable to secure loans from banks.

¢ Into this void stepped hedge funds, private credit funds, and other lenders, resulting in the rise of the “shadow
banking” system.

Growth in Private Credit and High Yield Assets Under Management
3,500 = Private Credit ($B) US Corporate High Yield ($B)
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

Source: Prequin private credit assets under management as of December 2023. Barclays Live high yield amount outstanding as of December 2023.

]
MEKETA.COM Page 88 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Annual Number and Size of IPOs Has Declined
- Between 1980 and 2000, approximately 300 companies IPO’d each year, but for the subsequent decade, the
annual average number of IPOs fell to just over 100.
- In recent years, companies are waiting longer, on average, to go public.
e For example, the average age of a venture-backed IPO has doubled.
- Moreover, some of the most successful IPOs over the past decade were cashflow positive companies with an
initial valuation of over $1 billion dollars — the so-called unicorns.

Number of IPOs by size

1,400 === |[POs under $100 million IPOs over $100 million
—|POs under $100 million (5-Year average) —|POs over $100 million (5-Year average)
1,200

1,000
800
600
400

200

Source: Pitchbook, P. Mathur, “The Meteoric Rise of US Unicorns in 2021,” January 5, 2024.
Source: Bloomberg. Represents annual figures for 1995 through 2023 and partial year through June 2024 for NYSE, NASDAQ and NYSE American.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 89 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

IPO Costs

-» The higher investor limit provides private companies with more flexibility to access private capital without the
burden (and costs) of compliance reporting or becoming public.

- These costs include expenses for accounting, legal, underwriting, and other services.

e The smaller the company, the greater the proportion the IPO costs would be of their revenues and presumably
of their value.

— The decline in the number of IPOs appears to have been concentrated among small companies.

One-time IPO Costs

$180
$160 Total Misc.
$140 I—— = Exchange Listing
$120 ] FINRA
@ $100 u SEC Registration
) » Printing Fees
= $80 .
= u Accounting Fees
$60 I Legal Fees
$40 | ® Underwriting Fee
$0

IPO Size $250M to $499M IPO Size $500M to $1B IPO Size >$1B

Source: SEC, X. Gao et al., “Where Have All the IPO’s Gone?” April 3, 2024.
Source: PriceWaterHouse Coopers “Considering an IPO to fuel your company’s future?” as of September 2024.

MEKETA.COM Page 90 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Intangible Assets

-» The increasing importance of intangible corporate assets may also be a factor in a company’s decision to stay
private or go public.

e Intangibles include patents, software and databases, trademarks, customer lists, franchise agreements,
organization capital, and firm-specific human capital.

- Establishing and enforcing exclusive property rights for intangible assets can be challenging.

¢ Unlike physical capital, an intangible can be readily copied or imitated.

-» Companies heavily investing in intangibles may prefer to stay private.

e This lowers the risk of proprietary information being divulged to competitors via regulatory disclosures.

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Global Market Value of Intangible Assets (USD T)

Source: Source: Journal of Economic Perspectives, N. Crouzet et. Al., “The Economics of Intangible Capital,” Summer 2022.
Source: Brand Finance Global Intangible Finance Tracker (GIFT) as of December 2023. Journal of Economic Perspectives, N. Crouzet et. Al., “The Economics of Intangible Capital,” Summer 2022.

MEKETA.COM

R ——
Page 91 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

US Stock Market Concentration

- The change in the number of public US companies has potential ramifications for investors:
e An increased level of concentration in public markets.
e A broader opportunity set in private markets.
> The US stock market recently reached a peak level of concentration (for the past thirty years).

US Stock Market Concentration based on HHI
Annual Figures: 1996 — June 2024

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

Source: Bloomberg and MSCI data. Represents annual figures from 1996 through 2023 and partial year as of June 2024. Based on the MSCI USA Index and GICS sector weights. Mechanics of the calculation make the result hold at the stock
level as well. HHI refers to the Herfindahl-Hirschman Index, a widely used measure of market concentration. The metric calculates the sum of the squared market shares (or weights) for each member of the sample, and the higher the total, the
more concentrated a market is. At the extreme, a market with only one company, or a monopoly, would be the most concentrated, with a HHI index of 10,000 (10012).

o
MEKETA.COM Page 92 of 103



MEKETA

Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Shift to Private Markets

- If investors want to access the growth of a broader swath of companies, they may want to consider investing
more in private equity.

e More than 85% of companies with annual revenues over $100 million are private companies.

- Some recent analysis suggests that the return on investment for firms backed by venture capital and private
equity are notably higher than those of the companies in the S&P 500.

$6,000
$5,000
$4,000
$3,000
$2,000
$1,000

$0

Private Equity Funds Raised as a % of US GDP

Annual Private Equity Funds Raised (% GDP)(R-axis) = Annual Nominal GDP ($ B)

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

Source: FRED nominal GDP as of June 30, 2024. Prequin annual private equity fund raising as of June 30, 2024. Private equity funds raised includes venture, buyouts and growth equity. Bain & Company, using data from S&P Capital 1Q as of
December 2022 and Statistics of US Businesses as of 2017.
Source: NBER, B. Jovanovic et al., “Private Equity and Growth” October 2020. The authors’ analysis suggest that venture and buyout equity investment of approximately 5% to 7% may contribute to growth between 14% and 21% between 2001
and 2019. See also, NBER, N. Garleau et al., “Finance in a Time of Disruptive Growth,” March 2024.

MEKETA.COM

Page 93 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Summary

-» The number of publicly traded companies in the US has decreased by 40-50% since its peak in 1996.

- The decline may be explained by a variety of developments, including:

Fewer companies going public,

Rising regulatory burdens from exchanges and federal legislation,
The growth and availability of private capital,

A surge of mergers and acquisitions, and

The rise of propriety technology and intellectual property.

-» The changes have improved investor rights and corporate transparency for publicly traded companies.

-» One possible side effect is a higher level of market concentration.

- Private equity provides an avenue for investing in many of the same types of companies that would have been
public a generation ago.

MEKETA.COM Page 94 of 103



Long-Term Theme: China

Page 95 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Why the Pessimism on China?

- The anticipated economic rebound from exiting zero-COVID did not materialize.
- Real estate bubble is getting worse, not better.

- Investors have responded by voting with their feet.

-» Xi’s policies seem to be backfiring.

MEKETA.COM Page 96 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Economic Rebound That Wasn’t

Chinese growth has disappointed in 2023 and into 2024.
-» China exited their zero-COVID policy in late 2022.
- Many investors and economists alike anticipated a surge in growth as the economy re-opened.
- But the economic rebound did not materialize.
- Growth projections are being ratcheted down.
- Major causes include:
e Debt overhang in the property sector — nearly 4 of China’s economy.
e Domestic demand/consumption has been weak.

China Real GDP Growth (YoY %)

14
12
10

o N A~ O ©

Source: World Bank as of December 2023. World Bank data is from China’s National Bureau of Statistics.
B |
MEKETA.COM Page 97 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Real Estate Bubble

Property market turns from tailwind to headwind.

- The issue is systemic.

Both the private and public sectors are heavily indebted.

The worst problems are with property developers and local governments.

In 2021, it was Evergrande; in 2023, it was Country Garden.

Old model:

e CCP sold land to developers, filling local government coffers in the process.

N R

This allowed CCP to spend freely while taking on more debt themselves.

Local governments are responsible for ~85% of expenditures.

Developers borrowed heavily and pre-sold properties to finance their acquisitions.

No other good savings options, so ~70% of household wealth tied up in the property market.
- Current status:
e Housing prices falling.
e Some property owners now refusing to make payments on unfinished properties.
e This can turn into a vicious cycle where developers do not have the cash flow to complete projects.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 98 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

CCP Reaction Has Not Been Helpful

Focus has become national security, not growth.

Emphasizing nationalistic policies and self-sufficiency.

CCP has clamped down on foreign businesses (e.g., office raid, iPhone restrictions).
Wants to reign in the debt bubble, so little/no support for property developers.

PBoC providing minimal stimulus.

Relationships with trading partners and neighbors are becoming increasingly strained.
Many investors and business have responded by seeking to reduce their ties to China.

R 2 2 2

Missing and replaced ministers signal challenges at the top of party leadership.

If growth continues to falter, China will face a choice:
Backtrack or double down on security and repression.

R
MEKETA.COM Page 99 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

The Change in the CCP under President Xi

- Pragmatism appears to be fading in favor of \§
[

§

nationalism and autarky, led by President Xi Jinping.

-» Xi may have an additional goal that takes priority
over the others:

e Personal dominance and cementing his legacy

- Xi has consolidated power in a way that means he is
going to be the final decision maker on major policy
issues.

o
(:’

-» The goals announced at the October 2022 Party
Congress may be at odds with each other?:
e Reinvigorate Party ideological discipline and
adherence to Marxist doctrine
e Achieve first world economic wealth by 2035
¢ Build “fortress China” that is self-sufficient in tech,
military capacity, and geopolitical power
- The West has reacted to Xi's assertive nationalism
and now pursues an open policy of China
containment.

" Source: TS Lombard October 2022.

MEKETA.COM _ Page 100 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Investor Concerns Turn into Portfolio Flows

- In Q3 2023, China recorded its first quarterly decline in direct investments since 1998 (-$11.8B)."
Foreign Direct Investment Inflows to China 2011-2023 (USD in Billions)?

® Ministry of Finance (MoF) State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE)

300

200

100 I
0
&
N
&

" Source: Reuters, “West's de-risking starts to bite China's prospects,” November 27, 2023. Article based on preliminary balance of payment data as of September 30, 2023.
2 Source: Peterson Institute for International Economics, N. Lardy “Foreign direct investment is exiting China, new data show,” November 17, 2023. SAFE tracks net FDI while the Ministry of Finance tracks gross inflows.

I
MEKETA.COM Page 101 of 103



M E KETA Meketa Investment Group

2025 Capital Markets Expectations

Cheap...for a Reason?

- Investors’ lack of confidence in the economy and CCP policies continues to weigh on Chinese asset prices.
- Despite a rally in Chinese equities in 2024, valuations remain lower than the broader EM index.
- An important question is: Do valuations fairly represent the risks?

Emerging Market and Chinese P-E Ratios'

30 ———MSCI China PE MSCI EM PE
25
s N
15 ’/«J\\ v / \\\
v\\ \.‘\/\A 4 © W
10
5

" Source: Bloomberg, as of December 31, 2024. Indices used: MSCI China, MSCI Emerging Markets.

MEKETA.COM Page 102 of 103



M E KETA Disclaimer

THIS REPORT (THE “REPORT") HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT (THE “RECIPIENT").

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS MAY OCCUR (OR HAVE OCCURRED) AFTER THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, AND IT IS NOT OUR FUNCTION OR
RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THIS REPORT. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY OPINIONS OR
RECOMMENDATIONS, REPRESENTS OUR GOOD FAITH VIEWS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY
TIME. ALL INVESTMENTS INVOLVE RISK, AND THERE CAN BE NO GUARANTEE THAT THE STRATEGIES, TACTICS, AND METHODS
DISCUSSED HERE WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.

THE INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FROM INVESTMENT MANAGERS, CUSTODIANS, AND
OTHER EXTERNAL SOURCES. SOME OF THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN PRODUCED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ARTIFICIAL
INTELLIGENCE (“AlI’) TECHNOLOGY. WHILE WE HAVE EXERCISED REASONABLE CARE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT, WE CANNOT
GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, VALIDITY, RELIABILITY, AVAILABILITY, OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY INFORMATION
CONTAINED HEREIN, WHETHER OBTAINED EXTERNALLY OR PRODUCED BY THE Al.

THE RECIPIENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THIS REPORT MAY INCLUDE AI-GENERATED CONTENT THAT MAY NOT HAVE CONSIDERED
ALL RISK FACTORS. THE RECIPIENT IS ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH THEIR MEKETA ADVISOR OR ANOTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR
BEFORE MAKING ANY FINANCIAL DECISIONS OR TAKING ANY ACTION BASED ON THE CONTENT OF THIS REPORT. WE BELIEVE THE
INFORMATION TO BE FACTUAL AND UP TO DATE BUT DO NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE
CONTENT PRODUCED. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL,
OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHER TORT,
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF THIS CONTENT. IT IS IMPORTANT FOR THE RECIPIENT TO CRITICALLY
EVALUATE THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

CERTAIN INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT MAY CONSTITUTE “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,” WHICH CAN BE
IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “SHOULD,” “EXPECT,” “AIM,” “ANTICIPATE,” “TARGET,” “PROJECT,”
‘ESTIMATE,” “INTEND,” “CONTINUE,” OR “BELIEVE,” OR THE NEGATIVES THEREOF OR OTHER VARIATIONS THEREON OR COMPARABLE
TERMINOLOGY. ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT ARE
BASED UPON CURRENT ASSUMPTIONS. CHANGES TO ANY ASSUMPTIONS MAY HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY THEREFORE BE MATERIALLY
DIFFERENT FROM ANY FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT.

PERFORMANCE DATA CONTAINED HEREIN REPRESENT PAST PERFORMANCE. PAST PERFORMANCE IS NO GUARANTEE OF FUTURE
RESULTS.

e
MEKETA.COM Page 103 of 103



T 2175 NW Raleigh Street 503.226.1050

M E K E A Suite 300A Meketa.com
Portland, OR 97210

|

MEMORANDUM

TO: Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System (“PFRS”)

FROM: Meketa Investment Group (“Meketa”)

DATE: March 26, 2025

RE: Total Portfolio Expected Return Update — 2025 Capital Markets Assumptions

Background

At least once a year, Meketa generates forward-looking capital market expectations (“CMEs”) to provide
clients with our best estimates of long-term returns, volatilities, and correlations across a wide range of
asset classes and strategy types'. These assumptions are developed for both 10-year (i.e., intermediate)
and 20-year (i.e., long-term) timeframes using a multitude of quantitative and qualitative inputs, and this
development process is updated each year with additional data sets and more refined approaches or
models. As one of the primary uses, these CMEs allow clients to review the expected return and volatility
(risk) of their long-term policy target portfolios to obtain a general understanding of the positioning of their
policy portfolio and whether it is still aligned with their long-term objectives.

Discussion
Applying Meketa’s 2025 Capital Market Expectations to PFRS’s long-term policy targets (effective

July 1, 2024), the PERS investment portfolio is well structured to perform above its 5.0% actuarial
objective in the long-term over both 10- and 20-year time horizons.

Long-Term Policy Targets

Asset Class (%)
Equities 30
US Equity 25
International Equity 5
Fixed Income 61
Crisis Risk Offset 9
Long-Term Government Bonds 3
Systematic Trend Following 3
Alternative Risk Premia 3
Total Portfolio
Expected Return (10-year) 5.7
Expected Return (20-year) 6.6
Annual Volatility 6.2

The OPFRS policy portfolio is positioned to generate an expected return of 5.7%—6.6% depending on
the investment horizon. When examining the portfolio from holistic perspective, Meketa believes that the
portfolio remains prudently constructed to achieve and modestly exceed the actuarial rate without
assuming unnecessary risk. It is important to note that the expected return of the portfolio and the
actuarial assumed investment return do not need to be equal at all times, however, they should be similar
to one another and directionally track over time.

1A total of 113 different asset classes or strategy types are included in Meketa’s 2025 Capital Market Expectations.

[
MEKETA.COM



M March 26, 2025
[ |

20-Year Risk & Return Expectations

The following table illustrates the long-term (20-year) expected risk and return assumptions used in the
table in the previous page along with the return assumptions from last year for comparison.

Volatility
20-Year Expected Return (%) (Standard
Deviation)
2025 CME 2024 CME Change (%)
Equities
US Equity 8.4 8.5 -0.1 17.0
International Equity 8.7 8.9 -0.2 18.0
Fixed Income
Fixed Income 5.3 4.8 +0.5 4.0
Crisis Risk Offset
Long-Term Government Bonds 5.7 5.0 +0.7 12.0
Systematic Trend Following 4.9 4.7 +0.2 15.0
Alternative Risk Premia 5.8 5.2 +0.6 7.0
Total Portfolio 6.6 6.2 +0.4 6.2
DS/PN/JLC/mn

N
Page 2 of 2



2175 NW Raleigh Street 503.226.1050
Suite 300A Meketa.com
MEKETA
|
MEMORANDUM

TO: Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System (OPFRS)
FROM: Meketa Investment Group (Meketa)

DATE: March 26, 2025

RE: Proposed Fee Increase

Meketa and previously PCA began working with the Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System in
July 2004. Currently, we charge $100,000 per year (which represents about 0.02 percent of the total
value of the portfolio), inclusive of travel costs, for our services. We are requesting an increase in our
annual retainer to $165,000 per year (or approximately 0.03 percent), inclusive of travel.

The request for a fee increase results from an assessment of the time, resources, and travel costs
involved in advising the OPFRS, as well as from an increase in the general costs of providing our
services. We value our relationship greatly and are asking for your consideration in granting this request,
after 20+ years of providing investment advisory services.

Since Meketa was hired, the Plans have weathered numerous market cycles and two Pension Obligation
Bonds’(POB). Meketa has attended Investment Committee and Board meetings on a monthly basis,
participated in update calls with staff and attended quarterly city council meetings. We have dedicated
substantial time and resources to developing content and educational materials on various investment
issues, while also enhancing the structure, diversification and manager roster within the portfolio. Since
2004, we have conducted numerous asset-liability studies, manager searches, IPS reviews, educational
pieces, and ad hoc requests (annual letters, auditor reports, etc.). In addition, we negotiated fee savings
with OPFRS portfolio managers over the 20+ years of service.

Finally, since we were hired, Meketa has continued to invest in human and technological capital to ensure

that research and resources are always available for our clients. We value and enjoy our relationship with
the OPFRS and appreciate the Board’s continued confidence in Meketa.

MEKETA.COM



M E K E TA 2175 NW Raleigh Street 503.226.1050
Suite 300A Meketa.com
Portland, OR 97210
|
MEMORANDUM

TO: Oakland Police and Fire Retirement System (“OPFRS”)
FROM: Meketa Investment Group (“Meketa”)

DATE: March 26, 2025

RE: 2025 Preliminary Investment Program Agenda

On an ongoing (monthly) basis, Meketa develops a list of projects that we expect to work closely with
OPFRS to complete over the calendar year (see table below). In an attempt to coordinate the scheduling
of these tasks, this memo details a Preliminary Investment Program Agenda by calendaring and
prioritizing the expected tasks and deliverables that would be required to fulfill the Agenda.

Meketa welcomes any suggestions and/or modifications to the proposed timeline.

2025 Preliminary Investment Program Agenda

Date Task

Flash Performance (March 2025)

Annual Diversity Survey Results

Investment Policy Statement (IPS) Update: Fixed Income Benchmark
Information/Educational: TBD

April 2025

N

N\

Flash Performance (April)
Quarterly Performance Report (2025 Q1)
Manager Finalist Interviews: International Equity"

May 2025

N2

- Flash Performance (May 2025)
June 2025 - Cash Flow Recommendations (2025 Q3)
- Investment Policy Statement (IPS) Annual Review

July 2025 - Flash Performance (June 2025)
- Information/Educational: TBD

- Flash Performance (July 2025)

August 2025
- Quarterly Performance Report (2025 Q2)

September 2025 - Flash Performance (August 2025)
- Cash Flow Recommendations (2025 Q4)

October 2025 - Flash Performance (September 2025)
- Thermal Coal List Update: 2025

- Flash Performance (October 2025)
November 2025 - Quarterly Performance Report (2025 Q3)
- Information/Educational: TBD

T Manager finalist interviews are expected to be conducted on a different day before the regular Investment Committee/Board meetings on last Wednesdays of the month

R
MEKETA.COM



M March 26, 2025
[ |

Date Task

- Flash Performance (November 2025)
December 2025 - Cash Flow Recommendations (2026 Q1)
- 2026 Preliminary Investment Program Agenda

This agenda includes only major strategic items. Meketa also expects to work with the Staff and Board
to complete more routine tasks and projects, as expected.

DS/PN/JLC/mn

- |
Page 2 of 2



	DRAFT_2025.03.26_PFRS_AGENDA_REGULAR_ v1.pdf
	A) DRAFT_PFRS_2025.02.26_Draft Minutes_REGULAR_v.2 (JNL).pdf
	B) Resolution of Appreciation 
	C) PFRS_03.26.2025_Agenda Packet_Audit.pdf
	C1) Admin Expense Report - as of 01.31.2025
	C2) Proposed two-year budget
	C3) Travel Request - Reso No. 8126

	D1) Versor_OaklandPFRS_Trend_2025.03[30].pdf
	D2)_M250326_Versor Update_OPFRS.pdf
	D3) 2025-02 EM Update.pdf
	D4) 250326_February Flash Report_OPFRS.pdf
	000_Cover
	010_250312_February Flash Report_OPFRS v2
	100_Report Addendum
	999_Disclaimer, Glossary, Notes

	D5) 250326_Fixed Income Manager Allocations_OPFRS.pdf
	D6) 250326_Cash Flows 25Q2_OPFRS.pdf
	D7) 250326_2025 Capital Markets Expectations_OPFRS.pdf
	D8) M250326_2025 Expected Return_OPFRS.pdf
	D9) M250326_Fee Increase Request_OPFRS.pdf
	E) M250326_Strategic Agenda_OPFRS.pdf




